
1 
 

CITY OF OWOSSO 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL 

MONDAY, AUGUST 18, 2025 
6:30 P.M. 

 
Meeting to be held at City Hall 

301 West Main Street 
 

AGENDA 
 
OPENING PRAYER:  
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: 
ROLL CALL: 
APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA: 
APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF AUGUST 4, 2025: 
 

ADDRESSING THE CITY COUNCIL 
 

1. Your comments shall be made during times set aside for that purpose. 
2. Stand or raise a hand to indicate that you wish to speak. 
3. When recognized, give your name and address and direct your comments and/or questions to any 

City official in attendance. 
4. Each person wishing to address the City Council and/or attending officials shall be afforded one 

opportunity of up to four (4) minutes duration during the first occasion for citizen comments and 
questions.  Each person shall also be afforded one opportunity of up to three (3) minutes duration 
during the last occasion provided for citizen comments and questions and one opportunity of up to 
three (3) minutes duration during each public hearing.  Comments made during public hearings shall 
be relevant to the subject for which the public hearings are held. 

5. In addition to the opportunities described above, a citizen may respond to questions posed to him or 
her by the Mayor or members of the Council, provided members have been granted the floor to pose 
such questions. 

 
PROCLAMATIONS / SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS 

None. 
 

PUBLIC HEARINGS 

None. 
 

CITIZEN COMMENTS 

COUNCIL COMMENTS 

CONSENT AGENDA 

1. Set Public Hearing – CDBG Grant Acceptance.  Set a public hearing for Tuesday, September 2, 2025 
to receive citizen comment regarding the proposal to accept CDBG grant funding for interior and 
exterior improvements on ten qualified residential homes. 
Master Plan Implementation Goals:    1.1, 1.9, 1.13, 6.6 
 

2. Traffic Control Order Request – American Legion Bike Night.  Approve request from American Legion 
Riders Post 57 for the closure of Park Street, between Mason and Williams, for their Bike Night event 
on Saturday, August 23, 2025 from noon – 11:00pm, and further approve Traffic Control Order No. 
1542 formalizing the action. 



2 
 

3. Traffic Control Order Request – Art Walk.  Waive insurance requirement, approve request from John 
Hankerd for the closure of Main Street Plaza (Lot #13) for the Art Walk event on Friday, September 
19, 2025 from 2:00pm – 9:00pm, and further approve Traffic Control Order No. 1543 formalizing the 
action. 

 
4. Contract Amendment – COSSAP Grant Subcontract.  Approve revision of the Agreement Amount for 

the COSSAP Grant subcontract agreement with Shiawassee Health and Wellness. 
 Master Plan Implementation Goals:  3.1 

 
5. Bid Rejection – Washington Park Utility Extension Project.  Reject the bid received from Crawford 

Contracting, Inc. for the Washington Park Utility Extension Project due to a lack of appropriate 
funding. 

 
6. Change Order - WWTP Secondary Clarifier Project.  Approve Change Order No. 3 to the WWTP 

Secondary Clarifier Project contract with RCL Construction Co., Inc., increasing the contract by 
$73,579.00 for a resized gate, installation of an additional gate, and painting of the pump room 
ceiling, and further approve payment to the contractor up to the amount of $6,122,417.00 upon 
satisfactory completion of the work or portion thereof. 
Master Plan Implementation Goals:  3.4, 3.7 

 
7. Evergreen PO Request – Automatic Meter Reading System Maintenance.  Approve an evergreen 

purchase order with Aclara Technologies LLC for maintenance services for the City’s automatic meter 
reading system in the amount of $21,228.00 for FY 2025-26, with an annual increase not to exceed 
5% per the terms of the agreement. 
 

8. Annual PO Request – Workers’ Compensation Insurance.  Authorize annual purchase order in the 
amount of $165,285.00 for workers’ compensation insurance provided by the Michigan Municipal 
League for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2026. 

 
9. Sole Source Purchase – Havaflock 560 Polymer.  Waive competitive bidding requirements, authorize 

the sole source purchase of Havaflock 560 from Haviland Products Company in an amount estimated 
at $39,050.80 for FY 2025-2026, and further authorize payment to the vendor according to unit prices 
for quantities delivered. 

 
10. Contract Authorization – 2026 Sanitary Sewer Manhole Lining Project.  Waive competitive bidding 

requirements, authorize a joint contract with Advanced Rehabilitation Technology, Ltd. for the 2026 
Sanitary Sewer Manhole Lining Project in an amount not to exceed $100,000.00 under the terms of 
Purchasing Cooperative of America Contract # OD-347-21, and further authorize payment upon 
satisfactory completion of the project or portion thereof. 

 
11. Purchase Authorization – Monitor/Defibrillators.  Waive competitive bidding requirements, authorize 

the joint purchase of three Stryker Lifepak 35 monitor/defibrillators including extended warranty, 
accessories and supplies in the amount of $180,083.86 utilizing Eagle County, CO Health Service 
District Contract RFB #2024-06, and further authorize payment to the vendor upon satisfactory 
delivery of said equipment. 
Master Plan Implementation Goals:  3.2 

 
12. Bid Award - No-Preference Towing Services.  Authorize bid award for no-preference towing services 

to Richard Earl Maurer DBA Dick’s Auto for the period from September 1, 2025 through June 30, 
2028. 

 
ITEMS OF BUSINESS 

1. Contract Approvals – Ludington Electric, Inc.  Reiterate acknowledgement of the pecuniary interest of 
Councilmember Ludington in the contract(s) in question and consider approval of $1,349.17 in 
contracts with Ludington Electric, Inc. for the period of July 2025.  



3 
 

2.  Utilities Easements – Washington Park Project.  Consider acceptance of permanent easements for 
the construction and maintenance of a sanitary sewer lift station and water meter pits servicing the 
Washington Park project in the amount of $2.00.  

 
3. Pump Station No. 5 Agreement.  Consider agreement with Owosso Charter Township and the 

Owosso Township – Caledonia Township Utility Authority to share costs for the operation, 
maintenance, and expansion of Pump Station No. 5. 
Master Plan Implementation Goals:  3.4, 3.8, 7.1 
 

4. Closed Session.  Consider holding a closed session at the conclusion of the second session of 
  Council Comments for the purpose of discussing collective bargaining negotiations. 
 

CITIZEN COMMENTS 

COUNCIL COMMENTS 

CLOSED SESSION  (if approved) 
 

COMMUNICATIONS 

1. Ryan E. Suchanek, Director of Public Services & Utilities.  Consumers Energy Demand Response 
Program. 

2. Lizzie L. Fredrick, DDA/OMS Director.  DDA/OMS Board Transformation Strategy 2025. 
3. Tanya S. Buckelew, Planning & Building Director.  July 2025 Building Department Report. 
4. Tanya S. Buckelew, Planning & Building Director.  July 2025 Code Violations Report. 
5. Tanya S. Buckelew, Planning & Building Director.  July 2025 Inspections Report. 
6. Tanya S. Buckelew, Planning & Building Director.  July 2025 Certificates Issued Report. 
7. Kevin D. Lenkart, Public Safety Director.  July 2025 Police Report. 
8. Kevin D. Lenkart, Public Safety Director.  July 2025 Fire Report. 
9. DDA / Owosso Main Street Board.  Minutes of August 6, 2025. 
 

NEXT MEETING 

Tuesday, September 2, 2025 
 

BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS OPENINGS 

Building Board of Appeals – Alternate - term expires June 30, 2026 
Building Board of Appeals – Alternate - term expires June 30, 2027 
DDA/OMS Board – term expires June 30, 2028 
Zoning Board of Appeals – Alternate – term expires June 30, 2027 
Zoning Board of Appeals – Alternate – term expires June 30, 2028 
 

ADJOURNMENT 

The City of Owosso will provide necessary reasonable auxiliary aids and services, such as signers for the hearing 
impaired and audio recordings of printed materials being considered at the meeting, to individuals with disabilities at 
the meeting/hearing upon seventy-two (72) hours notice to the City of Owosso.  Individuals with disabilities requiring 
auxiliary aids or services should contact the City of Owosso by writing, calling, or emailing the following:  Owosso City 
Clerk’s Office, 301 West Main Street, Owosso, MI  48867; Phone: (989) 725-0500; Email:  city.clerk@ci.owosso.mi.us. 
The City of Owosso Website address is www.ci.owosso.mi.us.  
 



PLEASE TAKE NOTICE THAT THE FOLLOWING MEETING  
CAN ONLY BE VIEWED VIRTUALLY 

 
The Owosso City Council will conduct an in-person meeting on August 18, 2025.  Citizens may view and listen 
to the meeting using the following link and phone numbers.   

 
OWOSSO CITY COUNCIL 

MONDAY, AUGUST 18, 2025 AT 6:30 P.M. 
 
The public joining the meeting via Zoom CANNOT participate in public comment. 

 
• Join Zoom Meeting:  

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/87610148640?pwd=KTOilfLLu77owzmqHguIR3l3D2jgNh.1  
 

Meeting ID:  876 1014 8640 
Passcode:  808634 
 
One tap mobile 

 
 +13126266799,,81130530177#,,,,*017514# US (Chicago) 

+16465588656,,81130530177#,,,,*017514# US (New York) 
 
Dial by your location 

 
+1 312 626 6799 US (Chicago) 
+1 646 558 8656 US (New York) 
+1 301 715 8592 US (Washington DC) 
+1 346 248 7799 US (Houston) 
+1 669 900 9128 US (San Jose) 
+1 253 215 8782 US (Tacoma) 

 
• For video instructions visit: 

 
o Signing up and Downloading Zoom https://youtu.be/qsy2Ph6kSf8 
o Joining a Zoom Meeting https://youtu.be/hIkCmbvAHQQ 
o Joining and Configuring Audio and Video https://youtu.be/-s76QHshQnY 

 
• Helpful notes for participants:    Helpful Hints 

• Meeting packets are published on the City of Owosso website  http://www.ci.owosso.mi.us 

Any person who wishes to contact members of the City Council to provide input or ask questions on any 
business coming before the Council on August 18, 2025 may do so by calling or e-mailing the City Clerk’s 
Office prior to the meeting at (989)725-0500 or city.clerk@ci.owosso.mi.us. Contact information for individual 
Council members can be found on the City website at: http://www.ci.owosso.mi.us/Government/City-Council  

The City of Owosso will provide necessary reasonable auxiliary aids and services, such as signers for the 
hearing impaired and audio recordings of printed materials being considered at the meeting, to individuals with 
disabilities at the meeting/hearing upon seventy-two (72) hours notice to the City of Owosso.  Individuals with 
disabilities requiring auxiliary aids or services should contact the City of Owosso by writing, calling, or emailing 
the following:  Owosso City Clerk’s Office, 301 West Main Street, Owosso, MI  48867; Phone: (989) 725-0500; 
Email:  city.clerk@ci.owosso.mi.us. The City of Owosso Website address is www.ci.owosso.mi.us.  

 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/87610148640?pwd=KTOilfLLu77owzmqHguIR3l3D2jgNh.1
https://youtu.be/qsy2Ph6kSf8
https://youtu.be/hIkCmbvAHQQ
https://youtu.be/-s76QHshQnY
http://www.ci.owosso.mi.us/Portals/0/Files/Documents/CouncilVirtualMeetingNotice-HelpfulHints.pdf
http://www.ci.owosso.mi.us/
http://www.ci.owosso.mi.us/Government/City-Council
file://coo-dc1/users$/AKKirkland/Documents/PublicNotices/city.clerk@ci.owosso.mi.us
http://www.ci.owosso.mi.us/


Draft 1 08-04-2025 

CITY OF OWOSSO  
REGULAR MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL 

MINUTES OF AUGUST 4, 2025        
6:30 P.M. 

VIRGINIA TEICH CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
 
 
PRESIDING OFFICER:  MAYOR ROBERT J. TEICH, JR. 
 
OPENING PRAYER:  PASTOR GARY BEAL 
    CHURCH OF JUBILEE 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: GLEN ERDMAN 
 
PRESENT: Mayor Robert J. Teich, Jr., Mayor Pro-Tem Jerome C. Haber, 

Councilmembers Carl C. Ludington, Emily S. Olson, Rachel M. Osmer, 
and Christopher D. Owens. 

 
ABSENT: Councilmember Janae L. Fear. 
 

APPROVE AGENDA 
 
Motion by Councilmember Osmer to approve the agenda as presented. 
 
Motion supported by Councilmember Owens and concurred in by unanimous vote. 
 

APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES OF REGULAR MEETING OF JULY 21, 2025 
 
Motion by Councilmember Olson to approve the Minutes of the Regular Meeting of July 21, 2025 as 
presented. 
 
Motion supported by Councilmember Ludington and concurred in by unanimous vote. 
 

PROCLAMATIONS / SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS 
 
None. 
 

PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 
None. 
 

CITIZEN COMMENTS 
 
Pastor Gary Beal, on behalf of the pastoral association, thanked City staff for all that they do for the 
community. 
 

COUNCIL COMMENTS 
 
Councilmember Osmer invited everyone to the Back to School Community Health Fair on Thursday, from 
1:00pm – 4:00pm at the County Health Department.  The Health Department will be offering sports 
physicals, health screenings, immunizations, as well as treats and the possibility of a free backpack for 



Draft 2 08-04-2025 

the kids.  She went on to note the last concert in the Summer Concert Series will be held this Thursday at 
7:00pm at the Mitchell Amphitheater.  The non-profit sponsors are Voices for Children and Shiawassee 
Family YMCA. 
 
Mayor Teich asked Owosso Public Safety Captain Cherry to describe the National Night Out event.  
Captain Cherry invited all to attend the National Night Out event Tuesday night from 5:00pm – 7:00pm 
behind the Public Safety Building.  There will be free hot dogs, games, giveaways, touch-a-truck, and the 
opportunity to meet local first responders. 
 

CONSENT AGENDA 
 
Motion by Councilmember Olson to approve the Consent Agenda as follows: 
 
Traffic Control Order – Back 2 School Bash.  Consider request from Dan Dameron of Convergent 
Church, for the partial closure of the Armory Parking Lot (Lot #4) for the Back 2 School Bash on Sunday, 
August 17, 2025 from 8:00am – 3:00pm and approve Traffic Control Order No. 1540 formalizing the 
action contingent upon receipt of proper insurance. 
 
 

*Change Order – 2025 Sewer Televising Project.  Approve Change Order No. 2 to the 2025 Sewer 
Televising Project contract with MEC Underground Solutions LLC adding $22,424.00 for additional 
televising for upcoming street and utility projects, and further approve payment to the contractor upon 
satisfactory completion of the work or portion thereof as follows: 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 104-2025 
 

AUTHORIZING CHANGE ORDER NO. 2 
TO THE CONTRACT BETWEEN THE CITY OF OWOSSO AND 

MEC UNDERGROUND SOLUTIONS LLC 
FOR THE 2025 SEWER TELEVISING PROJECT  

 
WHEREAS, the city of Owosso, Shiawassee County, Michigan, approved a contract with MEC 
Underground Solutions LLC on December 2, 2024 for the 2025 Sewer Televising Project to televise 
sanitary and storm sewer on various streets throughout the city; and 
 
WHEREAS, Change Order No. 1 was approved on May 7, 2025 to perform sewer patching work; and 
 
WHEREAS, city staff desires to televise additional sanitary and storm sewer to prepare for upcoming 
street and utility projects; and 
 
WHEREAS, MEC Underground Solutions LLC has agreed to perform this additional work, and a change 
order in the amount of $22,424.00 is necessary to increase the contract amount for the additional work. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, 
Michigan that: 
 

FIRST: the City of Owosso has heretofore determined that it is advisable, necessary and in the 
public interest to approve Change Order No 2 to the 2025 Sewer Televising Project 
contract with MEC Underground Solutions LLC to increase the contract amount to 
complete additional televising. 

 
SECOND: the mayor and city clerk are instructed and authorized to sign the document substantially 

in form attached as Change Order No. 2 in the amount of $22,424.00; an increase to the 
Contract for Services between the city of Owosso and MEC Underground Solutions LLC, 
revising the total current contract amount from $71,709.00 to $94,133.00. 



Draft 3 08-04-2025 

 
THIRD: the accounts payable department is authorized to pay MEC Underground Solutions LLC 

for work satisfactorily completed up to the revised contract amount of $94,133.00. 
 
FOURTH: the above expenses shall be paid from Major and Local Street Maintenance Fund 

Account Nos. 202/203-463-818.000 ($6,825.00 each) and Sanitary Sewer Fund Account 
No. 590-549-818.000 ($8,774.00). 

 
Master Plan Implementation Goals:  3.4 

 
 

*Emergency Repair Authorization – Fire Department Medic 1.  Authorize payment to Lunghamer Ford 
of Owosso, LLC for emergency repair and replacement of parts on Fire Department Medic 1 in the 
amount of $4,951.76 as follows: 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 105-2025 
 

AUTHORIZING PAYMENT TO 
LUNGHAMER FORD OF OWOSSO, LLC 

FOR EMERGENCY REPAIR OF OWOSSO FIRE DEPARTMENT MEDIC 1 
 
WHEREAS, the city of Owosso, Shiawassee County, Michigan, has a fire department vehicle, Medic 1,  
that required emergency repair, and  
 
WHEREAS, Sec 2-346(5)of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Owosso waives competitive bidding 
requirements when a purchase is of an emergent nature; and 
 
WHEREAS, the city directed Lunghamer Ford of Owosso, LLC, to proceed and make the emergency 
repair, which subsequently totaled $4,951.76 and 
 
WHEREAS, the Public Safety Chief has reviewed the detailed billing from Lunghamer Ford of Owosso, 
LLC for the cost of the repair and recommends payment in the amount of $4,951.76 for the work that was 
satisfactorily completed. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, 
Michigan that: 
 

FIRST: the City of Owosso has heretofore determined that it was necessary and in the public 
interest to contract with Lunghamer Ford of Owosso, LLC for emergency repairs to 
Owosso Fire Department vehicle Medic 1. 

 
SECOND: the Accounts Payable department is authorized to submit payment to Lunghamer Ford of 

Owosso, LLC in the amount of $4,951.76 as authorized by Council this 4th day of August 
2025.   

 
THIRD: the above expenses shall be paid from the Fire Department vehicle repair fund. 

 
 

*Bid Award – Downtown Planter Removal Project.  Approve bid award to Perrin Construction Co., Inc. 
for the Downtown Planter Removal Project in the amount of $34,436.50 and further approve payment to 
the contractor upon satisfactory completion of the project as follows: 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 106-2025 
 

AUTHORIZING AWARD OF THE DOWNTOWN PLANTER REMOVAL PROJECT BID 
TO PERRIN CONSTRUCTION COMPANY, INC. OF DURAND 



Draft 4 08-04-2025 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, Michigan, has identified the need to remove two 
raised planter boxes and replace concrete on South Washington Street; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Owosso, in collaboration with Owosso Main Street & Downtown Development 
Authority, sought bids for the necessary work to be completed as outlined in the Downtown Planter 
Removal Project Bid, and the low responsive bid was received from Perrin Construction Company, Inc. in 
the amount of $34,436.50; and 
 
WHEREAS, Perrin Construction Company, Inc. is hereby determined to be qualified to provide such 
services. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, 
Michigan that: 
 

FIRST: the City of Owosso has heretofore determined that it is advisable, necessary and in the 
public’s best interest to employ Perrin Construction Company, Inc. to complete the 
planter removal and concrete replacement as outlined in the Downtown Planter Removal 
Project Bid. 

 
SECOND: the Mayor and City Clerk are instructed and authorized to sign the document substantially 

in the form attached, Contract for Services Between the City of Owosso and Perrin 
Construction Company, Inc. in the amount of $34,436.50. 

 
THIRD: the Accounts Payable Department is authorized to pay Perrin Construction Company, 

Inc. for work satisfactorily completed on the project up to the initial contract amount of 
$34,436.50. 

 
FOURTH: the above expenses shall be paid from the Owosso Main Street & Downtown 

Development Authority Fund Account No. 248-200-818.000. 
 
 Master Plan Implementation Goals:  1.9, 3.17 
 
 

*Check Register – July 2025.  Affirm check disbursements totaling $4,535,497.43 for July 2025. 
 
 
Motion supported by Councilmember Owens. 
 
Roll Call Vote. 
 
AYES: Mayor Pro-Tem Haber, Councilmembers Osmer, Ludington, Olson, Owens, and Mayor 

Teich. 
 
NAYS: None. 
 
ABSENT: Councilmember Fear. 
 

ITEMS OF BUSINESS 
 
Notice of Pecuniary Interest 
 
Motion by Councilmember Olson to enter the following notice of pecuniary interest on the record for 
Councilmember Carl Ludington as it relates to proposed contracts with Ludington Electric, Inc. for the 
month of July 2025:  



Draft 5 08-04-2025 

 
STATEMENT REGARDING BUSINESS DEALINGS WITH THE CITY 

 
Per Owosso City Charter Section 14.4 and Michigan Public Act 317 of 1968, as amended 

 
I, Carl Ludington, being an officer of the City of Owosso, do hereby declare a pecuniary interest in the 
subsequent proposed contract(s) with the City of Owosso described as: 
 

PO NUMBER DEPT. VENDOR DESCRIPTION AMOUNT 

000046941 862 LUDINGTON ELECTRIC, INC. LIGHTS FOR PICKLE BALL/TENNIS COURT 120.00 
000047022 862 LUDINGTON ELECTRIC, INC. CHANGE OUT BAD BREAKER 179.17 

000047059 859 LUDINGTON ELECTRIC, INC. ELECTRICAL WORK FOR PLANTER 
REMOVAL 1,050.00 

     $     1,349.17 
 

For the Period of: July 2025  
 
Vendor:  Ludington Electric, Inc  
 
Total Amount:  $1,349.17 
 
I am making this declaration because I am the owner/operator of Ludington Electric, Inc.  I confirm that I 
will not vote on the matter(s) in question, I will not take part in discussion on any question in respect to the 
matter(s), and I will not attempt in any way whether before, during or after the meeting to influence the 
voting on any such question at a public meeting of the Owosso City Council. 
 
Said items will be considered for approval at the August 18, 2025 meeting of the Owosso City Council. 
 
Declared this 4th day of August, 2025. 
 
Motion supported by Councilmember Owens. 
 
Roll Call Vote. 
 
AYES: Councilmembers Osmer Owens, Mayor Pro-Tem Haber, Councilmembers Ludington, 

Olson, and Mayor Teich. 
 
NAYS:  None. 
 
ABSENT: Councilmember Fear. 
 
 
MML Annual Meeting Delegates 
 

Master Plan Implementation Coals:  3.5, 3.9 
 
Motion by Councilmember Olson designating Councilmember Osmer and Councilmember Owens as the 
City's official representatives for the MML Annual Meeting. 
 
Motion supported by Councilmember Owens. 
 
Roll Call Vote. 
 



Draft 6 08-04-2025 

AYES: Councilmembers Osmer, Owens, Mayor Pro-Tem Haber, Councilmembers Ludington, 
Olson, and Mayor Teich. 

 
NAYS:  None. 
 
ABSENT: Councilmember Fear. 
 

CITIZEN COMMENTS 
 
None. 
 

COUNCIL COMMENTS 
 
None. 
 

CITY MANAGER REPORT 
 
Nathan R. Henne, City Manager.  City Manager Report – July 2025.  
 

COMMUNICATIONS 
 
Scott J. Gould, City Attorney.  Memorandum regarding the delivery of property tax bills. 
Brad A. Barrett, Finance Director.  Financial Report – June 2025. 
Parks & Recreation Commission.  Minutes of June 25, 2025. 
Owosso Historical Commission.  Minutes of July 14, 2025. 
Historic District Commission.  Minutes of July 16, 2025. 
 

NEXT MEETING 
 
Monday, August 18, 2025 
 

BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS OPENINGS 
 
Building Board of Appeals – Alternate - term expires June 30, 2026 
Building Board of Appeals – Alternate - term expires June 30, 2025 
DDA/OMS Board x 2 – terms expire June 30, 2028 
Zoning Board of Appeals – Alternate – term expires June 30, 2027 
Zoning Board of Appeals – Alternate – term expires June 30, 2025 
 

ADJOURNMENT 
 
Motion by Councilmember Ludington for adjournment at 6:57 p.m. 
 
Motion supported by Councilmember Olson and concurred in by unanimous vote. 
 
 
 
     __________________________________________  
     Robert J. Teich, Jr., Mayor 
 



Draft 7 08-04-2025 

 
     __________________________________________  
     Amy K. Kirkland, City Clerk 
 
 
 

*Due to their length, text of marked items is not included in the minutes.  Full text of these documents is on 
file in the Clerk's Office. 
 



  
MEMORANDUM 

 
  

Build ing Department 301 W Main St  Owosso, MI 989-725-0535 
 

 
 
 
 

 
DATE: August 13, 2025 
 
TO: Mayor Teich and the Owosso City Council 
  
FROM: Tanya Buckelew, Planning & Building Director 
 
SUBJECT: Michigan State Housing Development Authority (MSHDA) and Community 

Development Block Grant (CDBG) Public Hearing 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff recommends setting a public hearing for Tuesday, September 2, 2025 at 6:30 p.m. during the 
regular City Council meeting.  This is a compliance requirement to be eligible for the CDBG program and 
to receive a grant agreement. 
 
The purpose of the hearing is to inform citizens of the proposed objectives, activities, locations and 
amounts to be used for each activity. 
 
BACKGROUND: 

• The City submitted a letter of intent for another round of CDBG grant funding for home 
improvements. 

• The City has been awarded $472,000 ($400,000 for housing renovations and $72,000 for 
reimbursement of administrative costs) pending submission of the application. 

• City match is not required. 
• This grant is for interior and exterior renovations to single-family homes (i.e. roofing, windows, 

furnace, water heater, electrical updates) that will benefit low- to moderate- income households. 
• Each household can receive up to $40,000 for improvements 
• Eligible locations will be determined at a later date. 

 
FISCAL IMPACTS:   
 
Minimal impact on the budget as the City will be reimbursed for the time spent on this grant.  We will track 
the time for City employees that assist with the program. 
 
 

Master Plan Implementation Goals:    1.1, 1.9, 1.13, 6.6  
   
   



RESOLUTION NO. 
 

SETTING A PUBLIC HEARING TO RECEIVE CITIZEN COMMENT REGARDING 
THE CITY OF OWOSSO CDBG HOUSING IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, Michigan, has received a CDBG grant to assist 
single family homeowners with interior and exterior improvements to their homes; and 
 
WHEREAS, the CDBG program requires a public hearing to receive citizen comment regarding the 
objectives of the grant, permitted activities, eligible locations, and the amounts allocated to each activity. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, 
Michigan that a public hearing is set for Tuesday, September 2, 2025 at 6:30 p.m. in the City Hall Council 
Chambers to receive citizen comment regarding the City’s CDBG Housing Improvement Program. 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
  301 W. MAIN   OWOSSO, MICHIGAN 48867-2958  · (989) 725-0599  ·  FAX (989) 723-8854 
 
 

 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
DATE:   July 17, 2025 
 
TO:   City Council 
 
FROM:   Kevin Lenkart 
 Director of Public Safety 
  
RE:   Traffic Control Order #1542 
 
 
American Legion Riders Post 57 is requesting a closure of Park Street between Mason 
and Williams for their Annual Bike Night. There will be foot traffic, a band, kids corner with 
bounce house and motorcycle parking. 
 

LOCATION:   
 

  North Park Street between Mason Street and Williams Street. 
 

DATE: 
 
           August 23rd, 2025 
 
           TIME: 
 
           12:00 pm – 11:00 pm 
 
 
 
The Public Safety Department has issued Traffic Control Order# 1542 in accordance with 
the Rules for the Issuance of Certain Traffic Control Orders. Staff recommends approval 
and further authorization of a traffic control order formalizing the action. 

 
 
 



CITY OF OWOSSO 
 

TRAFFIC CONTROL ORDER 
 

(SECTION 2.53 UNIFORM TRAFFIC CODE) 
 

          
 ORDER NO.  DATE       TIME 

   1542               07/17/2025   4:25 PM 
           
 REQUESTED BY 

 Kevin Lenkart – Director of Public Safety 
           
 TYPE OF CONTROL 

Full Closure of Park Street between Mason St and Williams St. 
           
 LOCATION OF CONTROL     
  

N. Park Street between Mason St and Williams St. 
  
          
 EVENT:    

 
Annual Bike Night, American Legion Riders Post 57 
August 23, 2025 
12:00 pm – 11:00 pm 

 
  
           
 APPROVED BY COUNCIL  

                           , 20   
           
 REMARKS 























 
 
 
 
 
 
  301 W. MAIN   OWOSSO, MICHIGAN 48867-2958  · (989) 725-0599  ·  FAX (989) 723-8854 
 
 

 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
DATE:   July 30, 2025 
 
TO:   City Council 
 
FROM:   Kevin Lenkart 
 Director of Public Safety 
  
RE:   Traffic Control Order #1543 
 
 
John Hankerd is requesting the closure of Main Street Plaza for the afternoon/evening for 
the Art Walk event. Artists will be set up in stores and in front of stores as well as at the 
Plaza.  Event organizers are requesting waiver of the insurance requirement. 
 

LOCATION:   
 

  Main Street Plaza. 
 

DATE: 
 
           September 19th, 2025 
 
           TIME: 
 
           2:00 pm – 9:00 pm 
 
 
The Public Safety Department has issued Traffic Control Order# 1543 in accordance with 
the Rules for the Issuance of Certain Traffic Control Orders. Staff recommends approval 
of the application, waiver of the insurance requirement, and authorization of a traffic 
control order formalizing the action. 

 
 
 



CITY OF OWOSSO 
 

TRAFFIC CONTROL ORDER 
 

(SECTION 2.53 UNIFORM TRAFFIC CODE) 
 

          
 ORDER NO.  DATE       TIME 

    1543               07/30/2025   9:25 AM 
           
 REQUESTED BY 

 Kevin Lenkart – Director of Public Safety 
           
 TYPE OF CONTROL 

Closure of Main Street Plaza parking lot 
           
 LOCATION OF CONTROL     
  

Main Street Plaza (Lot #13) 
  
          
 EVENT:    

 
Art Walk  
September 19, 2025 
2:00 pm – 9:00 pm 

 
  
           
 APPROVED BY COUNCIL  

                           , 20   
           
 REMARKS 











 
 

OWOSSO PUBLIC SAFETY 
 
 

202 S. WATER ST.  OWOSSO, MICHIGAN 48867-2958  (989) 725-0580  FAX (989)725-0528 
  
 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 

DATE:   August  12, 2025  
 
TO:   City Council  
 
FROM:   Kevin Lenkart, Owosso Public Safety Chief 
  
RE:   Approve Comprehensive Opioid, Stimulant, and Substance Abuse Program (COSSAP) 

Grant Contract Amendment  
 
 
Recommendation:  
 
Approve the grant contract amendment between the City of Owosso and Shiawassee Health and Wellness 
(SHW). The contract amendment increases the amount of the COSSAP grant to $53,880.75.  
 
Background: 
 
In  October 2022, Owosso City Council accepted a grant for Comprehensive Opioid, Stimulant, and 
Substance Abuse Program (COSSAP). The grant totaled $373,864.00 to be used toward Naloxone 
distribution, a Quick Response Team (QRT), and Law Enforcement Assisted Diversion (LEAD). The 
grant was reduced in November 2024 to equal the funding already spent, which at the time was 
$45,835.00.  This subsequent amendment will adjust the grant amount to $53,880.75. 
 
Request City Council to approve a grant contract amendment between the City of Owosso and 
Shiawassee Health and Wellness.  
 
Fiscal Impacts: 
 
None.  This amendment simply accounts for the total amount spent on the grant’s programs. 
 
Master Plan Goals: 3.1 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 



RESOLUTION NO.  
 

APPROVE GRANT CONTRACT AMENDMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF OWOSSO AND 
SHIAWASSEE HEALTH AND WELLNESS 

 
WHEREAS, in May of 2021, the City of Owosso partnered with the Michigan State Police and 
Shiawassee Health and Wellness in applying for a COSSAP grant from the U.S. Department of Justice, 
Office of Justice Programs, Bureau of Justice Assistance; and 
 
WHEREAS, In October 2022, Owosso City Council approved the acceptance of the COSSAP grant; and 
 
WHEREAS, the first amendment to the grant contract amended the grant amount to money already spent 
and extended the grant through September 30, 2025; 
 
WHEREAS, a second amendment to the grant contract is necessary to fully account for all monies spent 
on grant programs. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Council of the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, 
Michigan that: 
 

FIRST:  the amended subcontract between the City of Owosso and Shiawassee Health 
       and Wellness is approved as presented. 
 
SECOND:   the City will maintain satisfactory financial accounts, documents, and records and 
       make them available to the Department for auditing at reasonable times. 
        
THIRD:       the City will comply with any and all terms of said agreement including all terms 
       not specifically set forth in the foregoing portions of this Resolution. 
 

 
 











 
MEMORANDUM 

 
 

301 W. MAIN    OWOSSO, MICHIGAN 48867-2958    WWW.CI.OWOSSO.MI.US 
 
 

    
 
DATE: August 18, 2025 
 
TO: Owosso City Council 
  
FROM: Clayton Wehner, Director of Engineering 
 
SUBJECT: Washington Park Utility Extension Project – Bid Rejection 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
Rejection of the bid proposal from Crawford Contracting for the Washington Park Utility Extension Project.   
 
 
BACKGROUND:  
 
On May 27, 2025, the City received bids for the Washington Park Utility Extension Project. Work includes 
street resurfacing of Wesley Drive from Water to Washington, sanitary sewer and water main installation 
on Wesley Drive between Water and Washington, and water main installation on Washington St from 
North St to Wesley. Crawford Contracting was the sole and confirmed low and most responsive bid, 
submitting a bid in the amount of $1,150,179.70. 
 
To fund this project, the city has been working with the developer of the property at the southwest corner 
of Washington St and Wesley Dr to obtain funding from a Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) 
through the MI State Housing Development Authority (MSHDA).  Unfortunately, due to time constraints 
from the developer, it has been determined that the CDBG funds would not be a viable funding source for 
this project.  The developer is currently working with MSHDA to find another funding source to fund the 
project. 
 
A resolution for rejecting the bid proposal from Crawford Contracting for the Washington Park Utility 
Extension Project is included for your consideration. 
  
 
FISCAL IMPACTS:  
 
None. 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: Resolution, Washington Park Utility Extension Project Bid Rejection 
 MSHDA Letter 
 
 
MASTER PLAN IMPLEMENTATION GOALS: 

 
 
 
 



RESOLUTION NO.  
 

AUTHORIZING THE REJECTION OF BID PROPOSAL FOR  
THE WASHINGTON PARK UTILITY EXTENSION PROJECT 

 
WHEREAS, the city of Owosso, Shiawassee County, Michigan, sought bid proposals to perform 
street improvements along Wesley Drive, install sanitary sewer and water main along Wesley 
Drive, and install water main along N. Washington Street as set forth in the contract documents 
for the Washington Park Utility Extension Project; and 
 
WHEREAS, one bid proposal was received from Crawford Contracting; and 
 
WHEREAS, the city submitted an application for Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) 
funds to perform said improvements through the MI State Housing Development Authority 
(MSHDA); and 
 
WHEREAS, due to constraints from the developer of the Washington Park Project, CDBG funds 
were determined not to be a viable funding source for the project; and 
 
WHEREAS, it is recommended the bid proposal be rejected due to lack of funding to complete 
the project. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Owosso, Shiawassee 
County, Michigan that: 
 

FIRST: it has heretofore determined that it is advisable, necessary, and in the public 
interest to reject the Washington Park Utility Extension Project bid proposal 
received from Crawford Contracting due to a lack of funding for the project. 

 
 



 

 

 
 
 
August 8, 2025 
 
 
 
Tanya S. Bucklew  
Planning & Building Director 
City of Owosso 
301 W Main Street 
Owosso, MI 48867 
 
 
Subject: Confirmation of Removal from Funding Consideration 
 
Dear Tanya Buckelew: 
 
Thank you for your communication dated August 1, 2025, requesting confirmation of removal from 
consideration for CDBG funding. 
 
This letter serves as formal acknowledgment that the designation memo issued on April 9, 2025—
which set aside funds for the infrastructure project at Washington Park, contingent upon submission 
of a full application by September 17, 2025—has been rescinded. As a result, your organization has 
been withdrawn from the application process, and no further action is required on your part. 
 
Based on our understanding, the CDBG timeline did not align with local constraints and would have 
necessitated a choice-limiting action prior to completion of the project’s environmental review. 
Consequently, CDBG was determined not to be a viable funding source. 
 
We appreciate the time and effort your team dedicated to the preliminary stages of this process and 
wish you continued success in your future endeavors. Should you choose to pursue similar 
opportunities, we welcome your participation. 
 
Please don’t hesitate to reach out if you have any questions or need additional documentation. 
 
Best regards, 
 
Chris Lussier 
CDBG State Administrative Manager 
Michigan State Housing Development Authority (MSHDA) 



 
MEMORANDUM 

 
 

301 W. MAIN    OWOSSO, MICHIGAN 48867-2958    WWW.CI.OWOSSO.MI.US 
 
 

 
 
DATE: August 18, 2025 
 
TO: Mayor Teich and the Owosso City Council 
  
FROM: Ryan E. Suchanek, Director of Public Services & Utilities 
 
SUBJECT: WWTP Secondary Clarifier Project Change Order #3 
 
 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
Approval of increased payment for construction work by RCL Construction Co., Inc. (Sanford, MI) 
for the WWTP Secondary Clarifier project in the amount of $73,579.00.  
 
 
BACKGROUND:  
 
The Wastewater Treatment Plant has two existing rectangular clarifiers originally installed in 
1930s for primary clarification. The clarifiers are only designed to handle average day loading, 
they do not meet depth requirements for secondary treatment, and are in very poor condition. 
 
One new circular clarifier will be constructed and sized to one half the maximum day. It will be 
installed east of the existing rectangular clarifier and connected into existing site piping. Electrical, 
SCADA, and site lighting will be connected in the main plant building. The existing rectangular 
clarifiers will remain in service for wet weather events and redundancy. The existing drying beds 
will need to be removed during construction and two new drying beds will be installed to the south 
of the proposed clarifier. 
 
Key components of the clarifiers have reached or are beyond the end of their useful lives. The 
proposed project is intended to address the critical clarifiers’ issues of aging infrastructure at the 
WWTP, and increase the longevity of the WWTP. 
 
City Council previously approved the start to this project at its regular scheduled meeting held on 
November 6, 2023. 
 
On June 17, 2024, the City received bids for the WWTP Secondary Clarifier Project. Base Bid 
plus Alternate 3 ranged from $5,773,100 to $6,689,000. 
 
On July 15, 2024, City Council approved the low responsive bid from RCL Construction Co., Inc. 
(Sanford, MI) for the WWTP Secondary Clarifier in the amount of $5,773,100.00. 
 
On November 4, 2024, City Council approved Change Order #1, which targeted efficiencies in 

 
 
 
 



order to combine and save on both work (mobilization, labor, equipment, and etc.) and 
materials/items as to prep and prevent the need to rework items and areas on future work. 
Ultimately to save and reduce long range costs. Including the Drying Bed Drain Line, which 
includes: 

• Revising fence and asphalt demolition and restoration limits north end of site along Drying 
Bed Drain Line. 

• Upsize Drying Bed Drain Line to be 18” PVC SDR26 pipe. Revise routing for drain line 
and add Sanitary Manhole-202. Revise slopes and downstream tie-in elevation of drain 
line. 

 
On January 21, 2025, City Council approved Change Order #2, which included the addition of: 

• Replacing existing warn out gates, $93,685.00: 
o Replace Gate #1 with slide gate/stern 
o Replace Gate #2 with slide gate/T-handle 
o Replace 1 plate with face mounted stop plates. 

• Adding clarifier tank drain yard piping, $23,984.00: 
o Adding 8” tank drain 
o Revising 6” sludge pipe exiting Secondary Clarifier 

• Adding video surveillance back in (as shown in WWTP Phase 1), $163,564.00 
 
In an effort to find ways to help offset these additional costs, we’ve worked with the contractor to 
reduce costs in other areas, such as: 

• Revise retaining wall, ($31,375.00): 
o Remove portion of the retaining wall, and replace with geo-fabric and heavy 

limestone. 
o Bury remaining wall to the south at maximum 3:1 slope. 

• Revise spoil disposal, ($50,120.00): 
o Excavated soils from the clarifier to remain onsite, graded with topsoil and 

seed/mulch. 
 
The net change from modifications of Change Order #2: 

• Increase of $199,738.00 
• Zero (0) additional days 

 
Recently, as part of the Secondary Clarifier Rehabilitation Project, three items have been 
identified that require a change order to the original contract with RCL Construction: 

• Painting of Pump Room Ceiling – This task was not included in the original Phase I project 
scope but is recommended at this time while painters are mobilized for the clarifier work. 
Painting the 45 year old concrete planks that form the tertiary pump room ceiling/roof will 
help extend their lifespan by binding together deteriorating areas. 

• Installation of Gate in Primary Wet Well – Adding this gate will create a new process design 
feature, allowing the plant to operate in multiple configurations, particularly benefiting 
operation of the Nitrification Towers during summer months when permit limits are most 
stringent. This work will involve coring a hole in the wall between the primary and 
secondary wells and installing a gate to allow the water to be separated or mixed as 
needed. 

• Increase Size of SG-1 to fit over 36” Pipe – A gate is needed to prevent water from entering 
a dead-end pipe installed from the new secondary clarifier toward the location of a future 
clarifier. The original gate was sized for 30" pipe, but due to the actual configuration and 
installation, a larger gate is required to properly fit over a 36" pipe. 

 
 



Change Order #3 Costs: 
$12,070.00 – Pump Room Ceiling 
$  2,355.00 – Slide Gate Size Change 
$59,154.00 – Wet Well Slide Gate 
$73,579.00 – Grand Total 
 
Change Order #3 Schedule Change: 

• Increase of 210 Days – Specific to Slide Gate Size Change 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACTS:  
 
The project is funded by the CWSRF, with the additional costs of $73,579.00.  
Final expenses in the amount of $6,122,417.00 shall be paid from wastewater operating fund and 
2024 SRF Bond funds. 
 
 
 
Document originated by:  Ryan E. Suchanek, Director of Public Services & Utilities 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: (1) Resolution 
 (2) Change Order 
  
  



RESOLUTION NO.  
 

AUTHORIZING CHANGE ORDER NO. 3 
TO THE CONTRACT BETWEEN THE CITY OF OWOSSO AND 

RCL CONSTRUCTION., INC.  
FOR THE WWTP SECONDARY CLARIFIER PROJECT 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, Michigan, approved a contract with RCL 
Construction Co., Inc., on July 15, 2024 for the construction and installation of the Secondary 
Clarifier equipment, known as the Wastewater Treatment Plant (WWTP) Secondary Clarifier 
Project, an approved 2024 SRF planned project; and 
 
WHEREAS, the project is now underway and a change order is necessary to reconcile contract 
work and supplies to be used. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Owosso, Shiawassee 
County, Michigan that: 
 

FIRST: it has heretofore determined that it is advisable, necessary and in the public 
interest to amend the Wastewater Treatment Plant (WWTP) Secondary Clarifier 
Project contract with RCL Construction Co., Inc. to increase the contract amount 
for a resized gate, installation of an additional gate, and painting of the pump 
room ceiling. 

 
SECOND: the Mayor and City Clerk are instructed and authorized to sign the document 

substantially in form attached as Change Order No. 3 in the amount of 
$73,579.00; an increase to the Contract for Services between the City of Owosso 
and RCL Construction Co., Inc., revising the total current contract amount from 
$6,048,838.00 to $6,122,417.00. 

 
THIRD: the Accounts Payable department is authorized to pay RCL Construction Co., 

Inc. for work satisfactorily completed up to the revised contract amount of 
$6,122,417.00. 

 
FOURTH: the above expenses shall be paid from the Wastewater Fund, and SRF Bond 

Funds 

















 
MEMORANDUM 

 
 

   301 W. MAIN     OWOSSO, MICHIGAN 48867-2958    WWW.CI.OWOSSO.MI.US 
 
   

DATE: August 18, 2025 
 
TO: Mayor Teich and Owosso City Council 
  
FROM: Ryan E. Suchanek, Director of Public Services & Utilities 
 
SUBJECT: Automatic Meter Reading System (AMR) - Maintenance Renewals 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
Approval of an evergreen purchase order with Aclara of St. Louis, Missouri for maintenance 
renewals, specific to the City's Automatic Meter Reading System (AMR).      
 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
The original agreement that was approved by City Council on March 20, 2017, is what is 
considered an evergreen contract. An evergreen contract is a type of agreement that automatically 
renews for a new term after the initial period expires, unless either party provides notice to 
terminate it. This means the contract continues indefinitely until one party takes action to end it. 
In Attachment 1 to Master Agreement, specifically Exhibit D - Maintenance Agreement, where it 
states: 
"2. Term of Agreement. Subject to the termination provisions set forth below, this Agreement shall 
become effective as of the Effective Date.  Maintenance Services shall begin upon Delivery of the 
Licensed Software; and shall continue in full force and effect for an initial term of one (1) year 
(“Initial Term”).  Upon expiration of the Initial Term, this Agreement shall automatically renew 
for successive Renewal Periods, unless sooner terminated by either Aclara or Customer as 
provided for in this Agreement." 
 
Additionally, In Attachment 1 to Master Agreement, Exhibit D - Maintenance Agreement, 
specifically 5. Payment and Charges, where it states: 
"B. Billing Rate. The charge for the Service Level selected by the Customer and defined herein 
shall be at the annual Fee as identified in Schedule J, Level of Maintenance Services Selected 
hereof during the Initial Term of this Agreement. The annual Fee shall not be subject to 
adjustment during the Initial Term. Thereafter, during any subsequent Renewal Period, the Fee 
shall be subject to adjustment [not to exceed five percent (5%)] at the commencement of each 
Renewal Period. Customer will receive a Renewal Letter in the form of Attachment 1, providing 
30 days notice of the adjusted Fee as set forth above.  Said Renewal Letter and the terms 
contained therein shall be made a part of this Agreement." 
 
The current maintenance renewals for FY2025-26: 
$20,475.00 - AclaraOne Support 
$     753.00 - Star Programmer 

 
 
 
 



 
 
 
Every year after the City should expect an annual 5% increase to each. 
 
Thus, staff is requesting an evergreen purchase order, and including an annual 5% increase. An 
evergreen purchase order is a type of purchase order that automatically renews after its initial term, 
similar to an evergreen contract. It remains in effect until one of the parties involved provides 
notice to terminate it. Evergreen purchase orders are often used for ongoing services or supplies 
where a consistent need exists. 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACTS:  
 
Automatic Meter Reading system maintenance renewals will be funded from the Water Fund 
591.200.818.000 and Sewer Fund 590.200.818.000.  
 
 
Attachments:  (1) Resolution 
            (2) Aclara Maintenance Renewals Letter 
  (3) Aclara Maintenance Renewals Invoice 



 
RESOLUTION NO. 

 
APPROVAL OF EVERGREEN PURCHASE ORDER 

WITH ACLARA OF ST. LOUIS, MISSOURI 
FOR AUTOMATIC METER READING MAINTENANCE RENEWALS 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, Michigan, entered into a contract for the installation 
of an automatic meter reading (AMR) Fixed Network Administrator system with Aclara Technologies LLC 
with the adoption of Resolution No. 37-2017 on March 20, 2017; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City and Director of Public Services & Utilities sees the need to pay the ongoing annual 
maintenance renewals, as per the original approved contract agreement.  
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, 
Michigan that: 
 

FIRST: it has heretofore determined that it is advisable, necessary and in the public interest to 
issue an evergreen purchase order with Aclara Technologies LLC of St. Louis, Missouri. 

 
SECOND: the accounts payable department is authorized to submit payment to Aclara Technologies 

LLC of St. Louis, Missouri for the first year in the amount of $21,228.00, and increase by 
5% each year thereafter for annual AMR maintenance renewals.   

 
THIRD: the above expenses shall be paid from the Water Fund 591.200.818.000 and Sewer 

Fund 590.200.818.000. 
 
  

 



 
77 Westport Plaza 
Suite 500 
St. Louis, MO  63146 
www.Aclara.com 
 

 

 

 

 
 
 
April 16, 2025 
 
 
 
 

Ryan Suchanek 

ryan.suchanek@ci.owosso.mi.us 
 
 
Owosso. City of   
301 West Main 
Owosso, MI 08867  
 
 
 
Subject: Owosso MI June 2025 Renewal of Aclara Maintenance Agreement 
 
 
 
Your Aclara Maintenance Agreement will renew June 1, 2025 for an additional twelve months through May 31, 2026 
(“Renewal Period”).  The adjusted annual maintenance fee for this Renewal Period is as follows: 
 

 
AclaraOne Support Annual 5% included $20,475 

Star Programmer Annual 5% included $753 
   

 

 Total Due $21,228 
This is not an invoice! 

 
If a PO or PO number is required on your invoice, please email it to AclaraOrdersContracts@hubbell.com within the next 
10 days. If no PO or PO number is received, you will be invoiced for the new maintenance amount. All PO’s must be 
addressed to: Aclara Technologies LLC c/o Hubbell Incorporated,  40 Waterview Drive,  Shelton, CT 06484 
. 
Except as noted above, the Aclara Maintenance Agreement and all of the terms, conditions and provisions thereof shall 
remain in full force and effect. 
  
If you have any questions, please contact: Carmen Tolbert ctolbert@hubbell.com or 440-528-7165. 
 
 
Best Regards, 
 

 
 Terry Baker 

Sales Operations Specialist 
office (314) 895.7239 
 

https://aclara.lightning.force.com/lightning/r/0031E00002WbcziQAB/view
https://aclara.lightning.force.com/lightning/r/0031E00002WbcziQAB/view
mailto:ryan.suchanek@ci.owosso.mi.us
mailto:AclaraOrdersContracts@hubbell.com
mailto:ctolbert@hubbell.com






 
 
 
 
 
  301 W. MAIN   OWOSSO, MICHIGAN 48867-2958  · (989) 725-0570  ·  FAX (989) 723-8854 
 
 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
 
DATE:   August 12, 2025 
 
TO:   Owosso City Council     
 
FROM:   Brad Barrett, Finance Director 
  
SUBJECT: Annual Workers’ Compensation Insurance Policy Renewal 
 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Recommend payment to Michigan Municipal League (MML) Workers’ Compensation 
Fund in the amount of $165,285 for workers’ compensation insurance premium for the 
coverage period of July 1, 2025 to June 30, 2026. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
The City of Owosso is a member of the MML Workers’ Compensation Fund, which 
provides the city with workers’ compensation coverage.  
 
The city receives four invoices from MML Workers’ Compensation Fund throughout the 
fiscal year. The Finance Department is requesting City Council to approve the total 
premium amount, so a purchase order can be created for this annual expense. 
 
FISCAL IMPACTS: 
 
An expense of $165,285 will be charged to various funds as outlined in the approved 
Fiscal Year Budget ending 6-30-2026.  

 
 
 



RESOLUTION NO.  
 

AUTHORIZING PAYMENT OF ANNUAL INSURANCE PREMIUM WITH  
MICHIGAN MUNICIPAL LEAGUE WORKERS’ COMPENSATION FUND  

 
WHEREAS, the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, Michigan, is a member of the Michigan 
Municipal League Workers’ Compensation Fund; and 
 
WHEREAS, MML Workers’ Compensation Fund is a nonprofit self-insurance pool owned and 
governed by its members; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Owosso will be provided workers’ compensation insurance coverage for a 
period of July 1, 2025 to June 30, 2026 by MML Workers’ Compensation Fund in exchange for a 
premium; and 
 
WHEREAS, cooperative purchasing is an exception to competitive bidding per Section 2-345 of 
the City of Owosso Code of Ordinances. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Owosso, Shiawassee 
County, Michigan that: 
 

FIRST: it has heretofore determined that it is advisable, necessary and in the public 
interest to remain a member of and seek annual workers’ compensation 
coverage from the Michigan Municipal League. 

 
SECOND: the accounts payable department is authorized to pay MML Workers’ 

Compensation Fund premium for annual coverage estimated at $165,285. 
 
THIRD: the above expense shall be paid from various funds as outlined in the approved 

FYE 6-30-2026 budget as identified under the account code 719.000 – workers’ 
compensation. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
  



 
MEMORANDUM 

 
 

301 W. MAIN    OWOSSO, MICHIGAN 48867-2958    WWW.CI.OWOSSO.MI.US 
 
 

 
 
DATE: August 18, 2025 
 
TO: Mayor Teich and the Owosso City Council 
  
FROM: Ryan E. Suchanek, Director of Public Services & Utilities 
 
SUBJECT: WWTP – Bulk Polymer Havaflock 560 – FY2025-26 
 
 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
Authorization to enter into a sole-source purchase agreement with Haviland Products Company of 
Grand Rapids, Michigan for bulk polymer necessary for condition wastewater sludge. 
 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
As part of the Wastewater Treatment Plant (WWTP) Solids Handling Project, new equipment was 
installed to dewater the liquid sludge generated by the plant settling processes.  Part of the 
dewatering process involves adding a polymer solution to the sludge prior to injection into the 
dewatering equipment.    
 
WWTP staff sought out polymer suppliers to provide us with product recommendations based on 
bench tests.  These tests were conducted in Summer/Fall 2023, with polymers from three suppliers:  
Haviland Products Company (Grand Rapids, MI), Brenntag (Reading, PA) and Polydyne 
(Riceboro, GA).  The results indicated the most cost-effective product would be Havaflok 560 
from Haviland Products Company.  While it did not have the lowest cost per lb., the bench testing 
showed a lower expected usage rate.  Thus it was decided this would be the polymer we would use 
to start up the new process, and evaluate it over time under the varying conditions of the sludge. 
 
At this point, the sludge process has been operational since March of 2024.  The dry sludge 
produced is of exceptional quality and results in a savings of approximately $200 per load of sludge 
to the landfill. 
 
Haviland Products Company is a sole source provider for a polymer called Havaflock 560.  
Request waiver of purchasing policy formal bid requirements in order to initiate immediate 
procurement upon approval and authorization.  The purpose of this polymer is to condition 
wastewater sludge for dewatering at the Wastewater Treatment Plant. 
 
 
  

 
 
 
 



 
 
FISCAL IMPACTS:  
 
Estimated $39,050.80 expense for this fiscal year.  Funded from the Operations & Maintenance 
Budget account 599-548-743.200.  
 
 
 
Document originated by: Ryan E. Suchanek, Director of Public Services & Utilities 
 
 
Attachments:   (1) Polymer Price Quotation 
                       (2) Resolution 



RESOLUTION NO.  
 

AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF A SOLE-SOURCE PURCHASE ORDER 
FOR HAVAFLOCK 560 WITH HAVILAND PRODUCTS COMPANY  

 
WHEREAS, the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, Michigan, requires Havaflock 560 in bulk 
deliveries for use in conditioning wastewater sludge for dewatering at the Wastewater 
Treatment Plant; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Owosso has determined that Haviland Products Company of Grand 
Rapids, Michigan is the only firm qualified to provide the Havaflock 560 product for conditioning 
wastewater sludge for dewatering at the Wastewater Treatment Plant; and 
 
WHEREAS, waiver of the purchasing policy formal Bid requirements is requested for this sole-
source purchase, in order to initiate procurement upon approval and authorization.   
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Owosso, Shiawassee 
County, Michigan that: 
 

FIRST: it has theretofore determined that it is advisable, necessary and in the public 
interest to purchase Havaflock 560 from Haviland Products Company, at the 
price of $2.112 per pound (plus delivery fee) with an estimated annual usage of 
23,000 pounds. However, with current inventory on hand, only eight (8) additional 
totes are anticipated to be needed for the rest of the current fiscal year. 

 
SECOND: the accounts payable department is authorized to submit payment to Haviland 

Products Company of Grand Rapids, Michigan, in the estimated amount of 
$39,050.80, which may be exceeded based on usage, actual need, and pricing 
fluctuations for FY2025-2026.    

 
THIRD: the above expenses shall be paid from the WWTP fund following delivery, and 

chargeable to account 599-548-743.200. 
 

 
 



 
 

August 12, 2025 
 
 
 

Owosso WWTP 
Havaflok 560 
2300/lb. tote 
$2.112/lb. 
$4,857.60 
 
$95.00 Transportation fee 
$4,952.60 
 
Thank You 
 
 Haviland Products Company 
Darlene Devereaux 
  

  
 
 
 
 
  

  

  

  

  
 
 
 
 
Haviland Products Company 

Haviland Products Company | 421 Ann St. N.W. Grand Rapids, MI 49504 
Havilandusa.com - P 800.456.1134 - F 616.361.9772 



Note: Prices subject to change without notice. Prices at time of 

shipment will prevail.

Minimum order $200, orders under $400 will be assessed a 

$50 handling charge.

Transportation Surcharge applies to all orders .

1069782

OWOSSO, CITY OF (989) 725-0572Phone:

Attn: LUCAIS ALLEN

301 W. MAIN ST.

OWOSSO,MI 48867-

SALE AGENT ID

DATE

01/07/2025

Net 30 Days

TERMS

DARLENE DEVEREAUX

EFFECTIVE DATE FROM QUANTITY TO QUANTITY BILLING UNIT PRICEU/MU/MUNIT PRICE

Quotation

THIS SALE IS SUBJECT TO THE HAVILAND ENTERPRISES, INC. TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF SALE TO CUSTOMERS, AVAILABLE AT 

https://havilandusa.nyc3.digitaloceanspaces.com/staging/Havi land_Buyer_Customer_Terms_and_Condit ions_2021-09-24-184202_mtpb.pdf, 

WHICH ARE BY THIS REFERENCE HEREBY INCORPORATED HEREIN. A SEPARATE HARD COPY WILL BE PROVIDED UPON 

REQUEST. EXECUTION OF THE TERMS OF THIS SALE IS A SPECIFIC REPRESENTATION THAT THE CUSTOMER HAS READ, 

UNDERSTOOD AND AGREED TO THE REFERENCED TERMS.

H000196-TP33C 330.00 Gal Tote

PRODUCT: Bleach - Sod Hypochlorite-NSF

400.00 USD Returnable Container Deposit

01/08/2025  0.00 1.00  2.6500Gal 2.6500 Gal *
11/01/2024  0.00 1.00  2.6422 Gal 2.6422 Gal

H007161-TTVSP1 2,300.00 lb Tote

PRODUCT: Havaflok 560

09/15/2024  0.00 1.00  2.1120 lb 2.1120 lb

H000155-BG50L1 50.00 lb Bag

PRODUCT: Sodium Metabisulfite FG

07/03/2024  0.00 1.00  0.6000 lb 0.6000 lb

Page 1 of 1

TJGuysky
Highlight

TJGuysky
Highlight



 
MEMORANDUM 

 
 

301 W. MAIN    OWOSSO, MICHIGAN 48867-2958    WWW.CI.OWOSSO.MI.US 
 
 

 
  
DATE: August 18, 2025 
 
TO: Owosso City Council 
  
FROM: Clayton Wehner, Director of Engineering 
 
SUBJECT: 2026 Sanitary Sewer Manhole Lining Project – Purchasing Cooperative of 

America (PCA) Contract # OD-347-21 
  
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
Approval of the quote submitted by Advanced Rehabilitation Technology, Ltd. of Bryan, Ohio, in 
the amount of not to exceed $100,000.00 for the 2026 Sanitary Sewer Manhole Lining Project. 
  
 
BACKGROUND:  
 
During the 2010s, the city inventoried and inspected its sanitary sewer manholes.  The inspections 
checked for structural defects, infiltration, root intrusion, and other deficiencies.  Throughout the 
last few years, some of the defective manholes have been repaired, but there are still more 
manholes needing work.  Staff desires to continue repairing sanitary sewer manholes via manhole 
lining and the FY2025-2026 budget includes funds to do so.  It is planned to line 20-30 sanitary 
sewer manholes.  Maps with targeted sanitary sewer manholes are attached. 
 
Waiver of the competitive bidding process in accordance with the City of Owosso Purchasing 
Policy is hereby recommended, in order to take advantage of Purchasing Cooperative of America 
(PCA) Contract # OD-347-21 to award a purchase order to Advanced Rehabilitation Technology 
(ART) in an amount not to exceed $100,000.00.   
 
 
FISCAL IMPACTS:  
 
Funds will be expended from the Sanitary Sewer Fund Account No. 590-901-793.000-
SEWERLINE and other funds as appropriate. 
 
 
 
Attachments: (1) Memo 
 (2) Advance Rehabilitation Technology Quote 
 (3) Maps 

 
 
 
 



RESOLUTION NO.  
 

AUTHORIZING PURCHASE ORDER WITH 
ADVANCED REHABILITATION TECHNOLOGY 

FOR THE 2026 SANITARY SEWER MANHOLE LINING PROJECT 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, Michigan, has budgeted from the Sanitary Sewer 
Fund to repair defective sanitary sewer manholes; and  
 
WHEREAS, the City of Owosso may waive competitive bidding requirements when purchasing in 
coordination with another municipality; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Owosso Director of Engineering has requested a quote from Advanced 
Rehabilitation Technology utilizing their Purchasing Cooperative of America (PCA) Contract # OD-347-21 
and recommends hiring Advance Rehabilitation Technology to perform the 2026 Sanitary Sewer Manhole 
Lining Project. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, 
Michigan that:  
 

FIRST: it has heretofore determined that it is advisable, necessary and in the public interest to 
waive competitive bidding requirements and authorize a purchase order with Advance 
Rehabilitation Technology for the 2026 Sanitary Sewer Manhole Lining Project utilizing 
Purchasing Cooperative of America (PCA) Contract # # OD-347-21, in the amount of not 
to exceed $100,000.00. 

 
SECOND: the Accounts Payable department is authorized to submit payment to Advanced 

Rehabilitation Technology in the amount of not to exceed $100,000.00. 
 

THIRD: the above expenses shall be paid from sanitary sewer account no. 590-901-793.000-
SEWERLINE. 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 



Owosso 2026 MH Lining

Job Location: Owosso MI

Owosso, City of

301 West Main Street

Owosso, MI 48867

USA

Clayton Wehner

clayton.wehner@ci.owosso.mi.us

Reference: 20250805-090841190

Quote created: August 5, 2025

Quote valid till: September 4, 2025

Advanced Rehabilitation Technology

525 Winzeler Drive

Bryan, Ohio 43506

United States

Prepared by:

Alex Lantz

Business Development | Michigan & Northern Indiana

alex@artcoatingtech.com

+14197991308

PRODUCTS & SERVICES UNIT QUANTITY UNIT PRICE TOTAL

OBIC Multi Layer System 4' DIA Manhole 310 $321.00 $99,510.00

OBIC Multi-Layer Liner System 6' DIA Manhole 0 $480.00 $0.00

OBIC Multi Layer System 8' DIA Manhole 0 $642.00 $0.00

Benches 0 $1,500.00 $0.00

Traffic Control (Per Day) 0 $2,000.00 $0.00

Total $99,510.00



Not To Exceed $100,000.00

PO to be under

Purchasing Cooperative of America

Contract Number:

PCA OD-347-21

The OBIC Multi Layer Liner System Provides a 10 Year Labor & Material Limited Warranty

Lining of 48" Manholes of Approximately 310 Vertical Feet.

@ $321.00 per vertical Foot.

Total: $99,510.00

The OBIC Multi Layer Liner System Provides a 10 Year Labor & Material Limited Warranty

Lining of 60" Manholes

@ $480.00 per vertical Foot.

The OBIC Multi Layer Liner System Provides a 10 Year Labor & Material Limited Warranty

Lining of 72" Manholes

@ $642.00 per vertical Foot.

Bench Pour / Channel Reconstruction

@ $1,500.00 Each

(As needed or directed by customer)

Traffic Control @ $2,000.00 Per Day

(As Needed)

 
 

General Terms and Conditions: 

 

The quoted prices are exclusive of applicable state and local sales taxes.

Payment terms: Net 30 days. Interest may be added to balances outstanding after 30 days.

Pricing is contingent on the work as stated in this proposal. Advanced Rehabilitation Technology (ART) reserves the

right to adjust unit rate and/or overall bid proposal accordingly to account for any changes (increase or decrease)

from this scope.

ART’s bid proposal shall be incorporated into the subcontract agreements. ART will initiate this project upon receipt

of this signed proposal as well as, receipt of a subcontract or purchase order agreeing to this proposal.

Pricing does not include working nights, holidays, or weekends. Additional cost will be required for these situations.

Non-weather-related delays (may include job site not prepared to allow ART to begin; road closures due to

community, city, or private events; traffic control not ready or any work stoppages outside the control of ART) may

result in a $5,000/day mobilization fee.

 

Purchase Order Number: __________________

 

 

Billing Contact Email: _____________________

 

 

CPR Email (when applicable)________________



 

Signature

 

 

Signature Date

Printed name



















 
 

OWOSSO PUBLIC SAFETY 
 
 

202 S. WATER ST.  OWOSSO, MICHIGAN 48867-2958  (989) 725-0580  FAX (989)725-0528 
  

 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
DATE:   August 11, 2025  
 
TO:   City Council 
 
FROM:   Kevin Lenkart 
 Owosso Public Safety Chief 
  
RE:   Request to Purchase Three Stryker Lifepak 35 Monitors  
 
 
Background: 
 
The Owosso Fire Department responds to over 3,000 requests for fire and EMS service annually. 
The State of Michigan MDHHS requires any Fire/EMS department that has provides advanced 
life support (ALS) service with an ambulance or fire apparatus to have a Monitor/Defibrillator on 
each vehicle. The City of Owosso currently has three Monitors/Defibrillators.  
 
Cardiac monitor/defibrillators are therapeutic diagnostic devices which require FDA approval to 
be utilized for human medical assessment and treatment. Medical device technology is complex, 
which requires annual calibration and updates to maintain functionality when used for diagnostic 
level assessments of cardiac patients.  
 
Community Benefit: 
 
The Stryker Lifepak 35 monitors blood pressure, pulse, respiratory rate, oxygen and carbon 
dioxide levels in the blood, the patient’s temperature, the patient’s EKG rhythm, the 12-lead 
EKG and, when needed, the ability to deliver therapeutic electricity to the patient to correct life 
threatening cardiac dysrhythmias.  
 
Recommendation: 
 
Staff is recommending awarding a contract with Stryker for the purchase of three (3) Lifepak 35 
Monitor/Defibrillator, extended warranty, accessories and supply for a total expenditure not to 
exceed $180,083.86. This purchase will replace our current Stryker LP-15 monitors that were 
purchased in 2021.  
 

 
 
 

 



The Savvik Contract was identified as a means to provide the City of Owosso with the best 
pricing for the equipment. This contract was awarded to Stryker as the result of a competitive 
process led by Eagle County, a political subdivision of the State of Colorado, and administered 
by Savvik Purchasing Group. Request For Bid (RFB) # 2024-06.  
 
Stryker has significantly reduced the price by the following: 
 

1. Trade-in value of $24,000.00 for three (3) LP-15 Monitors.  
 

The purchase price includes a 1-year warranty and five years of preventative maintenance 
inspection covering the monitor. This includes annual on-site preventative maintenance, battery 
replacement, Stryker OEM parts, labor and travel expenses for repairs, software upgrades and 
discounts on other accessories and disposables for the LIFEPAK 35.  
 
Upon approval, the lead time for delivery of the equipment is 45-60 days.  
 
The above expense will be paid from the Fire Department equipment fund 101-336-978.000.  
 
  
Master Plan Goals: 3.2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



RESOLUTION NO.  
 

AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF A CONTRACT FOR 
PURCHASE OF THREE STRYKER LIFEPAK 35 MONITOR/DEFIBRILLATORS 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, Michigan, has a Fire Department requiring the use 
of cardiac monitors and defibrillators; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City purchased three (3) Styker Lifepak 15 monitors in 2021, these monitors are reaching 
end of life and Styker has offered a trade-in for our current monitors; and 
 
WHEREAS, Owosso Fire/EMS staff reviewed several Monitors/Defibrillators, the Stryker Lifepak 35 
Monitor/ Defibrillator was chosen as the top performer. Due to Stryker’s proven track record, superior 
technology and durability. Additionally staff evaluated the best pricing options for the purchase of the 
Stryker Liefepak 35 Monitors/Defibrillators and staff recommends using the Savvik Buying Group 
Cooperative Public Agreement. This approach is most advantageous and economical purchasing process 
for the city. The Stryker Monitor/Defibrillator is also compatible with other medical equipment being used 
by the Fire Department; and 
 
WHEREAS, Staff is recommending awarding a contract with Stryker for the purchase of three (3) Lifepak 
35 Monitor/Defibrillator, including extended warranty, accessories and supply for a total expenditure not to 
exceed $180,083.86; and 
 
WHEREAS, Staff requests waiver of the competitive bidding requirements as the Savvik Contract is a 
cooperative contract.  This contract was awarded to Stryker as the result of a competitive process led by 
Eagle County, a political subdivision of the State of Colorado, and administered by Savvik Purchasing 
Group. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, 
Michigan that: 
 

FIRST: it has theretofore determined that it is advisable, necessary and in the public interest 
to waive competitive bidding requirements, purchase three (3) Stryker Lifepak 35 
Monitor/Defibrillators, accessories and supplies in the amount of $180,083.86 
utilizing Savvik Purchasing Group Contract No. (RFB) 2024-06. 

 
SECOND: the accounts payable department is hereby authorized to pay the vendor upon 

satisfactory receipt of the equipment. 
 
THIRD: the expense will be paid from the Fire Department equipment fund 101-336-

978.000.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF OWOSSO, 
SHIAWASSEE COUNTY, MICHIGAN THIS 18TH DAY OF AUGUST 2025. 
 
AYES: 
NAYS: 
ABSTENTIONS:   



ABSENT: 
 
 CITY OF OWOSSO    ATTEST: 
 
 
 
____________________________  ___________________________ 
Robert Teich, Mayor    Amy K. Kirkland, City Clerk  
 
 



 1 

  
                                
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 AGREEMENT 
 

This Agreement is effective November 8, 2024, by and between Eagle County Health Service District, 
dba Eagle County Paramedic Services (the “Principal Procurement Agency”), Public Safety Association 
Inc (the “Company”) and Stryker Sales LLC, through its Medical Division. (the “Supplier”). 
 
RECITALS 

A. The Company, on behalf of the Principal Procurement Agency, issued a Request for Bid for 
Medical Equipment, RFB #2024-06 (“RFB”), soliciting bids for the supply and support of 
Medical Equipment such as: Automated External Defibrillators, Cardiac 
Monitors/Defibrillators, Automated CPR Devices, Ventilators, Video Laryngoscopes, Other 
Medical Equipment, Training, Accessories, Service Plans and Financing 

 
B. Supplier duly submitted proposal in response to the RFB (“RFB Response”), which outlines 

Supplier’s agreement to or exceptions with the RFB. 
 

C. The Principal Procurement Agency, Company and Supplier have negotiated certain amendments 
or exceptions to the RFB and RFB Response, and desire to enter into this Agreement with the 
intent of memorializing the final terms of the parties’ agreement. 

 
AGREEMENT 
 
In consideration of the provisions, representations, warranties, covenants and agreements contained in 
this Agreement, the parties agree to the terms set forth in this Agreement. 
 

1. Agreement: The parties agree that this Agreement, together with the RFB, the Notice to Bidders 
dated and published on August 22, 2024 and August 29, 2024, the RFB Response, together with 
all documents specifically referred to therein, as gathered and compiled in that certain binder 
entitled “Eagle County Paramedic Services, Public Safety Association Inc and Stryker Sales 
LLC, through its Medical Division” attached hereto (together, all such documents shall be 
referred to herein as the “Contract Documents”), shall constitute the binding agreement 
between the Principal Procurement Agency, Company and Supplier for Supplier’s provision of 
products and services to the Company pursuant to the terms therein.  

 
2. Entire Agreement: The parties agree that this Agreement, together with the Contract Documents, 

represent the only agreement among the parties concerning the subject matter thereof and 
supersedes all prior agreements, whether written or oral, relating thereto. 

 
3. Modifications: No purported amendment, modification or waiver of any provision in the 

Agreement and the Contract Documents shall be binding unless set forth in a written document 
signed by all parties (in case of amendment and modifications) or by the party charged thereby 
(in the case of waivers). Any waiver shall be limited to the provision hereof and the circumstance 
or event specifically made subject hereto and shall not be deemed a waiver of any other term 
hereof or of the same circumstance or event upon any recurrence thereof. 
 

4. Term of Agreement: This agreement is set to expire November 8, 2027. 



 2 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused the Agreement to be executed on November 8, 2024. 

 
 
 

Eagle County Health Service District 
dba, Eagle County Paramedic Services  
(the “Principal Procurement Agency”) 

 
 

By:      
 

Printed Name: Steve Vardaman 
Its: Operations Manager 

 
 
 

Public Safety Association Inc 
 (the “Company”) 

 
                                                                                        By:  

 
Printed: Dane Meyer 

Its:  President 
 
 

 
Stryker Sales LLC, through its Medical Division 

(the “Supplier”) 
 

By: __________________________________ 
 

Printed Name: ________________________________  
 

Its: _____________________________ 

Kathryn Janecke

Sr. Director, Commercial Operations



Quote Summary

Delivery Address
 

Sold To - Shipping
 

 

Bill To Account
 

Name:
 

OWOSSO PUBLIC SAFETY
BLDG
 

Name:
 

OWOSSO PUBLIC SAFETY
BLDG
 

Name:
 

OWOSSO FIRE DEPT 
 

Account #:
 

20074113
 

Account #:
 

20074113
 

Account #:
 

20075709 
 

Address:
 

202 S WATER ST
 

Address:
 

 202 S WATER ST
 

Address:
 

 
 

 

OWOSSO 
 

 

OWOSSO
 

 

 
 

 

Michigan 48867-2920 
 

 

Michigan 48867-2920
 

 

 
 

Equipment Products:

#
 

Product
 

Description
 

Qty
 

Sell Price
 

Total
 

1.0 
 

70335-000042 
 

LP35,EN-US,MAS-SP/CO,MED-CO2,SUN-NIBP,12L,WIFI/
CELL/LN/CPRIN,STD,BT

 

3
 

$50,481.29
 

$151,443.87
 

2.0 
 

41335-000001 
 

LIFEPAK 35 AC Power Adapter Kit
 

3
 

$1,500.00
 

$4,500.00
 

3.0 
 

11140-000131 
 

AC Power Cord (North America, hospital grade)
 

3
 

$64.80
 

$194.40
 

4.0 
 

11996-000093 
 

Pediatric QUIK-COMBO RTS pacing/defibrillation/ECG
Electrodes With EDGE System Technology

 

3
 

$36.00
 

$108.00
 

5.0 
 

11996-000091 
 

Adult QUIK-COMBO pacing/defibrillation/ECG Electrodes With
EDGE System Technology

 

9
 

$30.00
 

$270.00
 

6.0 
 

11996-000519 
 

LNCS-II Reusable rainbow 8-wavelength Adult Sensor
 

3
 

$533.40
 

$1,600.20
 

7.0 
 

11996-000520 
 

LNCS-II Reusable rainbow 8-wavelength Pediatric Sensor
 

3
 

$586.80
 

$1,760.40
 

8.0 
 

11335-000005 
 

LIFEPAK Printer Kit
 

3
 

$1,800.00
 

$5,400.00
 

9.0 
 

11260-000073 
 

Shoulder Strap
 

3
 

$45.00
 

$135.00
 

10.0 
 

11335-000008 
 

LIFEPAK 35 Storage Bag Kit
 

3
 

$360.00
 

$1,080.00
 

11.0 
 

11330-000026 
 

LP35 Docking Station
 

3
 

$1,600.00
 

$4,800.00
 

12.0 
 

11111-000041 
 

LIFEPAK 3-wire extended precordial ECG cable
 

3
 

$72.00
 

$216.00
 

14.0 
 

11996-000536 
 

15-Lead Patient Simulator (QUIK-COMBO)
 

1
 

$599.99
 

$599.99
 

 

Equipment Total:
 

$172,107.86
 

 

   

3 LP35s with Trade In and 6 years Comprehensive
Service
 

   

Quote Number:
 

11044707
 

Remit to:
 

Stryker Sales, LLC
21343 NETWORK PLACE
CHICAGO IL 60673-1213
USA
 

Version:
 

1 
 

   

Prepared For:
 

OWOSSO PUBLIC SAFETY BLDG 
 

Rep:
 

Rebecca McKim
 

 

Attn:  
 

Email:
 

rebecca.mckim@stryker.com
 

 

 
 

Phone Number:
 

(616) 202-8449
 

 

 
 

Mobile:
 

(616) 202-8449
 

       

Quote Date:
 

04/01/2025
 

   

Expiration Date:
 

09/29/2025
 

   

Contract Start:

Contract End:

 

01/06/2025 

01/05/2026 

 

   

1 
 

This is not an Invoice



Trade In Credit:

Product
 

Description
 

Qty
 

Credit Ea.
 

Total Credit
 

TR-LP15H-LP35
 

TRADE IN LP15 V4 HIGH FOR LP35
 

3
 

-$8,000.00
 

-$24,000.00
 

ProCare Products:

#
 

Product
 

Description
 

Qty
 

Sell Price
 

Total
 

 16.1 
 

LIFEPK35-FLD-PRO
 

Lifepak35 for LP35,EN-US,MAS-SP/CO,MED-CO2,SUN-NIBP,12L,WIFI/
CELL/LN/CPRIN,STD,BT 

01/07/2025 - 01/06/2030 

√ Parts, Labor, Travel √ Preventative Maintenance √ Batteries Service 
 

3
 

$9,592.00 
 

$28,776.00 
 

 

ProCare Total:
 

$28,776.00
 

Data Solutions:

#
 

Product
 

Description
 

Qty
 

Sell Price
 

Total
 

 13.0 
 

11150-000020
 

LIFEPAK Cellular Modem, North America
 

3
 

$900.00
 

$2,700.00 
 

 

Data Solutions Total:
 

 $2,700.00
 

Price Totals:
 

   

  Estimated Sales Tax (0.000%):
 

$0.00
 

  Freight/Shipping:
 

$500.00
 

  Grand Total:
 

$180,083.86
 

Comments/Terms/Signatures

 

Comments:
 

 

Please note that only two sizes of BP Cuffs are
included in this ship kit.  We recommend purchasing
a set of Full Bladder BP cuffs from Sensoronics as
they are less sensitive than the half bladder cuffs in
our portfolio.

 

   

3 LP35s with Trade In and 6 years Comprehensive
Service
 

   

Quote Number:
 

11044707
 

Remit to:
 

Stryker Sales, LLC
21343 NETWORK PLACE
CHICAGO IL 60673-1213
USA
 

Version:
 

1 
 

   

Prepared For:
 

OWOSSO PUBLIC SAFETY BLDG 
 

Rep:
 

Rebecca McKim
 

 

Attn:  
 

Email:
 

rebecca.mckim@stryker.com
 

 

 
 

Phone Number:
 

(616) 202-8449
 

 

 
 

Mobile:
 

(616) 202-8449
 

       

Quote Date:
 

04/01/2025
 

   

Expiration Date:
 

09/29/2025
 

   

Contract Start:

Contract End:

 

01/06/2025 

01/05/2026 

 

   

2 
 

This is not an Invoice



 

Prices: In effect for 30 days
 

 

Terms: Net 30 Days
 

 

   

Terms and Conditions: 
Deal Consummation: This is a quote and not a commitment. This quote is subject to final credit, pricing, and documentation
approval. Legal documentation must be signed before your equipment can be delivered. Documentation will be provided upon
completion of our review process and your selection of a payment schedule. Confidentiality Notice: Recipient will not disclose to
any third party the terms of this quote or any other information, including any pricing or discounts, offered to be provided by
Stryker to Recipient in connection with this quote, without Stryker’s prior written approval, except as may be requested by law
or by lawful order of any applicable government agency. A copy of Stryker Medical's terms and conditions can be found at https://
techweb.stryker.com/Terms_Conditions/index.html.

 

   

3 LP35s with Trade In and 6 years Comprehensive
Service
 

   

Quote Number:
 

11044707
 

Remit to:
 

Stryker Sales, LLC
21343 NETWORK PLACE
CHICAGO IL 60673-1213
USA
 

Version:
 

1 
 

   

Prepared For:
 

OWOSSO PUBLIC SAFETY BLDG 
 

Rep:
 

Rebecca McKim
 

 

Attn:  
 

Email:
 

rebecca.mckim@stryker.com
 

 

 
 

Phone Number:
 

(616) 202-8449
 

 

 
 

Mobile:
 

(616) 202-8449
 

       

Quote Date:
 

04/01/2025
 

   

Expiration Date:
 

09/29/2025
 

   

Contract Start:

Contract End:

 

01/06/2025 

01/05/2026 

 

   

3 
 

This is not an Invoice

https://techweb.stryker.com/Terms_Conditions/index.html
https://techweb.stryker.com/Terms_Conditions/index.html


 
 

OWOSSO PUBLIC SAFETY 
 
 

202 S. WATER ST.  OWOSSO, MICHIGAN 48867-2958  (989) 725-0580  FAX (989)725-0528 
  
 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 

DATE:   August 11, 2025   
 
TO:   City Council 
 
FROM:   Kevin Lenkart 
 Chief of Public Safety 
  
RE:   Bid Award – Towing Services 
 
 
 
Background: 
 
In May 2016, all County Police agencies were notified by Shiawassee County Central Dispatch 
that they would need to select a preferred wrecker for no preference towing services. Previously 
Central Dispatch would select a no preference towing service.  
 
The current bid award for towing services expires August 30, 2025.  On July 1, 2025, an RFP 
was submitted to area towing companies requesting prices for no preference towing services. 
City staff sent letters to all Shiawassee County towing companies notifying them of the 
upcoming bid and where to find additional information, i.e., City Website.  Bids were submitted 
and reviewed in July 2025.  
 
Recommendation:  
 
Dick’s Auto, submitted the lowest responsible bid based on the on the prices submitted for the 
various towing fees. Staff recommends that the towing bid be awarded to Dick’s Auto.  
 

 
 
 

 



RESOLUTION NO.  
 

AUTHORIZING A PREFERRED PROVIDER CONTRACT  
FOR NO-PREFERENCE TOWING SERVICES  

TO RICHARD EARL MAURER DBA DICK’S AUTO 
FOR THE PERIOD EXPIRING JUNE 30, 2028 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, Michigan, has a Public Safety Department that in 
the normal course of business requires wrecker services; and 
 
WHEREAS, Shiawassee County Central Dispatch notified all police agencies in Shiawassee County of 
the need to specify a towing service that will provide service in any situation in which no preferred service 
is requested by the vehicle owner(s) or officers involved; and  
 
WHEREAS, the City of Owosso requested bids and it is hereby determined that Richard Earl Maurer DBA 
Dick’s Auto is both qualified to provide such services and has submitted the responsible and responsive 
bid; and 
 
WHEREAS, staff recommends awarding service calls to Dick’s Auto to provide towing services. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, 
Michigan that: 
 

FIRST: it has theretofore determined that it is advisable, necessary and in the public interest to 
award a Preferred Service Provider Contract for No-Preference Towing Services to 
Richard Earl Maurer DBA Dick’s Auto for the period from September 1, 2025 through 
June 30, 2028.  

 
SECOND: the mayor and city clerk are instructed and authorized to sign the document substantially 

in the form attached, Contract for Services between the City of Owosso, Michigan and 
Richard Earl Maurer DBA Dick’s Auto. 

 
THIRD: charges for said services will be directed to the owner(s) of any vehicle towed.  

 
 
 
 
 



 
 

EXHIBIT A 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Contract for Services Between 
 

The City of Owosso 
 

and 
 

Richard Earl Maurer DBA Dick's Auto 
 
 

No-Preference Towing Services 
 
 
 

September 2025 
 

  



CONTRACT 
 
THIS AGREEMENT is made on September 1, 2025 between the CITY OF OWOSSO, a Michigan 
municipal corporation, 301 W. Main Street, Owosso, Michigan 48867 (“city”) and RICHARD EARL 
MAURER DBA DICK'S AUTO (“contractor”), a Michigan company, whose address is 1053 E. M-
21, Owosso, Michigan 48867. 
 
Based upon the mutual promises below, the contractor and the city agree as follows: 
 
ARTICLE I - Scope of work 
The contractor agrees to provide the services listed in the proposal entitled “No-Preference 
Towing Services”, as attached, including all written modifications incorporated into any of the 
documents, which are incorporated as part of this contract: 
  
 Bid documents 
 Bid proposal 
 Contract and exhibits 
 Bonds 
 General conditions 
 Standard specifications 
 Detailed specifications 
  
ARTICLE II - The Contract Sum 
(A) The city shall pay to the contractor for the performance of the contract, in the unit prices as 
given in the proposal not to exceed fifty dollars ($50.00) for the contract year 2025-2026; sixty 
dollars ($60.00) for the contract year 2026-2027; and seventy dollars ($70.00) for the contract 
year 2027-2028 for towing of Light Trucks/Cars/Vans within the Owosso Area. Mileage charge is 
zero dollars ($0.00) per mile for all contract years listed above with no charge for hourly, flat bed 
or winch (if applicable) within the Owosso area. Daily storage fee shall be thirty dollars ($30.00) 
per day for all contract years.  No additional work shall be performed unless a change order is 
issued by the city. 
 
(B) The amount paid shall be equitably adjusted to cover changes in the work ordered by the city 
but not required by the contract documents where there is a written change order. 
 
ARTICLE III – Assignment 
This contract may not be assigned or subcontracted without the written consent of the city. 
 
ARTICLE IV - Choice of law 
This contract shall be construed, governed, and enforced in accordance with the laws of the state 
of Michigan.  By executing this agreement, the contractor and the city agree to a venue in a court 
of appropriate jurisdiction sitting within Shiawassee County for purposes of any action arising 
under this contract. 
 
Whenever possible, each provision of the contract will be interpreted in a manner as to be 
effective and valid under applicable law.  The prohibition or invalidity, under applicable law, of 
any provision will not invalidate the remainder of the contract. 
 
ARTICLE V - Relationship of the parties 
The parties of the contract agree that it is not a contract of employment but is a contract to 
accomplish a specific result.  Contractor is an independent contractor performing services for the 
city.  Nothing contained in this contract shall be deemed to constitute any other relationship 
between the city and the contractor. 
 
Contractor certifies that it has no personal or financial interest in the project other than the 
compensation it is to receive under the contract.  Contractor certifies that it is not, and shall not 



become, overdue or in default to the city for any contract, debt, or any other obligation to the city 
including real or personal property taxes.  City shall have the right to set off any such debt 
against compensation awarded for services under this agreement. 
 
ARTICLE VI – Notice 
All notices given under this contract shall be in writing, and shall be by personal delivery or by 
certified mail with return receipt requested to the parties at their respective addresses as 
specified in the contract documents or other address the contractor may specify in writing. 
 
ARTICLE VII - Indemnification 
To the fullest extent permitted by law, for any loss not covered by insurance under this contract; 
contractor shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless the city, its officers, employees and agents 
harmless from all suits, claims, judgments and expenses including attorney’s fees resulting or 
alleged to result, in whole or in part, from any act or omission, which is in any way connected or 
associated with this contract, by the contractor or anyone acting on the contractor’s behalf under 
this contract.  Contractor shall not be responsible to indemnify the city for losses or damages 
caused by or resulting from the city’s sole negligence. 
 
ARTICLE VIII - Entire agreement 
This contract represents the entire understanding between the city and the contractor and it 
supersedes all prior representations or agreements whether written or oral.  Neither party has 
relied on any prior representations in entering into this contract.  This contract may be altered, 
amended or modified only by written amendment signed by the city and the contractor. 
 
 
FOR CONTRACTOR     
 
By___________________________   
 
Its:___________________________   
 
Date:_________________________    
 
 
THE CITY OF OWOSSO  
 
By___________________________  By___________________________ 
  
Its: Robert J. Teich, Jr., Mayor   Its: Amy K. Kirkland, City Clerk  
 
Date:_________________________   Date:_________________________ 
 
 





STATEMENT REGARDING BUSINESS DEALINGS WITH THE CITY
Per Owosso City Charter Section 14.4 and Michigan Public Act 317 of 1968, as amended

I, Carl Ludington, being an officer of the City of Owosso, do hereby declare a pecuniary 
interest in the foregoing proposed contract(s) with the City of Owosso as described as: 

For the Period of: July 1 – July 30 2025

Vendor: Ludington Electric, Inc

Total Amount: 1349.17

Detailed information for the listed amount is attached to this statement.
 
I am making this declaration because I am the owner/operator of Ludington Electric, Inc.

I confirm that I will not vote on the matter(s) in question, I will not take part in discussion 
on any question in respect to the matter(s), and I will not attempt in any way whether 
before, during or after the meeting to influence the voting on any such question at a 
public meeting of the Owosso City Council.

Said items will be considered for approval at the ___August 18 2025__ meeting of the 
Owosso City Council.

Carl Ludington
Signature Date

Declared August 4 2025

Amy Kirkland
Text Box
Reprinted from 
the meeting of 
August 4, 2025



07/30/2025                                         CUSTOM PURCHASE ORDER REPORT                                                    

PURCHASE

ORDER REQUESTED VENDOR AMOUNT

PO NUMBER TYPE BY DEPARTMENT NAME DESCRIPTION AMOUNT RELIEVEDREMAINING BALANCE

PO STATUS: OPEN

PO TYPE: QUICK PO

000046941 QUICK PO tswheeler 862 LUDINGTON ELECTRIC, INC.LIGHTS FOR PICKLE BALL / TENNIS COURTS 120.00 0.00 120.00

000047022 QUICK PO tswheeler 862 LUDINGTON ELECTRIC, INC.CHANGE OUT BAD BREAKER 179.17 0.00 179.17

000047059 QUICK PO ELFredrick 859 LUDINGTON ELECTRIC, INC.ELECTICAL WORK FOR PLANTER REMOVAL 1,050.00 0.00 1,050.00

    TOTAL PO TYPE: QUICK PO 1,349.17 0.00 1,349.17

    TOTAL PO STATUS: OPEN 1,349.17 0.00 1,349.17



 
MEMORANDUM 

 
 

301 W. MAIN    OWOSSO, MICHIGAN 48867-2958    WWW.CI.OWOSSO.MI.US 
 
 

    
 
DATE: August 18, 2025 
 
TO: City Council 
  
FROM: Clayton Wehner, Director of Engineering 
 
SUBJECT: Permanent Easements for the Washington Park Project 
 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Authorize acceptance of documents for permanent easements along the south side of Wesley Drive and 
the west side of N Washington Street for sanitary sewer lift station and water service line installation for 
the Washington Park Project for a total cost of $2.00. 
 
 
BACKGROUND:      
 
The city of Owosso, in collaboration with developer Venture Washington Limited Dividend Housing 
Association, is in the process of constructing new sanitary sewer main and water main as part of the 
Washington Park Project.  As part of the project, a sanitary sewer lift station will be installed within parcel 
number 050-535-000-001-00 to service the development, requiring a permanent easement.  Additionally, 
water service meter pits will be installed within parcel 050-535-000-001-00, requiring an additional 
permanent easement.    
 
Engineering department staff, in consultation with the city attorney, have come to agreement on terms of 
the permanent easements with the property owner of parcel number 050-535-000-001-00 in the amount 
of $1 each for a total of $2.  The permanent easements will allow the city rights to construct and maintain 
its sanitary sewer lift main and water service meter pits within the permanent easement area.  
 
 
FISCAL IMPACTS:  
 
Total cost for the permanent easements is $2.00. Funds for these purchases shall be charged to Water 
Fund Account No. 591-552-818.000-WASHPARK21 ($1) and Sewer Fund 590-549-818.000-
WASHPARK21 ($1). 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 



RESOLUTION NO.  
 

AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF AN AGREEMENT FOR 
PERMANENT EASEMENTS ON WESLEY DRIVE & N WASHINGTON STREET 

 
WHEREAS, the city of Owosso, Shiawassee County, Michigan, has determined that it is in the 
best interest of the public to install sanitary sewer and water main along Wesley Drive between N. 
Water Street and N. Washington Street and water main along N. Washington Street between 
North Street and Wesley Drive as part of the Washington Park Project; and 
 
WHEREAS, a permanent easement from the property owner of parcel number 050-535-000-001-
00 is required for the construction and maintenance of a sanitary sewer lift station; and 
 
WHEREAS, a permanent easement from the property owner of parcel number 050-535-000-001-
00 is required for the construction and maintenance of water service meter pits; and 
 
WHEREAS, the property owner is willing to grant said permanent easements to the City of 
Owosso for $1.00 each, for a total of $2.00. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Owosso, Shiawassee 
County, Michigan that: 
 

FIRST: it has heretofore determined that it is advisable, necessary and in the public 
interest to agree to the terms set forth in the attached permanent easement 
documents between the City of Owosso, Michigan and Venture Washington 
Limited Dividend Housing Association Limited Partnership, 196 Cedar E Chavez 
Ave, Pontiac, Michigan. 

 
SECOND: the City Clerk is instructed and authorized to file said permanent easement 

documents with the Shiawassee County Register of Deeds.   
 
THIRD: the accounts payable department is authorized to pay Venture Washington 

Limited Dividend Housing Association Limited Partnership $2.00 as set forth in 
the permanent easement documents. 

 
FOURTH: the above expenses shall be paid from Water Fund Account No. 591-552-

818.000-WASHPARK21 ($1) and Sewer Fund 590-549-818.000-WASHPARK21 
($1). 

 



















 
 
 
 
         301 W. MAIN   OWOSSO, MICHIGAN 48867-2958  · (989) 725-0570  ·  FAX (989) 723-8854 
 
 

DATE:   August 12, 2025 
 
TO:   City Council     
 
FROM:   City Manager 
  
SUBJECT: Pump Station No. 5 Agreement 
 
 

Background 
Pump Station No. 5, located near the intersection of Chestnut Street and South Street in Owosso 
Charter Township, conveys sewage from both the City of Owosso and Owosso Charter 
Township. The facility is owned by Owosso Charter Township and operated by the Owosso 
Township–Caledonia Township Utility Authority. 

Over the past year, City staff, Township officials, and consulting engineers have negotiated an 
agreement that formalizes the terms for sharing the costs of operation, maintenance, metering, 
and any future expansion of Pump Station No. 5. 

The agreement establishes that: 

• The City of Owosso will pay forty percent (40%) of total operations and maintenance 
costs, based on current flow studies. 

• Flow allocations will be re-evaluated every five (5) years, or at other intervals mutually 
agreed upon, through a licensed engineering study. 

• Future capacity increases or upgrades will be cost-shared according to each party’s 
proportional benefit. 

• Monthly invoices will be provided, with payment due within thirty (30) days. 

This agreement ensures that both parties have a clear, equitable framework for the shared use of 
this essential infrastructure. 

Recommendation 
Approval of this agreement is recommended. It reflects a fair allocation of costs based on actual 
usage, ensures transparency through periodic engineering studies, and protects the City’s 
interests in planning for future capacity needs. 

 

  MASTER PLAN GOALS:  3.4, 3.8, 7.1 

 
 
 



RESOLUTION NO.  
 

AUTHORIZING EXECUTION OF AGREEMENT WITH OWOSSO CHARTER 
TOWNSHIP AND THE OWOSSO TOWNSHIP–CALEDONIA TOWNSHIP UTILITY 
AUTHORITY FOR SHARED COSTS IN THE OPERATION, MAINTENANCE, AND 

EXPANSION OF PUMP STATION NO. 5 

WHEREAS, the City of Owosso conveys a portion of its sewage through Owosso Charter Township’s 
sanitary sewer system, including Pump Station No. 5, owned by Owosso Charter Township and operated 
by the Owosso Township–Caledonia Township Utility Authority; and 

WHEREAS, the City and Township have reached an agreement, following over a year of negotiations and 
engineering review, to establish terms for sharing costs related to the operation, maintenance, metering, 
and possible future expansion of Pump Station No. 5; and 

WHEREAS, the agreement specifies that the City will pay forty percent (40%) of total operations and 
maintenance costs based on current flow studies, with allocations reviewed every five (5) years or as 
mutually agreed, and sets forth procedures for metering and cost-sharing on future upgrades based on 
proportionate benefit. 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, 
Michigan that: 
 

FIRST: it hereby approves the “Agreement for Shared Costs in the Operation, Maintenance, and 
Expansion of Pump Station No. 5” between the City of Owosso, Owosso Charter 
Township, and the Owosso Township–Caledonia Township Utility Authority. 

 
SECOND: the mayor and city clerk are instructed and authorized to sign the document substantially 

in the form attached:  Agreement for Shared Costs in the Operation, Maintenance, and 
Expansion of Public Station No. 5. 

 
 
  
 
 



1 

 

AGREEMENT FOR SHARED COSTS IN  

THE OPERATION. MAINTENANCE AND EXPANSION OF  

PUMP STATION NO. 5                                           

Page 1 of 4 

 
THIS AGREEMENT made this  _________  day of  , A.D., 2025 by and 

 
between Owosso Charter Township, the Owosso Township - Caledonia Township Utility  

Authority (hereinafter called the Utility Authority) and the City of Owosso all of which are  

public corporations or have been established by public corporations and are located in the  

County of Shiawassee and State of Michigan; 

WITNESSETH: 

WHEREAS, the Owosso Township - Caledonia Township Utility Authority is charged  

with the operation and maintenance of sanitary sewer lines and certain pumping stations in  

Owosso Charter Township; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Owosso has constructed its own sanitary sewer lines and 

a portion of its sewage is conveyed through - Owosso Charter Township lines by means 

of pumping stations, trunk lines and sewer lines; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Owosso has constructed and enlarged its sewage treatment  

facilities for the express purpose of treating the sanitary sewage of Owosso Charter  

Township, Caledonia Charter Township, City of Corunna and the City of Owosso; and  

WHEREAS, it is beneficial to the Utility Authority and Owosso Charter Township 

and the City of Owosso from both an economical and a public health standpoint and it is  

necessary to provide for the sharing of the costs for the operation, maintenance, and  

replacement of Pump Station No. 5, and the force main which is deemed to be a "part" of  

such Pump Station which Owosso Charter Township owns but shares with the City of  

Owosso. 

THEREFORE, it is agreed by and between the parties hereto as follows: 

Article I. Pump Station No.5, That City of Owosso's costs for the operation  

and maintenance of Pump Station No.5, which is located near the intersection of Chestnut  

Street and South Street in Owosso Charter Township, and is identified as Point A on Exhibit 



2 

 

"B" attached hereto, shall be their share of the total operations and maintenance costs  

(TOM) of Pump Station No.5, of which said cost includes actual electrical expenses, 

actual materials for any repair or replacement and actual service charges by contractors 

and or any additional costs which are not stated above but which were incurred for 

operation and maintenance shall be submitted to the City of Owosso for their review for 

reasonableness. The City of Owosso's approval for said costs shall not be unreasonably 

withheld. 

The TOM shall then be multiplied by City of Owosso's percent share of sewer  

flow as determined in. Article 11 below. 

Article II. Metering, the process of metering is as follows: 

A.) Total flow at Pump Station No. 5 shall be metered by placing a meter on the force  

main; The City of Owosso agrees that when such meter is installed, the City of  

Owosso will pay 40% of such total cost. 

B.) City of Owosso versus Owosso Charter Township share of sewer flow to the station shall 

be determined by a sewer flow study to be completed every five years or at intervals 

agreed upon by all parties. The sewer flow study shall consist of placing meters in the 

gravity mains at locations agreed upon by all parties to effectively split the City of 

Owosso flow from the Owosso Charter Township flow. The study shall be completed by 

a licensed professional civil engineer. 

At the time of this agreement the City of Owosso flow has been determined to-be 40% 

of station flow, the remainder is attributed to the Owosso Charter Township. 

C.) City of Owosso flow as determined in Article II B, shall be divided by the total Pump 

Station No.5 flow, as determined in Article II A. to determine the percent share of the 

City of Owosso, which shall remain in effect until an updated flow study is completed 

and agreed upon. The remainder of the flow is attributed to the Owosso Charter 

Township. 

Article III. Capacity Increase For Pump Station No.5  In the event that 

the flow running through Pump Station No. 5 is within 5% of the design flow on a regular  

basis, then Owosso Charter Township and City of Owosso shall, upon mutual agreed to 



3 

terms, increase the capacity of Pump Station No. 5 based upon engineer recommendation as 

to the reasonable anticipated present and future growth over the next twenty (20) years.  

Upon the request for any future modification(s) of Pump Station No. 5 by the 

Township, the City may review, at its own expense, hire engineers to evaluate and review the 

need for increased capacity and/or future growth capacity needs, or for any proposed 

modification of said pump station.  

Further, for any Pump Station replacement or upgrading, the cost 

breakdowns may change from this agreement, so that it reflects each community's  

benefits or requirement for the upgrade. 

Article IV. A statement shall he sent monthly to the City of Owosso for 40% of 

total costs and payment shall be made to the Utility Authority within 30 days of invoice 

date when submitted by the Utility Authority to the City of Owosso. 

Article V. This Agreement shall be in full force and effect so long as Pump 

Station No.5 is in operation and as long as Owosso Charter Township, the Utility 

Authority and City of Owosso share Pump Station No. 5 unless sooner terminated by the 

parties hereto, and shall inure to the benefit and be binding upon the parties hereto, their 

successors and assigns. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement on the first date 

set forth above. 

CITY OF OWOSSO OWOSSO CHARTER TOWNSHIP 

BY:  _________________________________                                                                                        BY: ______________________________ 

Mayor  Supervisor 

BY:  ______________________________          BY: ____________________________  

City Clerk Clerk 

OWOSSO TOWNSHIP-CALEDONIA. 

TOWNSHIP/UTILITY AUTHORITY 

BY: _______________________________
Utility Authority Chairman 



4 

TOM x City of Owosso's flow City of Owosso's Cost 

Total Pumping Station 

Flow 

Pump Station No. 5: 

EXHIBIT A 





 
MEMORANDUM 

 
 

301 W. MAIN    OWOSSO, MICHIGAN 48867-2958    WWW.CI.OWOSSO.MI.US 
 
 

 
 
  
DATE: August 18, 2025 
 
TO: Mayor Teich and Owosso City Council 
  
FROM: Ryan E. Suchanek, Director of Public Services & Utilities 
 
SUBJECT: Consumers Energy Demand Response for WWTP and WTP 
 
 
 
 
Attached are the Consumers Energy Demand Response Program contracts for both the City of 
Owosso’s Water Treatment Plant and the Wastewater Treatment Plant. 
 
 
 
BACKGROUND:  
 
Highlights of the program: 
 
• Consumers Energy can contact us to request we take our power requirements off the grid 

by using our generators, up to: 
o Five (5) times during the Summer Demand Response season (June 1 – August 31) 
o Three (3) times during the Fall Demand Response season (September 1 – November 

30) 
o Five (5) times during the Winter Demand Response season December 1 – February 

28) 
o Three (3) times during the Spring Demand Response season (March 1 through May 

31) 
• Each event would be a maximum of four (4) hours. 
• We have determined conservatively that we will always be able to take at least: 

o 175 kW off the grid – WWTP 
o 97 kW off the grid – WTP 
Our incentive is based on that. 

• There is no penalty for refusing to go off the grid if we are having generator issues during 
an event. 

• There is no penalty for not delivering the contract capacity during an event. 
• WWTP has been in this program for 5 years, and the WTP has been a part of the program 

for 2 years. 
 
This summarizes the win-win program. 
 

  

 
 
 
 



 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACTS:  
 
The savings is in the form of a credit issued within 60 days following the end of each Demand 
Response season. 
 
 
 
Document originated by: 
   
Ryan E. Suchanek, Director of Public Services & Utilities 
 
 
 
Attachments: (1) Owosso WWTP Demand Response  
 (2) Owosso WTP Demand Response 
 



Cgaeumors 2026 EMERGENCY COMMERCIAT AND INDUSTRIAT
DEMAND RESPONSE CUSTOMER AGREEMENT

Caunton Usa

Customer ond Consumers Energy ore refened lo herein collectively os the "Porties" ond eoch individuolly os o
"Porfy" to this Agreemenl.

Effective Dote of Agreement: )une 12026
(Month/Doy/Yeor)

Customer:
Citv of Owosso Woter Filtrolion Plont

(Legol Nome)

Compony:
CONSUMERS ENERGY COMPANY
o Michigon Corporolion

ONE ENERGY PLAZA
JACKSON Mt 49201-2357

301 W. Moin St.
(Street & Number)

Owosso. Ml48867
(City, Stote & Zip Code)

l. IniliolTerm:
o. Sholl commence on June I ,2026 ond sholl run through (select one):

Moy 31, 2027 (1yeor)
X Moy 31,2028 (2 yeor)

2. This Agreemenl will become effective on the dote identified obove ond willextend for on lnitiolTerm
through the end dote identified obove. The Cuslomer must notify Consumers Energy Compony
("Consumers Energy" or the "Compony") by September lsl in the finol yeor of the lnitiol Term of their
desire to renew porticipotion in the Demond Response Progrom ("Progrom") lhrough the execution of
o new Progrom Agreemenl ond the omount of reduction/nominolion kW for lhe following Progrom
Seoson(s) Summer (June 1 through August 3l ) Foll (September I through November 30) Winter
(December I -Februory 28) Spring (Morch 1 through Moy 3'l (hereinofler referred to os the "Progrom
Seosons"). Cuslomer porticipolion under this Agreemenl sholl be bosed on lhe limilolions, terms ond
eligibility os described in the Compony's Progrom ond the Compony's Eleclric Role Book, os opproved
by the Michigon Public Service Commission.

3. Progrom Description. Porticiponts in the Progrom help reduce peok demond when energy use is the high
ond mointoin o reody supply of energy for Michigon. Porticiponts will receive on onnuol Emergency
Copocity Poyment for the Delivered Copocity omounl specified in this Agreement within sixty (60) doys ofter
the finoldoy of eoch selecled Progrom Seoson.

4. Adminislrolion Solulions. Customer ogrees lo work wilh Consumers Energy lo develop on oppropriote
energy reduction plon for Customer's business for eoch Progrom Seoson ond; Submil o contoct list, ond
(ii) to provide Consumers Energy occess ond use of contoct, billing ond energy usoge doto, ond focility
informotion concerning eoch Site Address (os defined below) ("Cuslomer Dolo"). Consumers Energy
sholl monoge Customer's curtoiloble electricol copocity in lhe Progrom ond upon notificotion by
Consumers Energy ond occeplonce by Customer, provide reol-lime support to Customer during
demond response events ("Demond Response Events"); ond enoble doto tronsfer, monitoring ond
reporting of meter doto ond provide technicol ossistonce, mointenonce, repoir ond hosting of lhe
Monitoring System. ln oddilion, os necessory, Consumers Energy will coordinole with Customer to copture
kilowotthour ("kWh") pulses from Cuslomer's primory utility meter to provide Customer neor reol-time,
lnlernel-enobled power monitoring.

Form 4021 1-2025 2026 Seoson - Emergency Demond Response Poge I of 13



5. Monitoring System. Consumers Energy moy equip one or more of Customer focility oddresses (eoch
oddress is referred to os o "Site Address") os identified on the Site Address Attochment ottoched herelo
with the Moniloring System, which includes site devices owned by Consumers Energy thot con enoble
power metering, doto collection, neor reol-time dolo communicotion, ond lnlernet-bosed reporting ond
onolytics. There sholl be no cost lo the Cuslomer ossocioted with lhe Monitoring System equipment or
inslollotion of the Monitoring Syslem equipment.

6. Cuslomer Supporl Requirements.

o. Represenlolions ond Worronlies. Cuslomer holds oll opplicoble licenses ond/or permits pursuont to
the Agreement thol ore required for the proper porticipotion in the Progrom.

b. Demond Response Performonce. Customer hos the intent ond obility to generote ond/or reduce
electricol demond to ochieve Controcted Copocity (os defined below) of eoch Site Address when
notified by Consumers Energy Demond Response Events.

c. Acceptonce Testing. Al eoch Site Address where the site devices ore instolled, Customer ogrees to
colloborote with Consumers Energy in <r timely monner in testing, enobling ond mointoining the
Monitoring System.

d. Energy Reduction Plon. Customer must provide to Consumers Energy their Energy Reduction Plon
describing the equipment ond steps lhol will be token to meet their curtoilment nominotion.

Progrom Rules. The terms of this Agreemenl reflect the currenl Progrom terms ond conditions, which moy be
omended from time to time by Consumers Energy. Amendments ore mutuolly ogreed between the porlies
ond recorded os on omendment or eliminote "which moy be omended from time lo lime by Consumers
Energy".

7. The current terms ore summorized below:

Progrom Avoilobility During the lnitiolTerm. emergency evenls could be colled of ony time
Mondoy through Fridoy between ll om ond 7 pm, excluding holidoys os
defined in Rule C.l4 (c) Holidoys Designoted by the Compony, in response
to Midcontinent lndependenl System Operotor, lnc. ("MlSO") reliobilily
emergencies ("Emergency Evenl(s)"). Customer is required to porticipote in
onv Emeroencv Event colled bv MISO.

Evenl Frequency ond Durotion Emerqency Evenls - Up to five (5) events during the Summer Progrom
Seoson, up 1o lhree (3) evenls during the Foll Progrom Seoson, up to five (5)

events in the Winler Progrom Seoson, ond up to three (3) evenls in the
Spring Progrom Seoson, up lo four hours eoch.

Advonced Notificolion Emerqency Events - Customer will receive of leosl o thirty (30) minute but
no more lhon o six (6) hour nolice in odvonce of on Emergency Evenl.
Cuslomers ore odvised to estimole lood reduclion copobilily over o twelve
(12) hour timefrome for plonning purposes.

Dispotch Reodiness Test After Customer's Energy Reduction Plon(s) hos been reviewed by Consumers
Energy ond Customer's sile instollotion hos been compleled, Customer will
receive on emoil from Consumers Energy osking Customer to selecl o dote
to porlicipote in o thirty (30) minute Dispotch Reodiness Tesl of Customer's
Energy Reduction Plon. The Dispotch Reodiness Tesl is optionol to lhe
Cuslomer but recommended by Consumers Energy.

Audit Consumers Energy moy coll one (1), one-hour oudit ("Audit") per Progrom
Seoson lo confirm Controcted Copocity (os defined below). lf colled, this

oudit is required os the Customer's progrom poymenl will be determined
by performonce during the Audit event ond the Customers Delivered
Copocity (os defined below).

Form 4021 1-2025 2026 Seoson - Emergency Demond Response Poge 2 of 13



Online Porlol
Customer moy hove occess to on online portol "Doshboord" where
Customer con monilor their performonce during both on Emergency ond
Economic Evenl. Portolwill be octivoled before the seoson slorls on June l.

8. Cuslomer copocily.

o. Controcled Copocily. For purposes of lhis Agreement, "Conlrocled Copocity" sholl represent the
Customer's performonce obligotion (in kilowolts ("kW").The Conlrocled Copocily sholl be bosed on
on onolysis of Customer's prior consumption doto for eoch Progrom Seoson, their Energy Reduction
PIon(s) ond pre-enrollment lood reduction testing.

b. Delivered Copocily.

i. For purposes of this Agreement, on evenl's "Delivered Copocily" sholl be defined os lhe
omount of lood in kW reduced for eoch hour in o Demond Response Event. Delivered
Copocity for eoch event hour is colculoted os the difference between the meosured
energy demond ond the boseline energy demond. Consumers Energy will use o MISO-
opproved boseline colculolion method. MISO's defouli boseline is lhe Ten-Doy Boseline. The
Ten-Doy Boseline is colculoted os lhe overoge hourly demond from the previous ten (10)
non-weekend non-holidoy non-evenl doys prior to lhe event. Cuslomer is required lo
reduce the full omount specified os Controcted Copocily for the hourly overoge of on
emergency evenl. Consumers Energy, of ils discretion, con moke on odjustment to the
boseline os determined by "Doy of Adjuslment" colculotion methodology oullined in
Altochment B. An olternotive boseline moy be used, so long os it is pre-opproved by MISO.
lf no Emergency Event is colled, the Delivered Copocity will reverl lo the Controcted
Copocity for the DR seoson. ln o Progrom Seoson with multiple Emergency Events, the
Delivered Copocity will be bosed on the Customers overoge evenl performonce during the
lerm of lhot Progrom Seoson.

9. Environmenlol. ln order for the engine to be considered on emergency slotionory engine under 40 CFR
Port 60 Subporl llll, 40 CFR Port 60 Subport JJJJ ond/or 40 CFR Porl 63 Subport ZZZZ ony operotion other
thon emergency operolion, mointenonce ond testing, emergency demond response, ond operotion
in non-emergency situolions for up to 50 hours per colendor yeor, os described in lhe opplicoble
regulotion(s), is prohibited. lf Customer does not operote the engine occording to these requirements,
the engine will not be considered on emergency engine ond must meel oll requirements for non-
emergency engines in the opplicoble regulotions.

Emergency Demond Response Events per lhis controct ore considered non-emergency situotions (not
lo exceed 50 hours per colendor yeor). Power supplied os porl of o finonciol orrongement with
Consumers Energy must meet ollof the following conditions:

o. The engine is dispotched by the locol boloncing oulhority or locol tronsmission ond distribulion
syslem operotor.

b. The dispotch is inlended lo mitigote locol lronsmission ond/or distribulion limitotions so os to overl
potentiol voltoge collopse or line overloods thot could leod to lhe interruption of power supply in o
Iocol oreo or region.

c The dispolch follows reliobility, emergency operolion or similor prolocols thot follow specific NERC,
regionol, slote, public utility commission or locolstondords or guidelines.

d. The power is provided only to the focility itself or to support the locol tronsmission ond distribution
system.

e. The owner or operotor (Customer) identifies ond records lhe enlily lhot dispotches the engine ond
the specific NERC, regionol, stote, public utility commission or locol stondords or guidelines thot ore

Form 4021 1-2025 2026 Seoson - Emergency Demond Response Poge 3 of 13



being followed for dispotching the engine. The locol boloncing outhority or locol tronsmission ond
distribution system operotor moy keep these records on beholf of the engine owner or operolor.

f. The owner or operolor (Customer) is responsible for oll EPA reporting requiremenls. Customers who
do nol comply with EPA reporting moy be removed from lhe progrom of Consumers Energy's
discretion.

10. Poymenls lo Cuslomer.

o. Emergency Copocily Poymenls. For o single yeor conlroct, the copocity poymenl price is $20lkW for
the Summer Progrom Seoson, $B/kW for Foll Progrom Seoson, $8/kW for the Winter Progrom Seoson,
ond $B/kW for the Spring Progrom Seoson. For o two (2) year controct, the copocity poyment price is

$25lkw for the Summer Progrom Seoson, $9/kW for Foll Progrom Seoson, $9/kW for Winter Progrom
Seoson, ond $9/kW for Spring Progrom Seoson. Delivered Copocity copped ol25O% per Progrom
Seoson os defined in seclion 8(b). Consumers Energy will poy Customer the Copocity Rote multiplied
by the Delivered Copocity.

b. Emergency Event Energy Poymenls. ln Progrom Seosons when one or more Emergency Evenls ore
colled, Consumers Energy will poy Customer on energy poyment of $450/MWh multiplied by the
evenl's Delivered Copocity multiplied by the hours for eoch such event os defined in section 8(b)
obove.

11. Poyment Timing. After on Emergency Evenl ond Customer's Delivered Copocity hos been verified,
Consumers Energy sholl moke Emergency Event Energy Poymenls for Customer's porticipolion by the
issuonce of credits to the Customer's bill or by check. The Emergency Copocily Poymenl will be mode
within sixty (60) doys ofter the finol doy of eoch selected Progrom Seoson.

12. Concellolion. Cuslomer or Consumers Energy moy concel lhis Agreement or requesl lo omend
nominotion(s) for the Progrom Seosons occurring in the next yeor, if such concellolion or requesl to
omend is submilted to Consumers Energy belween Oclober I - December 3l of the prior yeor. Requests
to omend nominotion(s) sholl be gronled ol the Compony's discretion ond sholl only opply lo the
Progrom Seosons occurring in the following yeor. Concellolion requesls musl be submilted in writing to:
ConsumersEnerqv.DemondResponseProgrom@cmsenerqy.com. The cuslomer will be notified by
Consumers Energy if they concel or ore removed from the progrom.

13. Confidentiolity.

o. Nondisclosure lo Third Porlies. ln performing under the Agreement, eoch Porty to this Agreement will
be exposed to certoin Confidentiol lnformotion (os hereinofter defined) of the other Porly. Eoch Porty
on its own beholf ond on beholf of its employees, controctors ond ogents (colleclively,
"Representotives") ogrees not to, excepl os required by opplicoble low or regulotion, use or disclose
such Confidentiol lnformotion withoul lhe prior writlen consenl of the other Porty, either during or
ofter lhe Term. To protecl Confidentiol lnformotion, eoch Porty ogrees to: (i) limil disseminotion of
Confidentiol lnformotion to only those Representolives hoving o "need to know"; (ii) odvise eoch
Representotive who receives Confidentiol lnformotion of the confidentiol noture of such informotion;
ond (iii) hove oppropriole ogreemenls, policies ond/or procedures in ploce wilh such
Represenlotives sufficienl to enoble complionce with the confidentiolity obligotions contoined
herein. The term "Confidentiol lnformotion" meons ollinformotion which is disclosed, either orolly or in
written form, by eilher Porty or its Represenlotives ond sholl be deemed to include: (w) ony notes,
onolyses, compilotions, studies, interpretotions, memorondo or other documents prepored by either
Porty or its Representotives which conloin, reflect or ore bosed upon, in whole or in port, ony
Confidentiol lnformotion furnished lo o receiving Porly or ils Represenlolives pursuont herelo; (x) ony
informotion concerning lhe business relotionship between the Porlies;ond (y) Customer Doto.

b. Exclusions from Confidenliol Informolion. Notwithstonding the obligotions in Section 13(o) obove,
Confidentiol Informolion does not include ony informotion thot:

i. is or becomes generolly known to the public without breoch of ony obligotion owed to the
disclosing Porty;

Form4O2l l-2O25 2026Seoson-EmergencyDemondResponse Poge4of13



ii. wos known to the receiving Porly prior lo ils disclosure by lhe disclosing Porty wilhoul breoch of
ony obligotion owed to the disclosing Porty;

iii. is received from o third porty withoul the receiving porty hoving ony knowledge of ony breoch by
such third porty of ony obligotion owed to the disclosing Porly; or

iv. wos independently developed by the receiving Porty without reference to or relionce upon the
disclosing Porty's Confidenliol lnformolion.

14. Limitotion of Liobility. Consumers Energy's ond its controclors' ond subcontroctors' liobility hereunder is

Iimited lo direct octuol domoges os the sole ond exclusive remedy, ond totol domoges under the
Agreement sholl not exceed $,l00,000 or lhe totol omounts poid by Consumers Energy under the
Agreemenl. whichever is less. ln no event sholl either Porty, its porent, officers, directors. portners,
shoreholders, employees or offiliotes, or ony controctor or subcontroclor or its employees or offiliotes, be
lioble to the other Porty for speciol, indirect, exemplory, punitive, incidenlol or consequentiol domoges of
ony noture whotsoever connected with or resulling from performonce or non-performonce of obligotions
under the Agreement, including without limitolion. domoges or cloims in lhe noture of lost revenue,
income or profits, loss of use, or cosl of copitol, irrespective of whether such domoges ore reosonobly
foreseeoble ond irrespeclive of whether such cloims ore bosed upon negligence, strict liobilily controct,
operolion of low or olherwise.

15. AdditionolTerms.

o. Customer olso ogrees, with respecl to Consumers Energy's monogement of lhe Monitoring System, it

receives o limited, revocoble, non-lronsferroble ond non-exclusive right to use ond occess
during the Term the Monitoring System ond sholl use the Moniloring System solely for its internol
use subjecl to the lerms of the Agreement ond not for lhe benefil of ony third porty. Excepl os
expressly permitled in the Agreemenl, Customer ogrees thot it sholl nol receive ony right, title or
interesl in, or ony license or right to use or occess, the Monitoring Syslem or ony potent,
copyright, lrode secret, trodemork or other intellectuol property righls therein by implicotion or
otherwise;

sholl use the Moniloring System in occordonce with oll opplicoble low;

sholl not ond sholl prohibit cousing or permitting, the copying, reverse engineering, disossembly,
decompilotion or ottempting to derive the source code of the Moniloring System, or other
intellecluol property of Consumers Energy or creotion of ony derivotive work thereof;

expressly discloims ony possing of title lo the Monitoring System, ony trode nomes. trode dress,
lrodemorks, service morks, commerciolsymbols, copyrightoble moleriol, designs. logos ond/or
ony other intellectuol property of Customer;

sholl not delete, oller, cover, or distort ony copyright or other proprietory notices or trodemorks
from the Monitoring System ond to use reosonoble core to prevent lhe Monitoring System ond
Consumers Energy's intellectuol properly rights conloined in the soflwore from domoge ond
unouthorized use.

b. Miscelloneous. Customer moy not ossign ony of its rights or delegote ony of ils performonce
obligotions hereunder without the prior written consenl of Consumers Energy. The Agreement,
including oll ottochments, constitutes lhe entire ogreement belween Customer ond Consumers
Energy ond moy only be omended in writing signed by eoch of the Porlies. lf ony of its provisions sholl
be held involid or unenforceoble, this Agreement sholl be construed os if not conloining those
provisions ond the rights ond obligotions of the Porties hereto sholl be construed ond enforced
occordingly. This Agreement sholl be binding upon the Porties togelher with lheir successors ond

ii.

iii.

Fotm 4021 1-2025 2026 Seoson - Emergency Demond Response Poge 5 of 13



permitted ossigns. Eoch Porly sholl be responsible for its Representolives' complionce with the
Agreemenl. Customer sholl promptly notify Consumers Energy in writing of ony chonges occurring
during the Term to lhe Customer oddress(es) set forth in this Agreemenl.

c. Force Mojeure. The Porties to this Agreement sholl be excused from ony foilure or deloy in the
performonce of lheir obligotions if such obligotions ore prevented from being fulfilled due to Force
Mojeure. A Porly unoble to fulfill ony obligotion hereunder (other thon on obligolion to poy money
when due) by reoson of Force Mojeure, sholl give notice ond the full porticulors of such Force
Mojeure lo lhe other Porty in writing or by telephone os soon os reosonobly possible ofter the
occurrence of the couse relied upon. Telephone notices given pursuont to this orticle sholl be
confirmed in wriling os soon os reosonobly possible ond shollspecificolly stote full porticulors of lhe
Force Mojeure. lhe time ond dote when lhe Force Mojeure occurred ond when the Force Mojeure is

reosonobly expected to ceose. The Porty offected sholl exercise due diligence to remove such
disobility with reosonoble dispotch, bul sholl not be required to occede or ogree to ony provision not
sotisfoctory to ii in order to settle ond terminote o strike or other lobor dislurbonce. A "Force Mojeure"
shollinclude ony oct, event, or occurrence beyond lhe Porty's reosonoble control, which the Porty,
despite lts best efforts, is unoble to prevenl. ovoid, overcome, deloy or mitigote, including but nol
limited to:floods, epidemics, eorlhquokes, quorontine, blockode, wor, insurreclion or civilslrife or
lerrorism, provided, however, thot Force Mojeure sholl in no evenl include (i) foilure of Subcontroctors
or Suppliers lo deliver services, moteriols or components or receipt from ony Subcontroctor or Supplier
of defective services, moleriol or components unless some were themselves coused by o Force
Mojeure Event; (ii) technologicolimpossibility; (iii) o governmentol oct or foilure to oct, or order or
injunction. coused by ony oct or foilure to oct of the Seller or ony Subcontroctor or Supplier; (iv) strikes
or work stoppoges; or (v) inclement weother.

d. Worronly Limilolions. THE MONITORING SYSTEM (AND ANY SOFTWARE, HARDWARE, OR OTHER

COMPONENT THEREOF) AND ALL SERVICES HEREUNDER ARE PROVIDED AS IS BY CONSUMERS ENERGY

WITHOUT ANY WARRANTY OF ANY KIND. ALL WARRANTIES, WHETHER EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, INCLUDING
BUT NOT LIMITED TO ALL WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY AND FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE,

ARE EXPRESSLY DISCLAIMED TO THE FULLEST EXTENT PERMISSIBLE UNDER APPLICABLE LAW.

e. Governing Lqw; Actions; Etc.: This Agreement sholl be deemed o Michigon conlroct ond sholl be
governed by ond inlerpreted in occordonce with the lows of the Slote of Michigon; excluding ony
conflicts of lows principles lhol would result in this Agreement being interpreled in occordonce wilh
ony different low. Venue for ony lowsuil orising out of or in connection with this Agreement sholl be
exclusively in lhe courts of lhe Stote of Michigon or o Federolcourt sitting in the Stote of Michigon. Any
legol oction ogoinst Consumers Energy reloting to this Agreement or lhe breoch thereof sholl be
commenced within one yeor from the dote on which the cloimed breoch, defoult or other couse of
oction orose (ond, withoul limiting lhe foregoing, in oll events not loter lhon one yeor ofler the dote of
complelion or other cessolion of performonce of lhe work hereunder). This Agreemenl is intended for
lhe benefit of the porties herein only ond does not gront ony rights to ony third porties unless otherwise
specificolly sloted herein. lf Customer defoults in the timely performonce of ony of ils obligotions
hereunder, then Consumers Energy moy, ol its option, ond in oddition to ony ond oll olher rights or
remedies it moy hove hereunder or of low or equily, lerminote this Controcl by writlen notice lo
Customer.

Form 4021 1-2025 2025 Seoson - Emergency Demond Response Poge 6 of l3



lN WITNESS WHEREOF, qnd inlending lo be legolly bound,lhe Porlies hove duly execuled lhis Agreement by
their qulhorized represenlqtives os ol lhe Efleclive Dote.

Utility Signoture Cuslomer Signoture

CONSUMERS ENERGY COMPANY Citv of Owosso Woter Fillrolion Plont I I I I Allendole
Ave. Owosso, Ml48867

(Compony)

By: By *rr//arb
(Signoture) (Signoture)

David Haut
(Print or Type Nome) (Print orType Nome)

Water Filtration Plant Supervisor
(Dote) (Title)

david.haut@ci.owosso. mi. us
(Emoil)

06t04t2025
{Dote)

tr Mork box if Moiling Address is the some os Poge I

(Moiling Address)

(City, Stote, Zip)

Form4021 1-2025 2026 Seoson - Emergency Demond Response Poge 7 of l3



ATTACHMENT B .
CUSTOMER BASETINE CALCUTATIONS AND PERFORMANCE OBTIGATIONS

"Originol Boseline Demond" colculolion methodoloqy - for interruplions colled on normol business doys,
colculote on overoge hourly demond profile bosed on lhe demonds creoted during the len (10) non-
interruption business doys immediotely preceding on interruption notificotion. excluding Soturdoy, Sundoy
ond holidoys os recognized in the Compony's Eleclric Rote Book ("Normol Boseline Demond").

"Dov of Adiustment" colculotion methodology - storls of lhe point of the interruption event ond counts bock
four (4) hours. (For purposes of clorificotion - for the "Doy of Adjustment" colculotion only the boseline is
colculoted beginning from the stort of the intenuplion event ond moving bockwords by four (4) hours). The
"Originol Boseline Demond" will be ADJUSTED up/down on lhe doy of on event by the rolio of (o) the sum of
hourly demonds for the three (3) hours beginning four (4) hours prior lo the interruption event ond (b) lhe sum
of those some three hours unodjusted consumption boseline demonds. The resultont chonge to the Originol
Bose/ine Demond is /imited to +l- 20% of the Originol Bose/ine Demond ond is referred lo os lhe "Adjusfed
Bose/ine Demond".

Below ore 4 different Demond Response Enoclmenl Event scenorios, oll bosed on:

The prior I0 business doy/24-hour boseline = 100 kW wilh o 20 kW Nominolion omounl

Averoge demond for 3
hours, beginning 4
hours prior to "Doy of
Adjustment"

70 kw tl0kw 95 kW r25 kw

Whot is the Adjusted
Boseline Demond to
reduce power ogoinst?

The 70 kW overqge
demond during the 3
hour "Doy of
Adjusiment" period
represents o 30%
decreose from the
Originol Boseline
Demond, so the Originol
Boseline Demond will be
reduced by only 2Q%, os
per the "Boseline"
colculotion
methodology.

Adjusted Boseline
Demond = BO kW

The I l0 kW overoge
demond during the 3
hour "Doy of
Adjustment" period
represents o l0%
increose from the
Originol Boseline
Demond, so lhe Originol
Boseline Demond will be
increosed by l0%, os
per the "Boseline"
colculotion
methodology.

Adjusied Boseline
Demond=ll0kW

The 95 kW overoge
demond during the 3
hour "Doy of
Adjustmenl" period
represents o 5%
decreose from the
Originol Boseline
Demond, so the Originol
Boseline Demond will be
decreosed by 5%, os
per the "Boseline"
colculotion
methodology.

Adjusled Boseline
Demond = 95 kW

The 125 kW overoge
demond during the 3
hour "Doy of
Adjustment" period
represents o 25%
increose from the
Originol Boseline
Demond, so the Originol
Boseline Demond will be
increosed by only 20%,
os per the "Boseline"
colculotion
methodology.

Adjusted Boseline
Demond = 120 kW

kW customer is

required to reduce
lood to in order to
FULLY comply during
this eveni (l 00%)

80kw-20kw
(Boseline - Nominotion)

60 kw

r0kw-20kw
(Boseline - Nominotion)

90 kw

95kW-20kW
(Boseline - Nominotion)

75 kW

120kw-20kw
( Boseline - Nominotion)

r00 kw

Deloils Scenorio I Senqrio 2 Scenorio 3 Scenorio 4

Form4021 1-2025 2026 Seoson - Emergency Demond Response Poge 9 of 13



@
&srrfofi{,E$

Atlochmenl C
2026 CONSUMERS ENERGY DEMAND RESPONSE

ENERGY REDUCTION PIAN

Seoson Nominolions

based on 4124125 email from David Patterson

Compony Nome: Citv of Owosso Woter Treotment PIont

Focility Conloct Nome(s): Dovid Hout

DR Evenl Procedure:
Consumers Entrgy will nolify you thot o DR event hos been dispolched. Confirm phone, emoil, ond/or text
notificotions sent by Consumers Energy. Monuolly shul down lhe following equlpment by the lime the DR

event begins. lF opplicoble, lurn on generqtor ond lronsfer spsif ed building l@d to lhe generolor.

80 80 80 BOkw

Summer Foll WinterSeoson Spring

Forml021 12025

Addresses ond Shuldown Procedure

2026 Strson - Emergency Demond Response Poge 10 of 13

r00100 100 xMoin St. An)ryhere Ml HVAC & Lighting
leduce setpoints uslng Building
lonogement System

Switch to fulL gensolion 75

80

80
80

80
City of Owosso Woter
Treotment Plonl

llll AllendoleAve,
Owosso, M 488671

r000@306614
8f/],40712
ffi47264

Switch to full
gentroiion

tr

Conhdcl
Account
Number

6-
e5
^fe4

o

=5'c.

8=ai
FO

8:ro1
3@

o
6
o
o
o
.J

Sile Nome EquipmenlMeler
Number Shuldown ProcedureSite Address

100Exomple: ABC Locoiion
1?3456789012 12345678

x



Attochment D
GENERATOR

Pleose fill oul the toble below:
Fuel Type = Exomple, Nolurol gos or Diesel. Model Yeor = When the engine wos built?

Engine HP = Should be reflected on the generotor/engine tog.

Sile Nome
Sile Account

Number FUEt TYPE MODET YEAR ENGINE HP

City of Owosso
WolerTreotment
Plont

I 0000003561 4 Diesel 2017 463

Form 4021 1-2025 2026 Seoson - Emergency Demond Response Poge 13 of l3



Form 4021   1-2025 2026 Season - Emergency Demand Response Page 1 of 13 

2026 EMERGENCY COMMERCIAL AND INDUSTRIAL 
DEMAND RESPONSE CUSTOMER AGREEMENT 

 

 

 

Customer and Consumers Energy are referred to herein collectively as the “Parties” and each individually as a 

“Party” to this Agreement. 

 

 

Effective Date of Agreement:   June 1, 2026  
 (Month/Day/Year) 

Company: Customer: 

CONSUMERS ENERGY COMPANY City of Owosso WWTP  
a Michigan Corporation  (Legal Name) 

 

ONE ENERGY PLAZA 1412 Chippewa Trail.  

JACKSON MI  49201-2357 (Street & Number) 

 

 Owosso, MI 48867  
 (City, State & Zip Code) 

 

 

1. Initial Term:   
a. Shall commence on June 1, 2026 and shall run through (select one): 

    May 31, 2027 (1 year) 
  X May 31, 2028 (2 year) 
 
 

 

2. This Agreement will become effective on the date identified above and will extend for an Initial Term 

through the end date identified above. The Customer must notify Consumers Energy Company 

(“Consumers Energy” or the “Company”) by September 1st in the final year of the Initial Term of their 

desire to renew participation in the Demand Response Program (“Program”) through the execution of 

a new Program Agreement and the amount of reduction/nomination kW for the following Program 

Season(s) Summer (June 1 through August 31) Fall (September 1 through November 30) Winter 

(December 1-February 28) Spring (March 1 through May 31 (hereinafter referred to as the “Program 

Seasons”). Customer participation under this Agreement shall be based on the limitations, terms and 

eligibility as described in the Company’s Program and the Company’s Electric Rate Book, as approved 

by the Michigan Public Service Commission. 

 

3. Program Description.  Participants in the Program help reduce peak demand when energy use is the high 

and maintain a ready supply of energy for Michigan. Participants will receive an annual Emergency 

Capacity Payment for the Delivered Capacity amount specified in this Agreement within sixty (60) days after 

the final day of each selected Program Season. 

 

4. Administration Solutions. Customer agrees to work with Consumers Energy to develop an appropriate 

energy reduction plan for Customer’s business for each Program Season and; Submit a contact list, and 

(ii) to provide Consumers Energy access and use of contact, billing and energy usage data, and facility 

information concerning each Site Address (as defined below) (“Customer Data”). Consumers Energy 

shall manage Customer’s curtailable electrical capacity in the Program and upon notification by 

Consumers Energy and acceptance by Customer, provide real-time support to Customer during 

demand response events (“Demand Response Events”); and enable data transfer, monitoring and 

reporting of meter data and provide technical assistance, maintenance, repair and hosting of the 

Monitoring System. In addition, as necessary, Consumers Energy will coordinate with Customer to capture 

kilowatt-hour (“kWh”) pulses from Customer’s primary utility meter to provide Customer near real-time, 

Internet-enabled power monitoring. 

 

 



Form 4021   1-2025 2026 Season - Emergency Demand Response Page 2 of 13 

5. Monitoring System. Consumers Energy may equip one or more of Customer facility addresses (each 

address is referred to as a “Site Address”) as identified on the Site Address Attachment attached hereto 

with the Monitoring System, which includes site devices owned by Consumers Energy that can enable 

power metering, data collection, near real-time data communication, and Internet-based reporting and 

analytics. There shall be no cost to the Customer associated with the Monitoring System equipment or 

installation of the Monitoring System equipment. 

 

6. Customer Support Requirements. 
 

a. Representations and Warranties. Customer holds all applicable licenses and/or permits pursuant to 

the Agreement that are required for the proper participation in the Program. 

 

b. Demand Response Performance. Customer has the intent and ability to generate and/or reduce 

electrical demand to achieve Contracted Capacity (as defined below) at each Site Address when 

notified by Consumers Energy Demand Response Events. 

 

c. Acceptance Testing. At each Site Address where the site devices are installed, Customer agrees to 

collaborate with Consumers Energy in a timely manner in testing, enabling and maintaining the 

Monitoring System. 

 

d. Energy Reduction Plan. Customer must provide to Consumers Energy their Energy Reduction Plan 

describing the equipment and steps that will be taken to meet their curtailment nomination. 

 

Program Rules. The terms of this Agreement reflect the current Program terms and conditions, which may be 

amended from time to time by Consumers Energy. Amendments are mutually agreed between the parties 

and recorded as an amendment or eliminate “which may be amended from time to time by Consumers 

Energy”.  

 

7. The current terms are summarized below: 

 

Program Availability During the Initial Term, emergency events could be called at any time 

Monday through Friday between 11 am and 7 pm, excluding holidays as 

defined in Rule C.14 (c) Holidays Designated by the Company, in response 

to Midcontinent Independent System Operator, Inc. (“MISO”) reliability 

emergencies (“Emergency Event(s)”). Customer is required to participate in 

any Emergency Event called by MISO. 

Event Frequency and Duration Emergency Events – Up to five (5) events during the Summer Program 

Season, up to three (3) events during the Fall Program Season, up to five (5) 

events in the Winter Program Season, and up to three (3) events in the 

Spring Program Season, up to four hours each. 
 Advanced Notification Emergency Events – Customer will receive at least a thirty (30) minute but 

no more than a six (6) hour notice in advance of an Emergency Event. 

Customers are advised to estimate load reduction capability over a twelve 

(12) hour timeframe for planning purposes. 
 Dispatch Readiness Test After Customer’s Energy Reduction Plan(s) has been reviewed by Consumers 

Energy and Customer’s site installation has been completed, Customer will 

receive an email from Consumers Energy asking Customer to select a date 

to participate in a thirty (30) minute Dispatch Readiness Test of Customer’s 

Energy Reduction Plan. The Dispatch Readiness Test is optional to the 

Customer but recommended by Consumers Energy. 

Audit 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Consumers Energy may call one (1), one-hour audit (“Audit”) per Program 

Season to confirm Contracted Capacity (as defined below). If called, this 

audit is required as the Customer’s program payment will be determined 

by performance during the Audit event and the Customers Delivered 

Capacity (as defined below). 

 

 

 



Form 4021   1-2025 2026 Season - Emergency Demand Response Page 3 of 13 

Online Portal 
Customer may have access to an online portal “Dashboard” where 

Customer can monitor their performance during both an Emergency and 

Economic Event. Portal will be activated before the season starts on June 1.  

 

 

8. Customer capacity. 
 

a. Contracted Capacity. For purposes of this Agreement, “Contracted Capacity” shall represent the 

Customer’s performance obligation (in kilowatts (“kW”). The Contracted Capacity shall be based on 

an analysis of Customer’s prior consumption data for each Program Season, their Energy Reduction 

Plan(s) and pre-enrollment load reduction testing. 

 

b. Delivered Capacity.  

 

i. For purposes of this Agreement, an event’s “Delivered Capacity” shall be defined as the 

amount of load in kW reduced for each hour in a Demand Response Event. Delivered 

Capacity for each event hour is calculated as the difference between the measured 

energy demand and the baseline energy demand. Consumers Energy will use a MISO-

approved baseline calculation method. MISO’s default baseline is the Ten-Day Baseline. The 

Ten-Day Baseline is calculated as the average hourly demand from the previous ten (10) 

non-weekend non-holiday non-event days prior to the event. Customer is required to 

reduce the full amount specified as Contracted Capacity for the hourly average of an 

emergency event. Consumers Energy, at its discretion, can make an adjustment to the 

baseline as determined by “Day of Adjustment” calculation methodology outlined in 

Attachment B. An alternative baseline may be used, so long as it is pre-approved by MISO.  

If no Emergency Event is called, the Delivered Capacity will revert to the Contracted 

Capacity for the DR season. In a Program Season with multiple Emergency Events, the 

Delivered Capacity will be based on the Customers average event performance during the 

term of that Program Season.   

 

9. Environmental. In order for the engine to be considered an emergency stationary engine under 40 CFR 

Part 60 Subpart IIII, 40 CFR Part 60 Subpart JJJJ and/or 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart ZZZZ any operation other 

than emergency operation, maintenance and testing, emergency demand response, and operation 

in non-emergency situations for up to 50 hours per calendar year, as described in the applicable 

regulation(s), is prohibited. If Customer does not operate the engine according to these requirements, 

the engine will not be considered an emergency engine and must meet all requirements for non-

emergency engines in the applicable regulations. 

 

Emergency Demand Response Events per this contract are considered non-emergency situations (not 

to exceed 50 hours per calendar year). Power supplied as part of a financial arrangement with 

Consumers Energy must meet all of the following conditions: 

 

a. The engine is dispatched by the local balancing authority or local transmission and distribution 

system operator. 

 

b. The dispatch is intended to mitigate local transmission and/or distribution limitations so as to avert 

potential voltage collapse or line overloads that could lead to the interruption of power supply in a 

local area or region. 

 

c. The dispatch follows reliability, emergency operation or similar protocols that follow specific NERC, 

regional, state, public utility commission or local standards or guidelines. 

 

d. The power is provided only to the facility itself or to support the local transmission and distribution 

system. 

 

e. The owner or operator (Customer) identifies and records the entity that dispatches the engine and 

the specific NERC, regional, state, public utility commission or local standards or guidelines that are 



Form 4021   1-2025 2026 Season - Emergency Demand Response Page 4 of 13 

being followed for dispatching the engine. The local balancing authority or local transmission and 

distribution system operator may keep these records on behalf of the engine owner or operator. 

 

f. The owner or operator (Customer) is responsible for all EPA reporting requirements. Customers who 

do not comply with EPA reporting may be removed from the program at Consumers Energy’s 

discretion. 

 

10. Payments to Customer. 
 

a. Emergency Capacity Payments. For a single year contract, the capacity payment price is $20/kW for 

the Summer Program Season, $8/kW for Fall Program Season, $8/kW for the Winter Program Season, 

and $8/kW for the Spring Program Season. For a two (2) year contract, the capacity payment price is 

$25/kW for the Summer Program Season, $9/kW for Fall Program Season, $9/kW for Winter Program 

Season, and $9/kW for Spring Program Season. Delivered Capacity capped at 250% per Program 

Season as defined in section 8(b). Consumers Energy will pay Customer the Capacity Rate multiplied 

by the Delivered Capacity. 

b. Emergency Event Energy Payments. In Program Seasons when one or more Emergency Events are 

called, Consumers Energy will pay Customer an energy payment of $450/MWh multiplied by the 

event’s Delivered Capacity multiplied by the hours for each such event as defined in section 8(b) 

above. 

 

11. Payment Timing. After an Emergency Event and Customer’s Delivered Capacity has been verified, 

Consumers Energy shall make Emergency Event Energy Payments for Customer’s participation by the 

issuance of credits to the Customer’s bill or by check. The Emergency Capacity Payment will be made 

within sixty (60) days after the final day of each selected Program Season. 

 

12. Cancellation. Customer or Consumers Energy may cancel this Agreement or request to amend 

nomination(s) for the Program Seasons occurring in the next year, if such cancellation or request to 

amend is submitted to Consumers Energy between October 1 – December 31 of the prior year. Requests 

to amend nomination(s) shall be granted at the Company’s discretion and shall only apply to the 

Program Seasons occurring in the following year. Cancellation requests must be submitted in writing to: 

ConsumersEnergy.DemandResponseProgram@cmsenergy.com. The customer will be notified by 

Consumers Energy if they cancel or are removed from the program. 

 

13. Confidentiality. 
 

a. Nondisclosure to Third Parties. In performing under the Agreement, each Party to this Agreement will 

be exposed to certain Confidential Information (as hereinafter defined) of the other Party. Each Party 

on its own behalf and on behalf of its employees, contractors and agents (collectively, 

“Representatives”) agrees not to, except as required by applicable law or regulation, use or disclose 

such Confidential Information without the prior written consent of the other Party, either during or 

after the Term. To protect Confidential Information, each Party agrees to: (i) limit dissemination of 

Confidential Information to only those Representatives having a “need to know”; (ii) advise each 

Representative who receives Confidential Information of the confidential nature of such information; 

and (iii) have appropriate agreements, policies and/or procedures in place with such 

Representatives sufficient to enable compliance with the confidentiality obligations contained 

herein. The term “Confidential Information” means all information which is disclosed, either orally or in 

written form, by either Party or its Representatives and shall be deemed to include: (w) any notes, 

analyses, compilations, studies, interpretations, memoranda or other documents prepared by either 

Party or its Representatives which contain, reflect or are based upon, in whole or in part, any 

Confidential Information furnished to a receiving Party or its Representatives pursuant hereto; (x) any 

information concerning the business relationship between the Parties; and (y) Customer Data. 

 

b. Exclusions from Confidential Information. Notwithstanding the obligations in Section 13(a) above, 

Confidential Information does not include any information that: 

 

i. is or becomes generally known to the public without breach of any obligation owed to the 

disclosing Party; 

mailto:ConsumersEnergy.DemandResponseProgram@cmsenergy.com


Form 4021   1-2025 2026 Season - Emergency Demand Response Page 5 of 13 

 

ii. was known to the receiving Party prior to its disclosure by the disclosing Party without breach of 

any obligation owed to the disclosing Party; 

 

iii. is received from a third party without the receiving party having any knowledge of any breach by 

such third party of any obligation owed to the disclosing Party; or  

 

iv. was independently developed by the receiving Party without reference to or reliance upon the 

disclosing Party’s Confidential Information. 

 

14. Limitation of Liability. Consumers Energy’s and its contractors’ and subcontractors’ liability hereunder is 

limited to direct actual damages as the sole and exclusive remedy, and total damages under the 

Agreement shall not exceed $100,000 or the total amounts paid by Consumers Energy under the 

Agreement, whichever is less. In no event shall either Party, its parent, officers, directors, partners, 

shareholders, employees or affiliates, or any contractor or subcontractor or its employees or affiliates, be 

liable to the other Party for special, indirect, exemplary, punitive, incidental or consequential damages of 

any nature whatsoever connected with or resulting from performance or non-performance of obligations 

under the Agreement, including without limitation, damages or claims in the nature of lost revenue, 

income or profits, loss of use, or cost of capital, irrespective of whether such damages are reasonably 

foreseeable and irrespective of whether such claims are based upon negligence, strict liability contract, 

operation of law or otherwise. 

 

15. Additional Terms. 
 

a. Customer also agrees, with respect to Consumers Energy’s management of the Monitoring System, it: 

 

i. receives a limited, revocable, non-transferrable and non-exclusive right to use and access 

during the Term the Monitoring System and shall use the Monitoring System solely for its internal 

use subject to the terms of the Agreement and not for the benefit of any third party. Except as 

expressly permitted in the Agreement, Customer agrees that it shall not receive any right, title or 

interest in, or any license or right to use or access, the Monitoring System or any patent, 

copyright, trade secret, trademark or other intellectual property rights therein by implication or 

otherwise; 

 

ii. shall use the Monitoring System in accordance with all applicable law; 

 

iii. shall not and shall prohibit causing or permitting, the copying, reverse engineering, disassembly, 

decompilation or attempting to derive the source code of the Monitoring System, or other 

intellectual property of Consumers Energy or creation of any derivative work thereof; 

 

iv. expressly disclaims any passing of title to the Monitoring System, any trade names, trade dress, 

trademarks, service marks, commercial symbols, copyrightable material, designs, logos and/or 

any other intellectual property of Customer; 

 

v. shall not delete, alter, cover, or distort any copyright or other proprietary notices or trademarks 

from the Monitoring System and to use reasonable care to prevent the Monitoring System and 

Consumers Energy’s intellectual property rights contained in the software from damage and 

unauthorized use. 

 

 

 

b. Miscellaneous. Customer may not assign any of its rights or delegate any of its performance 

obligations hereunder without the prior written consent of Consumers Energy. The Agreement, 

including all attachments, constitutes the entire agreement between Customer and Consumers 

Energy and may only be amended in writing signed by each of the Parties. If any of its provisions shall 

be held invalid or unenforceable, this Agreement shall be construed as if not containing those 

provisions and the rights and obligations of the Parties hereto shall be construed and enforced 

accordingly. This Agreement shall be binding upon the Parties together with their successors and 



Form 4021   1-2025 2026 Season - Emergency Demand Response Page 6 of 13 

permitted assigns. Each Party shall be responsible for its Representatives’ compliance with the 

Agreement. Customer shall promptly notify Consumers Energy in writing of any changes occurring 

during the Term to the Customer address(es) set forth in this Agreement. 

 

c. Force Majeure. The Parties to this Agreement shall be excused from any failure or delay in the 

performance of their obligations if such obligations are prevented from being fulfilled due to Force 

Majeure. A Party unable to fulfill any obligation hereunder (other than an obligation to pay money 

when due) by reason of Force Majeure, shall give notice and the full particulars of such Force 

Majeure to the other Party in writing or by telephone as soon as reasonably possible after the 

occurrence of the cause relied upon. Telephone notices given pursuant to this article shall be 

confirmed in writing as soon as reasonably possible and shall specifically state full particulars of the 

Force Majeure, the time and date when the Force Majeure occurred and when the Force Majeure is 

reasonably expected to cease. The Party affected shall exercise due diligence to remove such 

disability with reasonable dispatch, but shall not be required to accede or agree to any provision not 

satisfactory to it in order to settle and terminate a strike or other labor disturbance. A “Force Majeure” 

shall include any act, event, or occurrence beyond the Party’s reasonable control, which the Party, 

despite its best efforts, is unable to prevent, avoid, overcome, delay or mitigate, including but not 

limited to: floods, epidemics, earthquakes, quarantine, blockade, war, insurrection or civil strife or 

terrorism, provided, however, that Force Majeure shall in no event include (i) failure of Subcontractors 

or Suppliers to deliver services, materials or components or receipt from any Subcontractor or Supplier 

of defective services, material or components unless same were themselves caused by a Force 

Majeure Event; (ii) technological impossibility; (iii) a governmental act or failure to act, or order or 

injunction, caused by any act or failure to act of the Seller or any Subcontractor or Supplier; (iv) strikes 

or work stoppages; or (v) inclement weather. 

 

d. Warranty Limitations. THE MONITORING SYSTEM (AND ANY SOFTWARE, HARDWARE, OR OTHER 

COMPONENT THEREOF) AND ALL SERVICES HEREUNDER ARE PROVIDED AS IS BY CONSUMERS ENERGY 

WITHOUT ANY WARRANTY OF ANY KIND. ALL WARRANTIES, WHETHER EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, INCLUDING 

BUT NOT LIMITED TO ALL WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY AND FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE, 

ARE EXPRESSLY DISCLAIMED TO THE FULLEST EXTENT PERMISSIBLE UNDER APPLICABLE LAW. 

 

e. Governing Law; Actions; Etc.:  This Agreement shall be deemed a Michigan contract and shall be 

governed by and interpreted in accordance with the laws of the State of Michigan; excluding any 

conflicts of laws principles that would result in this Agreement being interpreted in accordance with 

any different law. Venue for any lawsuit arising out of or in connection with this Agreement shall be 

exclusively in the courts of the State of Michigan or a Federal court sitting in the State of Michigan. Any 

legal action against Consumers Energy relating to this Agreement or the breach thereof shall be 

commenced within one year from the date on which the claimed breach, default or other cause of 

action arose (and, without limiting the foregoing, in all events not later than one year after the date of 

completion or other cessation of performance of the work hereunder). This Agreement is intended for 

the benefit of the parties herein only and does not grant any rights to any third parties unless otherwise 

specifically stated herein. If Customer defaults in the timely performance of any of its obligations 

hereunder, then Consumers Energy may, at its option, and in addition to any and all other rights or 

remedies it may have hereunder or at law or equity, terminate this Contract by written notice to 

Customer. 

 

  



Form 4021   1-2025 2026 Season - Emergency Demand Response Page 7 of 13 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, and intending to be legally bound, the Parties have duly executed this Agreement by 
their authorized representatives as of the Effective Date. 
 

 

 

Utility Signature Customer Signature  
 
 

CONSUMERS ENERGY COMPANY        
 (Company) 
 

By:     By:    
 (Signature) (Signature) 
 

              
 (Print or Type Name) (Print or Type Name) 

 

              
 (Date)  (Title) 

 

         
  (Email) 

 

         
  (Date) 

 

                                                                                                                                 Mark box if Mailing Address is the same as Page 1 

 

 

           

   (Mailing Address)  

 

           
  (City, State, Zip)  

 
 

 

  



Form 4021   1-2025 2026 Season - Emergency Demand Response Page 8 of 13 

Attachment A 
PAYMENT INFORMATION 

 

 

 

                                                                                          
 
 
Payment Information 
 

  Bill Credit             Check  (If Check, please provide a mailing address below): 

      Mark box if Mailing Address is the same as the previous page 

Contact Name: Accounts Payable                               

Site Name: City of Owosso WWTP 

Address: 301 W. Main St. 

City, State, Zip code: Owosso, MI 48867 

*If payments need to go to multiple sites, please work with the NOC. 

 

 

 

  



Form 4021   1-2025 2026 Season - Emergency Demand Response Page 9 of 13 

ATTACHMENT B -  
CUSTOMER BASELINE CALCULATIONS AND PERFORMANCE OBLIGATIONS 

 
 

“Original Baseline Demand” calculation methodology – for interruptions called on normal business days, 

calculate an average hourly demand profile based on the demands created during the ten (10) non-

interruption business days immediately preceding an interruption notification, excluding Saturday, Sunday 

and holidays as recognized in the Company’s Electric Rate Book (“Normal Baseline Demand”). 

 

“Day of Adjustment” calculation methodology - starts at the point of the interruption event and counts back 

four (4) hours.  (For purposes of clarification – for the “Day of Adjustment” calculation only the baseline is 

calculated beginning from the start of the interruption event and moving backwards by four (4) hours).  The 

“Original Baseline Demand” will be ADJUSTED up/down on the day of an event by the ratio of (a) the sum of 

hourly demands for the three (3) hours beginning four (4) hours prior to the interruption event and (b) the sum 

of those same three hours unadjusted consumption baseline demands.  The resultant change to the Original 

Baseline Demand is limited to +/- 20% of the Original Baseline Demand and is referred to as the “Adjusted 

Baseline Demand”. 

 

 

Below are 4 different Demand Response Enactment Event scenarios, all based on: 
 
The prior 10 business day/24-hour baseline = 100 kW with a 20 kW Nomination amount  

 
Details Scenario 1 Senario 2 Scenario 3 Scenario 4 

Average demand for 3 

hours, beginning 4 

hours prior to “Day of 

Adjustment” 

70 kW 110 kW 95 kW 125 kW 

What is the Adjusted 

Baseline Demand to 

reduce power against? 

The 70 kW average 

demand during the 3 

hour “Day of 

Adjustment” period 

represents a 30% 

decrease from the 

Original Baseline 

Demand, so the Original 

Baseline Demand will be 

reduced by only 20%, as 

per the “Baseline” 

calculation 

methodology. 

 

Adjusted Baseline 

Demand = 80 kW 

The 110 kW average 

demand during the 3 

hour “Day of 

Adjustment” period 

represents a 10% 

increase from the 

Original Baseline 

Demand, so the Original 

Baseline Demand will be 

increased by 10%, as 

per the “Baseline” 

calculation 

methodology. 

 

Adjusted Baseline 

Demand = 110 kW 

The 95 kW average 

demand during the 3 

hour “Day of 

Adjustment” period 

represents a 5% 

decrease from the 

Original Baseline 

Demand, so the Original 

Baseline Demand will be 

decreased by 5%, as 

per the “Baseline” 

calculation 

methodology. 

 

Adjusted Baseline 

Demand = 95 kW 

The 125 kW average 

demand during the 3 

hour “Day of 

Adjustment” period 

represents a 25% 

increase from the 

Original Baseline 

Demand, so the Original 

Baseline Demand will be 

increased by only 20%, 

as per the “Baseline” 

calculation 

methodology. 

 

Adjusted Baseline 

Demand = 120 kW 

kW customer is 

required to reduce 

load to in order to 

FULLY comply during 

this event (100%) 

60 kW 
 

80 kW – 20 kW  

(Baseline – Nomination) 

90 kW 
 

110 kW – 20 kW 

(Baseline – Nomination) 

75 kW 
 

95 kW – 20 kW 

(Baseline – Nomination) 

100 kW 
 

120 kW – 20 kW 

(Baseline – Nomination) 



Form 4021   1-2025 2026 Season - Emergency Demand Response Page 10 of 13 

Attachment C 
2026 CONSUMERS ENERGY DEMAND RESPONSE  

ENERGY REDUCTION PLAN 
 

 

 

Company Name: City of Owosso WWTP 

Facility Contact Name(s): Tim Guyski 

DR Event Procedure: 
Consumers Energy will notify you that a DR event has been dispatched.  Confirm phone, e-mail, and/or  text 

notifications sent by Consumers Energy.  Manually shut down the following equipment by the time the DR 

event begins.  If applicable, turn on generator  and transfer  specified building load to the generator. 

 

Program Season Nominations 
Season Summer Fall Winter Spring 

kW 175 175 175 175 

 

 

Site Addresses and Shutdown Procedure 

Site Name Site Address 
Contract 
Account 
Number 

Meter 
Number Equipment Shutdown Procedure 

Sum
m

er 
Load (kW

) 

Fall Load 
(kW

) 

W
inter 

Load (kW
) 

Spring 
Load (kW

) 

G
enerator? 

Example: ABC Location  123 Main St. Anywhere MI 123456789012 12345678 HVAC & Lighting 
Reduce setpoints using Building 

Management System 
100 100 100 100  

City of Owosoo WWTP 
1412 Chippewa Trail 

Owosso, MI 48867 
100000180248 80040581 

Switch to full 

generation 
Switch to full generation 175 175 175 175  

                                                             



Form 4021   1-2025 2026 Season - Emergency Demand Response Page 11 of 13 

Site Name Site Address 
Contract 
Account 
Number 

Meter 
Number Equipment Shutdown Procedure 

Sum
m

er 
Load (kW

) 

Fall Load 
(kW

) 

W
inter 

Load (kW
) 

Spring 
Load (kW

) 

G
enerator? 

                                                             

                                                             

                                                             

                                                             

                                                             

                                                             



Form 4021   1-2025 2026 Season - Emergency Demand Response Page 12 of 13 

Site Name Site Address 
Contract 
Account 
Number 

Meter 
Number Equipment Shutdown Procedure 

Sum
m

er 
Load (kW

) 

Fall Load 
(kW

) 

W
inter 

Load (kW
) 

Spring 
Load (kW

) 

G
enerator? 

                                                             

                                                             

                                                             

                                                             

                                                             

                                                             



Form 4021   1-2025 2026 Season - Emergency Demand Response Page 13 of 13 

Attachment D 
GENERATOR 

 
Please fill out the table below: 

Fuel Type = Example, Natural gas or Diesel. Model Year = When the engine was built?  
Engine HP = Should be reflected on the generator/engine tag. 

 

Site Name Site Account 
Number FUEL TYPE MODEL YEAR ENGINE HP 

City of Owosso 

WWTP 

100000180248 Diesel 2019 1220 

                              

                              

                              

                              

                              

                              

                              

                              

                              

                              

                              

                              

                              

                              

                              

                              

                              

                              

                              

                              

                              

                              

                             

   



1 
 

 Owosso Transformation Strategy  
Development Plan 

 
 

TRANSFORMATION STRATEGY COMPONENTS 
  

Community Input A community survey is conducted every two to three years called the 
Pulse Poll with the goal of engaging the community to gather essential 
feedback about the status of the downtown, desired future direction of 
the downtown, and any significant challenges facing the downtown’s 
future.  Feedback is gathered from all stakeholders including residents, 
business and property owners, and City elected leaders and staff.  
 
Insights from the 2024 Pulse Poll reveal the community is looking for more 
art and entertainment within the district in the form of live music and 
activities.  The community also states they would like to see more retail 
stores such as arts, crafts and hobby stores, a book store, general/variety 
stores offering unique gifts and experiences, a vintage or antique store, 
and a specialty food store.  Most respondents also noted that more dining 
options would make Downtown Owosso better including a variety of 
restaurants and casual sit-down and quick service offerings. Last, the 
event that is most widely attended by respondents is the Farmer’s Market.  
  

Market Data Market data summarizes local and regional demographics and lifestyle 
and retail data, which is critical information for evaluating the current 
market economy, identifying opportunities, and assessing downtown 
enhancement strategies.  The data can also be used for benchmarking 
and tracking changes in the market and possible implications for 
downtown.  
 
Link to Market Data Snapshot:  
https://downtownowosso.org/wp-content/uploads/2025-MI-
Owosso-Market-Snapshot.pdf 
 
Leakage/Surplus Insights: 

• Surplus:  
o Grocery store 
o Specialty food store 
o Office supplies, stationery, gifts 

• Leakage:  
o Furniture/home furnishings 
o Gardening  
o Home centers 
o Health and personal care store 
o Clothing and accessories 

https://downtownowosso.org/wp-content/uploads/2025-MI-Owosso-Market-Snapshot.pdf
https://downtownowosso.org/wp-content/uploads/2025-MI-Owosso-Market-Snapshot.pdf


2 
 

o Sporting goods 
o Hobbies, toys, games 
o Gift, novelty and souvenir  
o Restaurants – all (full service, limited service) 

 
Tapestry Segmentation Insights 

• Married couples 
• Some families and some singles  
• Discount shoppers, convenience  
• Cost conscious and budget savvy 
• Brand loyalty if price is right and it’s a brand they have grown up 

with, otherwise prefer generic over brand name 
• Traditional, not trendy; opt for convenience and comfort not 

cutting edge.  
• Attentive to price, but not at the expense of quality, 
• DIY homebodies that spend on home improvement and gardening. 

Maintenance is a big focus 
• Leisure activities include movies at home, reading, fishing, and 

golf. 
• Contribute to arts/cultural, educational, health, and social 

services organizations. Participate in public activities  
 
Visitor Data Snapshot:  
https://downtownowosso.org/wp-content/uploads/MSA-Report-Owosso-
MI-Visitor-Profile-Event-Analysis.pdf 
 

Place-Based 
Assets 

Developing a list of the valued downtown and community assets allows 
the board to strategize about how to leverage and build upon your assets 
in your downtown revitalization efforts and to better understand your 
market and target audience through understanding how other people see 
and experience your community.  

Strategy 
Identification 

 

Transformation Strategies are three-to-five-year plans that serve to guide 
the work of the organization.  The selected Transformation Strategy(ies) 
follow key themes from the community input, meet the needs of the 
downtown’s key customer base and demographics, and are focused 
around the community’s unique niches as determined by your downtown 
business mix and assets.  The selected strategy(ies) build on a local 
strength or opportunity and a community’s aspirations.  If a community 
has two Transformation Strategies, they should be compatible and 
complementary to one another.  
 

https://downtownowosso.org/wp-content/uploads/MSA-Report-Owosso-MI-Visitor-Profile-Event-Analysis.pdf
https://downtownowosso.org/wp-content/uploads/MSA-Report-Owosso-MI-Visitor-Profile-Event-Analysis.pdf


3 
 

Vision The vision statement provides a defined description of where your 
downtown will be in the future.  It defines the ideal state or environment 
for your downtown overtime and incorporates aspirational assets, traits, 
and values shared by community stakeholders.  Through implementing 
the transformation strategy(ies), your community will be steps closer to 
reaching your community’s vision for downtown.  
 

Define Goals Transformation Strategy Goals are meant to be broad and continuous and 
serve to guide decision-making for the organization through allowing the 
board and committees to define what needs to be accomplished to 
successfully implement the chosen Transformation Strategies.  

Measures of 
Success 

Measures of success assist in setting benchmarks for the organization as 
it develops activities and deploys its project work plans. They are 
indicators of performance relative to the goals, help to track whether a 
particular project or program is working, encourage and allow for 
adjustment and help to quantify the results expected of a particular goal 
and associated projects and programs. Example measures of success 
are: increase in businesses related to the transformation strategy, # 
changes to products/services, positive shift in attitudes/perceptions, # of 
buildings rehabbed, % increase in foot traffic, average transaction 
amounts, increase in gross sales, changes to demographics frequenting 
district, etc. 
 

Project Work Plans The board and committees identify specific projects and programs that 
are focused on achieving the defined transformation strategies, goals and 
measures of success.  Projects should align with one or more of the Main 
Street Four Points (Economic Vitality, Design, Promotion, Organization) 
and should be prioritized based on available resources, impact and 
feasibility.  Project Plans should be created for each project, which 
identify a project lead, budget and timeline for every project.  Events and 
more complex projects require a Work Plan to be created which includes a 
robust task list in addition to the items listed in the Project Plan.  
 
Link to Project Plan - https://downtownowosso.org/wp-
content/uploads/Potential-Programming-Worksheet.pdf 
 
Refer to Michigan Main Street Transformation Strategy Guide – pages 18 – 
26 for information related to Strategy Implementation 
 

 
 
 
 
 

https://downtownowosso.org/wp-content/uploads/Potential-Programming-Worksheet.pdf
https://downtownowosso.org/wp-content/uploads/Potential-Programming-Worksheet.pdf
https://www.miplace.org/4a3306/globalassets/documents/michigan-main-street/resources/people/mms-transformation-strategy-guidebook.pdf


4 
 

OWOSSO TRANSFORMATION STRATEGY 
Downtown Renaissance   
For building a strong foundation for revitalization through intentional investment in improvements 
to the public realm and supporting small business development.  Focus could include 
beautification efforts, public improvement projects with the intent to improve the district’s 
aesthetics, economic development initiatives to enhance the variety of small business offerings, 
and strategic placemaking projects that create activity and vitality in the district through the 
inclusion of art and live music.  With a resident-serving focus, this strategy prioritizes businesses, 
events, activities, and amenities that meet the resident’s needs and desires, aiming to increase 
local pride, support business growth, and drive consistent resident patronage. Additional focus 
could include convenience goods and services, health and wellness, arts and culture, or outdoor 
recreation related activities and businesses, dependent upon a community’s existing assets.   

 
VISION STATEMENT  
 
Our downtown, bright with promise and potential, captures the spirit of community. It is a gathering 
place to work, eat, play, and stay. Downtown Owosso is rich with opportunities in art, 
entertainment, business, and development. Owosso Main Street unites individuals, businesses, 
and local government to revitalize our historic downtown. It is a comprehensive approach that 
focuses on community assets and partnerships to preserve and promote historic Owosso. 
  
GOAL # 1 

Goal Measures of Success  
Support New and Existing Businesses, Help 
Create Entrepreneurs, and Attract Developers  

a. Building and Business Inventory is 
updated and complete 

b. 5 empty storefronts have been filled with 
businesses that meet the market data and 
community demand 

c. Business retention – deliver welcome 
baskets to new businesses and host 
business roundtables quarterly 

d. Business recruitment process is updated 
e. 5 grants or loans have been deployed 

through revolving loan fund/grant program 
 

Project/Program Lead & Partners Timeline 

Obtain and Promote Market Data  Economic Vitality  Immediate (1-2 
years)  

Update Building and Business Inventory  Economic Vitality  Ongoing  

Promote Vacant Properties & Create Custom Marketing 
Materials  

Economic Vitality  Short-term (3-5 
years)  

Organize Business Roundtables  Economic Vitality  Immediate (1-2 
years)  



5 
 

Organize, Launch, and Maintain Revolving Loan Fund (RLF)  Economic Vitality  Ongoing  

Conduct Business Recruitment  Economic Vitality  Short-term (3-5 
years)  

Obtain Professional Photography of Downtown  Promotion  Immediate (1-2 
years)  

Assist in Redevelopment of Key Properties  Economic Vitality  Short-term (3-5 
years)  

 
GOAL # 2 

Goal Measures of Success  
Promote and Expand Arts & Culture 
Opportunities  

a. Increase in public art installations by 2 
projects  

b. One targeted collaboration with business 
owners to drive activity downtown per year 

c. An event evaluation has been conducted 
for every event 

d. Change in Pulse Poll visitation to increase 
in visits to 25% or more and decrease in 
visit to 20% or less 

 

Project/Program Lead & Partners Timeline 
Evaluate Existing Events for Purpose, Profitability  Promotion  Immediate (1-2 

years)  
Promote Lebowski Theater and Shiawassee Arts Center  Promotion  Ongoing  
Create Murals or other public art in Downtown  Design  Short-term (3-5 

years)  
Create and Execute Storefront Competition  Promotion  Immediate (1-2 

years) 
 
GOAL # 3 

Goal Measures of Success  
Ensure Downtown Owosso is an Attractive 
Place Where Infrastructure is Maintained and 
Enhanced to Improve the Aesthetics and 
Functionality 

a. Street light replacement project is 
complete 

b. Increase in placemaking installations by 3 
projects  

c. A system and plan is in place for 
downtown flowers 

d. Consistent volunteers are attending 
meetings and implementing Design 
projects  

e. Durable signage is planned and installed 
downtown for social district and 
wayfinding 

 



6 
 

Project/Program Lead & Partners Timeline 
Weed public spaces, Painting curbs, etc., Planting/Trees  Design  Ongoing  
Consistently Improve Landscape and Streetscape 
(consistent with Master Plan and Capital Improvement, and 
TIF Plans)  

Design  Ongoing  

Assist in Façade Improvements; Create and Execute 
Façade Grant Program  

Economic Vitality  Short-term (3-5 
years)  

Improve Public Lighting in Streetscape Elements  Design  Short-term (3-5 
years)  

Plan and Implement Traffic Calming on M-21  Design  Short-term (3-5 
years)  

Plan and Execute Pedestrian Improvements  Design  Immediate (1-2 
years)  

Create a Greater Connection to the Shiawassee River  Design & Promotion  Short-term (3-5 
years) 

 

GOAL # 4 

Goal Measures of Success  
Maintain and Grow the Owosso Main Street 
Organization to Ensure it has the Human and 
Financial Resources it needs to Fulfill its 
Mission 

a. Increase funds raised by 5% each year 
(baseline is $15,000) 

b. Develop a volunteer appreciation plan 
c. Maintain an active consistent volunteer 

base of 50 volunteers per year 
d. Develop an Owosso Main Street 

Organization Section in OMS Newsletter 
e. Pulse Poll perception data shows less 

than 20% in declining or losing ground 
category 

 

Project/Program Lead & Partners Timeline 
Promote the Activities and Accomplishments of Main 
Street Owosso  

Organization & 
Promotion  

Ongoing  

Create and Execute Volunteer Recruitment Plan  Organization  Immediate (1-2 
years)  

Create and Execute Fundraising Plan  Organization  Immediate (1-2 
years)  

Volunteer Appreciation & Recognition  Organization  Immediate (1-2 
years)  

Report Out Monthly at City Council Meetings for the 
Purpose of Improving Relationships  

Organization  Ongoing  

 



Owosso City Council

Building Department

Report Month:

From:

To: 

Category Estimated Cost Permit Fee Number of Permits

JULY 2025

ABOVE GROUND POOL $0 $75 1
ACCESSORY STRUCTURES $0 $150 2
BASEMENT WATERPROOFING $10,284 $265 1
DEMOLITION $16,000 $300 2
Electrical $0 $2,160 11
FENCE PERMIT $0 $510 7
FOUNDATION - RESIDENTIAL $5,000 $400 5
Mechanical $0 $3,130 18
NEW BUSINESS $0 $0 1
NON-RES. ADD/ALTER/REPAIR $350,000 $5,557 1
Plumbing $0 $1,040 7
RES. ADD/ALTER/REPAIR $300,039 $2,895 2
RES. SINGLE FAMILY NEW BUILD $143,090 $1,835 1
ROOF $593,282 $7,420 23
ROW-SIDEWALK OCCUPANCY $0 $0 1
ROW-UTILITY $0 $200 4
SIDING $11,263 $90 1
SIGN PERMIT $0 $97 4
UTILITIES $0 $50 1
WINDOWS $168,411 $450 9

Totals $26,624 102$1,597,369

2024 COMPARISON TOTALS

$508,010 $11,602 83JULY 2024











Last Action
Date RentalDate Closed

Next Action
DateFiledCurrent StatusPrevious StatusAddressEnf. Number

1/17Code Enforcement Activity08/01/25

JULY 2025

ACCESSORY STRUCTURES

07/16/2025ENF 24-1721 CLOSED 10/25/2024 07/23/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY NFLETCHER ST

07/29/2025 08/28/2025ENF 24-0655 RECHECK SCHEDULED 04/17/2024INSPECTED PROPERTY NDEWEY ST

Total Entries 2

APPLIANCES

07/22/2025 08/05/2025ENF 25-0593 RECHECK SCHEDULED 06/24/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY NLYNN ST

Total Entries 1

AUTO REP/JUNK VEH

07/02/2025ENF 25-0355 CLOSED 05/01/2025 07/02/2025RESOLVED COMMWASHINGTON ST

07/15/2025ENF 25-0385 CLOSED 05/12/2025 07/15/2025RESOLVED NCHIPMAN ST

07/15/2025ENF 25-0583 CLOSED 06/23/2025 07/15/2025RESOLVED YGOULD ST

07/07/2025ENF 25-0589 CLOSED 06/23/2025 07/07/2025RESOLVED YPINE ST

07/22/2025ENF 25-0608 CLOSED 06/25/2025 07/22/2025RESOLVED NWILLIAMS ST

07/16/2025ENF 25-0654 CLOSED 07/09/2025 07/16/2025RESOLVED NKING ST

07/28/2025 08/05/2025ENF 25-0716 RECHECK SCHEDULED 07/28/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY YCOMSTOCK ST

07/29/2025 08/05/2025ENF 25-0727 RECHECK SCHEDULED 07/29/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY NABBOTT ST

07/29/2025 08/12/2025ENF 25-0569 PARTIALLY RESOLVED 06/17/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY NBALL ST

Total Entries 9

BRUSH PILES

07/14/2025 08/04/2025ENF 25-0669 RECHECK SCHEDULED 07/14/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY YHICKORY ST

Total Entries 1

BUILDING VIOL



Last Action
Date RentalDate Closed

Next Action
DateFiledCurrent StatusPrevious StatusAddressEnf. Number

2/17Code Enforcement Activity08/01/25

JULY 2025

07/21/2025ENF 22-1586 CLOSED 11/29/2022 07/21/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY COMMEXCHANGE ST

07/02/2025ENF 24-0726 CLOSED 04/30/2024 07/02/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY NMASON ST

07/02/2025 08/04/2025ENF 21-1484 RECHECK SCHEDULED 09/27/2021INSPECTED PROPERTY VACSAGINAW ST

07/08/2025 08/07/2025ENF 21-1156 RECHECK SCHEDULED 08/01/2023INSPECTED PROPERTY NWILLIAMS ST

07/29/2025 08/12/2025ENF 19-0167 PARTIALLY RESOLVED 03/15/2019INSPECTED PROPERTY NTRACY ST

07/21/2025 08/25/2025ENF 22-0167 RECHECK SCHEDULED 02/15/2022INSPECTED PROPERTY NCEDAR ST

07/22/2025 08/25/2025ENF 23-0631 RECHECK SCHEDULED 06/22/2023INSPECTED PROPERTY NSAGINAW ST

07/31/2025 08/28/2025ENF 21-0307 RECHECK SCHEDULED 03/03/2021INSPECTED PROPERTY COMMWASHINGTON ST

07/30/2025 08/28/2025ENF 22-0677 RECHECK SCHEDULED 05/19/2022INSPECTED PROPERTY VACSHIAWASSEE ST

07/21/2025 09/22/2025ENF 23-0612 DEMO PENDING 06/20/2023INSPECTED PROPERTY NEXCHANGE

Total Entries 10

BUILDING VIOLATIONS

07/02/2025ENF 23-0849 CLOSED 08/08/2023 07/02/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY VACCARMODY ST

07/07/2025ENF 25-0601 CLOSED 06/24/2025 07/07/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY NHUNTINGTON DR

07/21/2025ENF 25-0684 CLOSED 07/21/2025 07/21/2025OBTAINED PERMIT YSAGINAW ST

07/31/2025ENF 25-0722 CLOSED 07/29/2025 07/31/2025OBTAINED PERMIT NWASHINGTON ST

07/08/2025 08/07/2025ENF 25-0088 RECHECK SCHEDULED 02/05/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY COMMMAIN ST

07/10/2025 08/11/2025ENF 24-1236 RECHECK SCHEDULED 08/06/2024INSPECTED PROPERTY VACANTGREEN ST

07/15/2025 08/18/2025ENF 25-0221 RECHECK SCHEDULED 03/18/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY VACANTGENESEE ST

07/15/2025 08/18/2025ENF 25-0346 RECHECK SCHEDULED 04/29/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY NCHIPMAN ST

07/21/2025 08/21/2025ENF 25-0477 RECHECK SCHEDULED 05/20/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY VACANT
HOUSE

YOUNG ST



Last Action
Date RentalDate Closed

Next Action
DateFiledCurrent StatusPrevious StatusAddressEnf. Number

3/17Code Enforcement Activity08/01/25

JULY 2025

07/31/2025 08/21/2025ENF 25-0730 RECHECK SCHEDULED 07/31/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY NCEDAR ST

07/10/2025 09/25/2025ENF 25-0659 RECHECK SCHEDULED 07/10/2025LETTER SENT NCOMSTOCK ST

Total Entries 11

CHICKENS/DUCKS

07/23/2025 08/06/2025ENF 25-0321 RECHECK SCHEDULED 04/21/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY NSTEWART ST

07/16/2025 08/06/2025ENF 25-0323 RECHECK SCHEDULED 04/21/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY NRIDGE ST

07/28/2025 08/18/2025ENF 24-1281 RECHECK SCHEDULED 08/13/2024INSPECTED PROPERTY NFREDERICK ST

Total Entries 3

DEAD TREE

07/31/2025ENF 24-1926 CLOSED 11/27/2024 07/31/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY NWATER ST

Total Entries 1

DOG FECES

07/31/2025ENF 25-0631 CLOSED 07/07/2025 07/31/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY NCHIPMAN ST

07/15/2025ENF 25-0635 CLOSED 07/08/2025 07/15/2025RESOLVED NHOWELL ST

Total Entries 2

EXTERIOR PAINT/SIDING

07/01/2025ENF 20-0051 CLOSED 01/17/2020 07/01/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY NFLETCHER ST

07/16/2025ENF 20-0143 CLOSED 03/05/2020 07/16/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY NLYNN ST

07/16/2025 08/18/2025ENF 24-0981 RECHECK SCHEDULED 06/10/2024INSPECTED PROPERTY YLANSING ST

Total Entries 3

FENCE VIOLATION

07/02/2025ENF 25-0340 CLOSED 04/28/2025 07/02/2025RESOLVED NOLIVER ST



Last Action
Date RentalDate Closed

Next Action
DateFiledCurrent StatusPrevious StatusAddressEnf. Number

4/17Code Enforcement Activity08/01/25

JULY 2025

07/21/2025 08/04/2025ENF 25-0513 RECHECK SCHEDULED 05/29/2025FINAL NOTICE SENT NRYAN ST

Total Entries 2

FIRE DAMAGE

07/02/2025 08/04/2025ENF 24-1816 RECHECK SCHEDULED 11/08/2024INSPECTED PROPERTY VACANTGUTE ST

Total Entries 1

FRONT YARD PARKING

07/02/2025ENF 25-0562 CLOSED 06/11/2025 07/02/2025RESOLVED NRYAN ST

07/28/2025ENF 25-0585 CLOSED 06/23/2025 07/28/2025RESOLVED NWATER ST

07/22/2025ENF 25-0657 CLOSED 07/10/2025 07/22/2025RESOLVED NMAIN ST

07/15/2025ENF 25-0660 CLOSED 07/10/2025 07/15/2025RESOLVED NRYAN ST

07/23/2025ENF 25-0674 CLOSED 07/15/2025 07/23/2025LETTER SENT NHICKORY ST

07/22/2025 08/05/2025ENF 25-0676 RECHECK SCHEDULED 07/15/2025LETTER SENT NGOULD ST

07/29/2025 08/05/2025ENF 25-0699 RECHECK SCHEDULED 07/22/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY NSUMMIT ST

07/29/2025 08/05/2025ENF 25-0719 RECHECK SCHEDULED 07/29/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY NADAMS ST

07/28/2025 08/12/2025ENF 25-0663 RECHECK SCHEDULED 07/14/2025LETTER SENT NHUNTINGTON DR

07/29/2025 08/12/2025ENF 25-0724 RECHECK SCHEDULED 07/29/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY NCHIPMAN ST

07/29/2025 08/13/2025ENF 25-0725 RECHECK SCHEDULED 07/29/2025LETTER SENT NCHIPMAN ST

07/29/2025 08/19/2025ENF 25-0695 RECHECK SCHEDULED 07/21/2025LETTER SENT NMASON ST

Total Entries 12

FURNITURE OUTSIDE



Last Action
Date RentalDate Closed

Next Action
DateFiledCurrent StatusPrevious StatusAddressEnf. Number

5/17Code Enforcement Activity08/01/25

JULY 2025

07/30/2025 08/07/2025ENF 25-0650 RECHECK SCHEDULED 07/09/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY NCORUNNA AVE

Total Entries 1

GARBAGE & DEBRIS

07/28/2025ENF 25-0180 CLOSED 03/05/2025 07/28/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY COMMCORUNNA AVE

07/15/2025ENF 25-0302 CLOSED 04/14/2025 07/15/2025RESOLVED NWILLIAMS ST

07/01/2025ENF 25-0368 CLOSED 05/06/2025 07/01/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY NRIDGE ST

07/21/2025ENF 25-0629 CLOSED 07/07/2025 07/21/2025RESOLVED NPARK ST

07/15/2025ENF 25-0639 CLOSED 07/08/2025 07/15/2025RESOLVED NMILWAUKEE ST

07/28/2025ENF 25-0648 CLOSED 07/09/2025 07/28/2025RESOLVED YMAIN ST

07/21/2025 08/04/2025ENF 25-0470 PARTIALLY RESOLVED 05/19/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY NMACK ST

07/21/2025 08/04/2025ENF 25-0621 RECHECK SCHEDULED 07/07/2025LETTER SENT YSTEWART ST

07/22/2025 08/05/2025ENF 24-0614 PARTIALLY RESOLVED 04/04/2024INSPECTED PROPERTY NKENWOOD DR

07/29/2025 08/05/2025ENF 25-0726 RECHECK SCHEDULED 07/29/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY NKENWOOD DR

07/23/2025 08/06/2025ENF 25-0604 PARTIALLY RESOLVED 06/25/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY NCOMSTOCK ST

07/30/2025 08/06/2025ENF 25-0679 RECHECK SCHEDULED 07/16/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY NCHIPMAN ST

07/23/2025 08/06/2025ENF 25-0710 RECHECK SCHEDULED 07/23/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY YAMENT ST

07/08/2025 08/07/2025ENF 23-1355 RECHECK SCHEDULED 12/12/2023INSPECTED PROPERTY NWILLIAMS ST

07/15/2025 08/12/2025ENF 24-1991 PARTIALLY RESOLVED 12/19/2024INSPECTED PROPERTY YBRANDON ST

07/29/2025 08/12/2025ENF 25-0634 PARTIALLY RESOLVED 07/07/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY COMMCHIPMAN ST

07/29/2025 08/13/2025ENF 25-0670 PARTIALLY RESOLVED 07/15/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY NLINGLE AVE

07/30/2025 08/14/2025ENF 24-0008 RECHECK SCHEDULED 01/04/2024INSPECTED PROPERTY NCORUNNA AVE



Last Action
Date RentalDate Closed

Next Action
DateFiledCurrent StatusPrevious StatusAddressEnf. Number

6/17Code Enforcement Activity08/01/25

JULY 2025

07/31/2025 08/14/2025ENF 24-1508 RECHECK SCHEDULED 09/23/2024INSPECTED PROPERTY NFLETCHER ST

07/31/2025 08/28/2025ENF 24-0651 RECHECK SCHEDULED 04/16/2024INSPECTED PROPERTY NHOWARD ST

Total Entries 20

GARBAGE CANS

07/21/2025ENF 25-0664 CLOSED 07/14/2025 07/21/2025RESOLVED YPINE ST

07/29/2025ENF 25-0692 CLOSED 07/21/2025 07/29/2025RESOLVED NISHAM ST

Total Entries 2

GARBAGE/JUNK IN ROW

07/08/2025ENF 25-0573 CLOSED 06/18/2025 07/08/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY YBROADWAY AVE

07/02/2025ENF 25-0577 CLOSED 06/19/2025 07/02/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY NWILTSHIRE DR

07/14/2025ENF 25-0584 CLOSED 06/23/2025 07/14/2025RESOLVED NWATER ST

07/01/2025ENF 25-0587 CLOSED 06/23/2025 07/01/2025RESOLVED NDEWEY ST

07/01/2025ENF 25-0588 CLOSED 06/23/2025 07/01/2025RESOLVED NWILLIAMS ST

07/15/2025ENF 25-0594 CLOSED 06/24/2025 07/15/2025RESOLVED NHICKORY ST

07/01/2025ENF 25-0599 CLOSED 06/24/2025 07/01/2025RESOLVED YQUEEN ST

07/08/2025ENF 25-0600 CLOSED 06/24/2025 07/08/2025RESOLVED NSAGINAW ST

07/02/2025ENF 25-0605 CLOSED 06/25/2025 07/02/2025RESOLVED NOAKWOOD AVE

07/15/2025ENF 25-0607 CLOSED 06/25/2025 07/15/2025RESOLVED YEXCHANGE ST

07/07/2025ENF 25-0610 CLOSED 06/30/2025 07/07/2025RESOLVED NWATER ST

07/07/2025ENF 25-0611 CLOSED 06/30/2025 07/07/2025RESOLVED YKING ST

07/07/2025ENF 25-0612 CLOSED 06/30/2025 07/07/2025RESOLVED NSAGINAW ST



Last Action
Date RentalDate Closed

Next Action
DateFiledCurrent StatusPrevious StatusAddressEnf. Number

7/17Code Enforcement Activity08/01/25

JULY 2025

07/14/2025ENF 25-0616 CLOSED 06/30/2025 07/14/2025RESOLVED YOLIVER

07/14/2025ENF 25-0625 CLOSED 07/07/2025 07/14/2025RESOLVED NHUNTINGTON DR

07/14/2025ENF 25-0626 CLOSED 07/07/2025 07/14/2025RESOLVED NPARK ST

07/14/2025ENF 25-0627 CLOSED 07/07/2025 07/14/2025RESOLVED NPARK ST

07/14/2025ENF 25-0630 CLOSED 07/07/2025 07/14/2025RESOLVED NPINE ST

07/22/2025ENF 25-0633 CLOSED 07/07/2025 07/22/2025RESOLVED YELM ST

07/15/2025ENF 25-0637 CLOSED 07/08/2025 07/15/2025RESOLVED YWILLIAMS ST

07/22/2025ENF 25-0638 CLOSED 07/08/2025 07/22/2025RESOLVED NDIMMICK ST

07/15/2025ENF 25-0640 CLOSED 07/08/2025 07/15/2025RESOLVED NCHIPMAN ST

07/16/2025ENF 25-0641 CLOSED 07/09/2025 07/16/2025RESOLVED NADAMS ST

07/16/2025ENF 25-0643 CLOSED 07/09/2025 07/16/2025RESOLVED YGUTE ST

07/16/2025ENF 25-0652 CLOSED 07/09/2025 07/16/2025RESOLVED NLAFAYETTE BLVD

07/16/2025ENF 25-0653 CLOSED 07/09/2025 07/16/2025RESOLVED NKING ST

07/29/2025ENF 25-0667 CLOSED 07/14/2025 07/29/2025RESOLVED NADAMS ST

07/29/2025ENF 25-0668 CLOSED 07/14/2025 07/29/2025RESOLVED NPARK ST

07/23/2025ENF 25-0681 CLOSED 07/16/2025 07/23/2025RESOLVED YGRAND AVE

07/28/2025ENF 25-0688 CLOSED 07/21/2025 07/28/2025RESOLVED YADAMS ST

07/28/2025ENF 25-0689 CLOSED 07/21/2025 07/28/2025RESOLVED YPINE ST

07/28/2025ENF 25-0691 CLOSED 07/21/2025 07/28/2025RESOLVED NYOUNG ST

07/29/2025ENF 25-0694 CLOSED 07/21/2025 07/29/2025RESOLVED YMILWAUKEE ST

07/31/2025ENF 25-0708 CLOSED 07/23/2025 07/31/2025RESOLVED NADAMS ST



Last Action
Date RentalDate Closed

Next Action
DateFiledCurrent StatusPrevious StatusAddressEnf. Number

8/17Code Enforcement Activity08/01/25

JULY 2025

07/31/2025ENF 25-0711 CLOSED 07/23/2025 07/31/2025RESOLVED NAMENT ST

07/28/2025 08/04/2025ENF 25-0713 RECHECK SCHEDULED 07/28/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY YELIZABETH ST

07/28/2025 08/04/2025ENF 25-0714 RECHECK SCHEDULED 07/28/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY YPINE ST

07/28/2025 08/04/2025ENF 25-0717 RECHECK SCHEDULED 07/28/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY YSTEWART ST

07/29/2025 08/05/2025ENF 25-0675 PARTIALLY RESOLVED 07/15/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY YCLINTON ST

07/22/2025 08/05/2025ENF 25-0696 RECHECK SCHEDULED 07/22/2025LETTER SENT NYOUNG ST

07/29/2025 08/05/2025ENF 25-0703 RECHECK SCHEDULED 07/22/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY NDEWEY ST

07/29/2025 08/05/2025ENF 25-0720 RECHECK SCHEDULED 07/29/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY NSUMMIT ST

07/29/2025 08/05/2025ENF 25-0721 RECHECK SCHEDULED 07/29/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY NOLIVER ST

07/21/2025 08/06/2025ENF 25-0632 PARTIALLY RESOLVED 07/07/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY NPINE ST

07/29/2025 08/06/2025ENF 25-0723 RECHECK SCHEDULED 07/29/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY NCEDAR ST

07/28/2025 08/07/2025ENF 25-0690 RECHECK SCHEDULED 07/21/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY YPINE ST

07/31/2025 08/07/2025ENF 25-0709 RECHECK SCHEDULED 07/23/2025LETTER SENT YGREEN ST

07/31/2025 08/07/2025ENF 25-0731 RECHECK SCHEDULED 07/31/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY NJEROME AVE

07/31/2025 08/07/2025ENF 25-0732 RECHECK SCHEDULED 07/31/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY YCORUNNA AVE

07/09/2025 08/11/2025ENF 25-0649 RECHECK SCHEDULED 07/09/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY NCOMSTOCK ST

Total Entries 50

HDC - NOTICE OF VIOLATION

07/08/2025ENF 24-1527 CLOSED 09/25/2024 07/08/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY COMMEXCHANGE ST

07/31/2025ENF 24-1528 CLOSED 09/25/2024 07/31/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY COMMWASHINGTON ST



Last Action
Date RentalDate Closed

Next Action
DateFiledCurrent StatusPrevious StatusAddressEnf. Number

9/17Code Enforcement Activity08/01/25

JULY 2025

07/31/2025 08/28/2025ENF 24-1717 RECHECK SCHEDULED 10/24/2024INSPECTED PROPERTY COMMEXCHANGE ST

Total Entries 3

HEALTH & SAFETY

07/31/2025 08/07/2025ENF 25-0701 RECHECK SCHEDULED 07/22/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY NMAIN ST

07/31/2025 08/07/2025ENF 25-0702 RECHECK SCHEDULED 07/22/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY NMAIN ST

07/10/2025 08/11/2025ENF 21-0921 RECHECK SCHEDULED 06/23/2021INSPECTED PROPERTY VACCORUNNA AVE

Total Entries 3

HOUSE FIRE

07/28/2025ENF 25-0054 CLOSED 01/27/2025 07/28/2025RESOLVED NBALL ST

07/15/2025 08/18/2025ENF 24-1057 RECHECK SCHEDULED 06/25/2024INSPECTED PROPERTY NCASS ST

Total Entries 2

IMMINENT DANGER OF STRUCTURE

07/10/2025 08/11/2025ENF 25-0609 RECHECK SCHEDULED 06/25/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY COMMMAIN ST

07/31/2025 08/28/2025ENF 22-0059 RECHECK SCHEDULED 01/21/2022INSPECTED PROPERTY VACDEWEY ST

Total Entries 2

LAWN MAINTENANCE

07/23/2025ENF 25-0413 CLOSED 05/15/2025 07/23/2025RESOLVED NDEWEY ST

07/30/2025ENF 25-0419 CLOSED 05/15/2025 07/30/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY NCHIPMAN ST

07/09/2025ENF 25-0452 CLOSED 05/19/2025 07/09/2025RESOLVED NRANDOLPH ST

07/09/2025ENF 25-0537 CLOSED 06/04/2025 07/09/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY NCORUNNA AVE

07/23/2025ENF 25-0564 CLOSED 06/12/2025 07/23/2025RESOLVED NSAGINAW ST

07/02/2025ENF 25-0572 CLOSED 06/18/2025 07/02/2025RESOLVED NALGER AVE



Last Action
Date RentalDate Closed

Next Action
DateFiledCurrent StatusPrevious StatusAddressEnf. Number

10/17Code Enforcement Activity08/01/25

JULY 2025

07/02/2025ENF 25-0574 CLOSED 06/18/2025 07/02/2025RESOLVED NBROADWAY AVE

07/02/2025ENF 25-0591 CLOSED 06/24/2025 07/02/2025RESOLVED YMILWAUKEE ST

07/01/2025ENF 25-0592 CLOSED 06/24/2025 07/01/2025RESOLVED YSTEWART ST

07/02/2025ENF 25-0595 CLOSED 06/24/2025 07/02/2025RESOLVED NRIVER ST

07/02/2025ENF 25-0598 CLOSED 06/24/2025 07/02/2025RESOLVED NKENWOOD DR

07/09/2025ENF 25-0613 CLOSED 06/30/2025 07/09/2025RESOLVED YHARRISON AVE

07/16/2025ENF 25-0614 CLOSED 06/30/2025 07/16/2025RESOLVED VACANTBALL ST

07/09/2025ENF 25-0617 CLOSED 07/01/2025 07/09/2025RESOLVED NLAFAYETTE BLVD

07/09/2025ENF 25-0618 CLOSED 07/01/2025 07/09/2025RESOLVED YLAFAYETTE BLVD

07/09/2025ENF 25-0619 CLOSED 07/01/2025 07/09/2025RESOLVED NLAFAYETTE BLVD

07/16/2025ENF 25-0620 CLOSED 07/07/2025 07/16/2025RESOLVED VACANTPINE ST

07/16/2025ENF 25-0623 CLOSED 07/07/2025 07/16/2025RESOLVED NLINGLE AVE

07/30/2025ENF 25-0624 CLOSED 07/07/2025 07/30/2025RESOLVED COMMCORUNNA AVE

07/23/2025ENF 25-0646 CLOSED 07/09/2025 07/23/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY NGRACE ST

07/23/2025ENF 25-0651 CLOSED 07/09/2025 07/23/2025RESOLVED YPARK ST

07/23/2025ENF 25-0655 CLOSED 07/10/2025 07/23/2025RESOLVED NMEADOW DR

07/23/2025ENF 25-0658 CLOSED 07/10/2025 07/23/2025RESOLVED NMAIN ST

07/30/2025ENF 25-0661 CLOSED 07/10/2025 07/30/2025RESOLVED NMICHIGAN AVE

07/23/2025ENF 25-0671 CLOSED 07/15/2025 07/23/2025RESOLVED NSTEWART ST

07/23/2025ENF 25-0672 CLOSED 07/15/2025 07/23/2025RESOLVED YGENESEE ST

07/23/2025ENF 25-0673 CLOSED 07/15/2025 07/23/2025RESOLVED VACANTGENESEE ST



Last Action
Date RentalDate Closed

Next Action
DateFiledCurrent StatusPrevious StatusAddressEnf. Number

11/17Code Enforcement Activity08/01/25

JULY 2025

07/30/2025ENF 25-0680 CLOSED 07/16/2025 07/30/2025RESOLVED NCHIPMAN ST

07/30/2025ENF 25-0686 CLOSED 07/21/2025 07/30/2025RESOLVED COMMWILLIAMS ST

07/28/2025ENF 25-0712 CLOSED 07/28/2025 07/28/2025RESOLVED VACANT
LOT

WATER ST MASON

07/23/2025 08/06/2025ENF 25-0421 RECHECK SCHEDULED 05/15/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY YSHIAWASSEE ST

07/23/2025 08/06/2025ENF 25-0427 RECHECK SCHEDULED 05/15/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY VACANT
LOT

ELM ST

07/23/2025 08/06/2025ENF 25-0430 RECHECK SCHEDULED 05/15/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY NFLETCHER ST

07/23/2025 08/06/2025ENF 25-0433 RECHECK SCHEDULED 05/15/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY VACANT
LOT

CEDAR ST

07/23/2025 08/06/2025ENF 25-0435 RECHECK SCHEDULED 05/15/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY VACANT
LOT

PARK ST

07/23/2025 08/06/2025ENF 25-0436 RECHECK SCHEDULED 05/15/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY NBROADWAY AVE

07/23/2025 08/06/2025ENF 25-0442 RECHECK SCHEDULED 05/15/2025REF TO MOWING
CONTRACTOR

VACANT
HOUSE

ADAMS ST

07/30/2025 08/06/2025ENF 25-0445 RECHECK SCHEDULED 05/19/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY VACANT
HOUSE

PINE ST

07/16/2025 08/06/2025ENF 25-0484 RECHECK SCHEDULED 05/20/2025REF TO MOWING
CONTRACTOR

YALGER AVE

07/23/2025 08/06/2025ENF 25-0494 RECHECK SCHEDULED 05/21/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY VACANT
LOT

CEDAR ST

07/16/2025 08/06/2025ENF 25-0511 RECHECK SCHEDULED 05/29/2025REF TO MOWING
CONTRACTOR

VACANT
HOUSE

GENESEE ST

07/23/2025 08/06/2025ENF 25-0516 RECHECK SCHEDULED 05/29/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY VACANT
LOT

CEDAR ST

07/23/2025 08/06/2025ENF 25-0517 RECHECK SCHEDULED 06/02/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY NBROADWAY AVE

07/30/2025 08/06/2025ENF 25-0700 RECHECK SCHEDULED 07/22/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY VACANTWOODLAWN AVE



Last Action
Date RentalDate Closed

Next Action
DateFiledCurrent StatusPrevious StatusAddressEnf. Number

12/17Code Enforcement Activity08/01/25

JULY 2025

07/23/2025 08/06/2025ENF 25-0706 RE-INSPECT PENDING 07/23/2025LETTER SENT NCORUNNA AVE

07/28/2025 08/06/2025ENF 25-0715 RECHECK SCHEDULED 07/28/2025INSPECTED PROPERTYHICKORY ST

07/30/2025 08/13/2025ENF 25-0426 RECHECK SCHEDULED 05/15/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY VACANTDEWEY ST

07/30/2025 08/13/2025ENF 25-0437 RECHECK SCHEDULED 05/15/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY INDMCMILLAN AVE

07/30/2025 08/13/2025ENF 25-0439 RECHECK SCHEDULED 05/15/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY VACANT
LOT

MASON ST

07/30/2025 08/13/2025ENF 25-0440 RECHECK SCHEDULED 05/15/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY VACANT
HOUSE

MAIN ST

07/30/2025 08/13/2025ENF 25-0456 RECHECK SCHEDULED 05/19/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY NSTATE ST

07/31/2025 08/13/2025ENF 25-0473 RECHECK SCHEDULED 05/20/2025RE-OPENED ENF NDIVISION ST

07/30/2025 08/13/2025ENF 25-0500 RECHECK SCHEDULED 05/28/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY VACANT
LOT

STATE

07/30/2025 08/13/2025ENF 25-0535 RECHECK SCHEDULED 06/04/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY VACANT
HOUSE

PEARCE ST

07/30/2025 08/13/2025ENF 25-0606 RECHECK SCHEDULED 06/25/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY INDCHIPMAN ST

07/30/2025 08/13/2025ENF 25-0728 RECHECK SCHEDULED 07/30/2025INSPECTED PROPERTYBALL ST

07/31/2025 08/13/2025ENF 25-0729 RECHECK SCHEDULED 07/31/2025LETTER SENT VACANT
LOT

WEST ST

Total Entries 57

LIGHTING VIOLATION

07/29/2025 08/12/2025ENF 25-0718 LETTER SENT 07/29/2025COMPLAINT LOGGED NSUMMIT ST

Total Entries 1

MISC.

07/21/2025ENF 25-0058 CLOSED 01/29/2025 07/21/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY VACGRACE ST

Total Entries 1



Last Action
Date RentalDate Closed

Next Action
DateFiledCurrent StatusPrevious StatusAddressEnf. Number

13/17Code Enforcement Activity08/01/25

JULY 2025

MULTIPLE VIOLATIONS

07/08/2025ENF 24-0833 CLOSED 05/15/2024 07/08/2025RESOLVED NMILWAUKEE ST

07/02/2025ENF 25-0059 CLOSED 01/29/2025 07/02/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY NMASON ST

07/10/2025ENF 25-0226 CLOSED 03/19/2025 07/10/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY VACANTCLINTON ST

07/29/2025ENF 25-0290 CLOSED 04/14/2025 07/29/2025RESOLVED NKING ST

07/07/2025ENF 25-0450 CLOSED 05/19/2025 07/07/2025RESOLVED NKING ST

07/21/2025ENF 25-0453 CLOSED 05/19/2025 07/21/2025RESOLVED YMASON ST

07/01/2025ENF 25-0515 CLOSED 05/29/2025 07/01/2025RESOLVED NSTINSON ST

07/23/2025ENF 25-0526 CLOSED 06/03/2025 07/23/2025RESOLVED NCAMPBELL DR

07/02/2025ENF 25-0579 CLOSED 06/19/2025 07/02/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY YCORUNNA AVE

07/16/2025ENF 25-0622 CLOSED 07/07/2025 07/16/2025RESOLVED NSTATE ST

07/22/2025ENF 25-0636 CLOSED 07/08/2025 07/22/2025RESOLVED NSUMMIT ST

07/23/2025ENF 25-0644 CLOSED 07/09/2025 07/23/2025RESOLVED VACANTPEARCE ST

07/31/2025ENF 25-0683 CLOSED 07/16/2025 07/31/2025RESOLVED NWASHINGTON ST

07/14/2025 08/04/2025ENF 25-0035 RECHECK SCHEDULED 01/14/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY NADAMS ST

07/21/2025 08/04/2025ENF 25-0162 RECHECK SCHEDULED 03/04/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY NFLETCHER ST

07/02/2025 08/04/2025ENF 25-0471 RECHECK SCHEDULED 05/19/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY YSHIAWASSEE ST

07/21/2025 08/04/2025ENF 25-0687 RECHECK SCHEDULED 07/21/2025LETTER SENT NPARK ST

07/14/2025 08/05/2025ENF 25-0330 PARTIALLY RESOLVED 04/23/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY VACOLIVER ST

07/22/2025 08/05/2025ENF 25-0697 RECHECK SCHEDULED 07/22/2025LETTER SENT NCENTER ST

07/16/2025 08/06/2025ENF 24-0091 RECHECK SCHEDULED 02/06/2024INSPECTED PROPERTY NSTATE ST



Last Action
Date RentalDate Closed

Next Action
DateFiledCurrent StatusPrevious StatusAddressEnf. Number

14/17Code Enforcement Activity08/01/25

JULY 2025

07/23/2025 08/06/2025ENF 24-0890 RECHECK SCHEDULED 05/21/2024INSPECTED PROPERTY NSTEWART ST

07/15/2025 08/06/2025ENF 25-0531 RECHECK SCHEDULED 06/04/2025REF TO MOWING
CONTRACTOR

VACANTBEEHLER ST

07/23/2025 08/06/2025ENF 25-0603 RECHECK SCHEDULED 06/25/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY NKING ST

07/23/2025 08/06/2025ENF 25-0647 PARTIALLY RESOLVED 07/09/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY NHOWELL ST

07/16/2025 08/06/2025ENF 25-0678 RECHECK SCHEDULED 07/16/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY VACANT
HOUSE

GENESEE ST

07/23/2025 08/06/2025ENF 25-0704 COMPLAINT LOGGED 07/23/2025LETTER SENT NCORUNNA AVE

07/23/2025 08/06/2025ENF 25-0705 RECHECK SCHEDULED 07/23/2025LETTER SENT YCORUNNA AVE

07/07/2025 08/07/2025ENF 24-1262 PARTIALLY RESOLVED 08/08/2024INSPECTED PROPERTY NLINGLE AVE

07/31/2025 08/07/2025ENF 25-0642 PARTIALLY RESOLVED 07/09/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY YRANDOLPH ST

07/28/2025 08/11/2025ENF 25-0063 PARTIALLY RESOLVED 02/03/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY NGRAND AVE

07/28/2025 08/11/2025ENF 25-0662 RECHECK SCHEDULED 07/14/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY NWOODLAWN AVE

07/28/2025 08/11/2025ENF 25-0666 LETTER SENT 07/14/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY NMACK ST

07/29/2025 08/12/2025ENF 25-0474 PARTIALLY RESOLVED 05/20/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY NDIMMICK ST

07/30/2025 08/13/2025ENF 25-0656 RECHECK SCHEDULED 07/10/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY NMAIN ST

07/14/2025 08/14/2025ENF 21-1578 RECHECK SCHEDULED 10/14/2021INSPECTED PROPERTY COMMROBBINS ST

07/15/2025 08/18/2025ENF 24-0140 RECHECK SCHEDULED 02/21/2024INSPECTED PROPERTY YMELINDA AVE

07/15/2025 08/18/2025ENF 24-1867 PARTIALLY RESOLVED 11/19/2024INSPECTED PROPERTY NLINGLE AVE

07/15/2025 08/18/2025ENF 25-0173 RECHECK SCHEDULED 03/05/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY NBROADWAY AVE

07/16/2025 08/18/2025ENF 25-0628 RECHECK SCHEDULED 07/07/2025CONTACT WITH OWNER NWRIGHT AVE

07/23/2025 08/20/2025ENF 24-0495 RECHECK SCHEDULED 03/19/2024INSPECTED PROPERTY NOLIVER ST



Last Action
Date RentalDate Closed

Next Action
DateFiledCurrent StatusPrevious StatusAddressEnf. Number

15/17Code Enforcement Activity08/01/25

JULY 2025

07/21/2025 08/21/2025ENF 24-1789 RECHECK SCHEDULED 11/05/2024INSPECTED PROPERTY NHARRISON AVE

07/21/2025 08/21/2025ENF 25-0508 RECHECK SCHEDULED 05/29/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY NBROADWAY AVE

07/31/2025 08/28/2025ENF 23-0156 RECHECK SCHEDULED 02/16/2023INSPECTED PROPERTY NCHIPMAN ST

07/30/2025 08/28/2025ENF 24-0907 RECHECK SCHEDULED 05/23/2024INSPECTED PROPERTY VACPINE ST

07/31/2025 08/28/2025ENF 25-0147 RECHECK SCHEDULED 03/03/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY NKRUST DR

07/31/2025 08/28/2025ENF 25-0164 RECHECK SCHEDULED 03/04/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY YCORUNNA AVE

07/23/2025 09/01/2025ENF 23-1352 FINAL NOTICE 12/12/2023INSPECTED PROPERTY NCHIPMAN ST

07/31/2025 09/30/2025ENF 25-0082 RECHECK SCHEDULED 02/04/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY NOLMSTEAD ST

Total Entries 48

RENTAL REGISTRATION

07/16/2025ENF 25-0167 CLOSED 03/04/2025 07/16/2025COMPLAINT LOGGED YSTATE ST

07/16/2025ENF 25-0168 CLOSED 03/04/2025 07/16/2025COMPLAINT LOGGED YABREY AVE

07/16/2025ENF 25-0171 CLOSED 03/04/2025 07/16/2025COMPLAINT LOGGED YOLIVER ST

07/16/2025ENF 25-0172 CLOSED 03/04/2025 07/16/2025COMPLAINT LOGGED YWILLIAMS ST

Total Entries 4

ROW VIOLATIONS

07/22/2025 08/05/2025ENF 25-0698 RECHECK SCHEDULED 07/22/2025LETTER SENT NFIFTH ST

Total Entries 1

SIGN VIOLATION

07/01/2025ENF 25-0528 CLOSED 06/03/2025 07/01/2025RESOLVED COMMMAIN ST

07/21/2025 08/04/2025ENF 25-0586 RECHECK SCHEDULED 06/23/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY COMMWATER



Last Action
Date RentalDate Closed

Next Action
DateFiledCurrent StatusPrevious StatusAddressEnf. Number

16/17Code Enforcement Activity08/01/25

JULY 2025

07/23/2025 08/06/2025ENF 25-0707 RECHECK SCHEDULED 07/23/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY VACANT
LOT

MAIN ST

Total Entries 3

TEMPORARY STRUCTURES

07/07/2025ENF 25-0021 CLOSED 01/07/2025 07/07/2025RESOLVED YGRAND AVE

07/21/2025ENF 25-0163 CLOSED 03/04/2025 07/21/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY NWRIGHT AVE

07/16/2025 10/16/2025ENF 25-0682 RECHECK SCHEDULED 07/16/2025CONTACT WITH OWNER NLINGLE AVE

07/21/2025 10/21/2025ENF 25-0685 RECHECK SCHEDULED 07/21/2025LETTER SENT NWILLIAMS ST

Total Entries 4

TREES HANGING OVER ROW

07/28/2025 08/18/2025ENF 25-0665 RECHECK SCHEDULED 07/14/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY COMMOLIVER

Total Entries 1

VACANT STRUCTURES

07/15/2025 08/18/2025ENF 24-0728 RECHECK SCHEDULED 05/01/2024INSPECTED PROPERTY VACADAMS ST

Total Entries 1

VACANT/SQUATTERS

07/09/2025 08/06/2025ENF 25-0565 RED-TAGGED 06/12/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY VACANT
HOUSE

GENESEE ST

Total Entries 1

VISIBILITY

07/16/2025 08/06/2025ENF 25-0677 RECHECK SCHEDULED 07/16/2025LETTER SENT YCASS ST

Total Entries 1

ZONING

07/23/2025 08/06/2025ENF 25-0645 RECHECK SCHEDULED 07/09/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY NCLYDE ST



Last Action
Date RentalDate Closed

Next Action
DateFiledCurrent StatusPrevious StatusAddressEnf. Number

17/17Code Enforcement Activity08/01/25

JULY 2025

07/23/2025 08/25/2025ENF 25-0549 RECHECK SCHEDULED 06/09/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY COMMMAIN ST

Total Entries 2

Total Records: 266 Total Pages: 17











 
CHARLES, NATHAN BUILDING OFFICIAL

Total Inspections: 65

BOOTH, MARK MECHANICAL & PLUMBING INSPECTOR
Total Inspections: 16

HARRIS, JON ELECTRICAL INSPECTOR
Total Inspections: 23

 
FREEMAN, GREG CODE ENFORCEMENT

Total Inspections: 149

MAYBAUGH, BRAD CODE ENFORCEMENT
Total Inspections: 185

Grand Total Inspections: 438

Monthly Inspection List
JULY 2025



Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Total
ADULT USE RECREATIONAL RETAIL 

1 1 2
$5,000 $5,000 $10,000

AMPHITHEATER
2 4 3 9

$50 $50 $150 $250
BENTLEY PARK RENTAL

6 14 10 11 3 44
$150 $400 $250 $275 $75 $1,150

GROWER LICENSE (Medical)
0

$0
HARMON PATRIDGE PARK RENTAL

5 13 11 14 3 46
$150 $400 $325 $350 $125 $1,350

1 1 1 3
$40 $40 $80

MOBILE FOOD VENDING (Food Truck License)
1 1

$150 $150
PROCESSOR LICENSE

1 1
$5,000 $5,000

PROVISIONING CENTER
0

$0
RECREATIONAL GROW

2 2
$10,000 $10,000

RENTAL (Renewals)
5 3 10 18

$250 $150 $500 $900
RENTAL REGISTRATIONS (New)

3 2 1 3 3 6 18
$150 $100 $50 $150 $150 $300 $900

RESIDENTIAL PARKING
1 1

$120 $120
TOTALS:

11 2 5 6 25 36 26 28 6 0 0 0 145
$10,520 $100 $200 $10,190 $5,950 $1,300 $665 $775 $200 $0 $0 $0 $29,900

CERTIFICATES & LICENSES ISSUED BY MONTH FOR 2025

HISTORIC DISTRICT COMMISSION (C OF A AND NOTICE TO PROCEED)



 
 

OWOSSO POLICE DEPARTMENT 
202 S. WATER ST.  OWOSSO, MICHIGAN 48867-2958  (989) 725-0580  FAX (989)725-0528 

 
 
 
 

MEMORANDUM 
  
DATE:   13 August 2025 
TO:   Owosso City Council 
FROM:   Eric E. Cherry 
 Police Department Captain 
RE:   July 2025 Police Activity Report 
 
 
Master Plan Goal 3.1, 3.2 
 

The Investigative Services Bureau attended the monthly multidisciplinary meeting for all forensic interviews 
conducted.  This is where investigators, CPS, Voices for Children and Shiawassee County Prosecutors discuss where each 
case is at of the reported sexual assault investigations. 

Our Comprehensive Opioid, Stimulant and Substance Use Program (COSSUP) team met on multiple occasions 
and also completed some field work with persons that were effected by overdose.  
 The Police Department had extra patrols for traffic enforcement during the Cruise the Pits event in the downtown 
area. 
 The department administration did a walk through of the Public Safety Building with vendors discussing building 
upgrades. 
 Several members of the department attended a meeting with the Owosso Public Schools administration team to 
discuss the upcoming school year and safety plans. 
 

July - 5 YEAR AVERAGE 
 

 2021-July 2022-July 2023-July 2024-July 2025-July July 5YR AVG 
Part I Crimes 30 30 30 17 26 26.6 

Part II Crimes 77 86 111 80 79 86.6 

Violent Crimes 8 12 12 5 7 8.8 

Total Reports 151 152 202 157 149 162.2 
Felony Arrests 9 12 10 7 12 10 

Total Arrests 23 35 45 36 37 35.2 

Traffic Stops 30 36 82 60 118 65.2 

All Dispatched Events 838 882 903 821 907 870.2 

 
 
 

 



LAST 12 MONTHS 
 

 
2024-
Aug 

2024-
Sep 

2024-
Oct 

2024-
Nov 

2024-
Dec 

2025-
Jan 

2025-
Feb 

2025-
Mar 

2025-
Apr 

2025-
May 

2025-
Jun 

2025-
Jul 

Last 12 
Months Average 

Part I Crimes 26 25 29 19 17 23 18 30 18 25 13 26 269 22.42 

Part II Crimes 97 80 95 81 70 65 59 84 87 97 82 79 976 81.33 

Violent Crimes 10 3 9 7 4 7 2 10 4 8 4 7 75 6.25 

Total Reports 184 176 161 153 139 160 114 157 166 168 157 149 1884 157 

Felony Arrests 8 4 14 8 6 5 5 6 8 8 15 12 99 8.25 

Total Arrests 45 34 39 40 23 22 20 27 33 35 42 37 397 33.08 

Traffic Stops 63 80 27 34 48 105 109 43 87 84 35 118 833 69.42 

All Dispatched 
Events 996 1003 692 607 606 835 657 730 820 798 787 907 9438 786.5 

 



 
 
 
 
 
 301  W.  M AI N   O WO SSO , MI CHI G AN 48867- 2958   ( 989)  725- 0580 

  
 

MEMORANDUM 
 

DATE:   August 13, 2025 
 
TO:   Owosso City Council 
 
FROM:   Kevin Lenkart   
 Director of Public Safety 
  
RE:   July 2025 Fire & Ambulance Report 
 
  
 
Attached are the statistics for the Owosso Fire Department (OFD) for July 2025. The 
Owosso Fire Department responded to 285 incidents in the month of May. 
  
OFD responded to 20 fire or rescue calls and EMS responded to 26 EMS calls.   
 
 
Fire Calls   EMS Calls   
Illegal Burning 1  City of Owosso 161 
Wires Down 0 Corunna EMS 3 
Rescue 3 Fairfield Twp.  3 
Car Fire 0 Laingsburg 1 
False Alarm 5 Middlebury Twp.  21 
Building Fire-Owosso 1 Owosso Twp.  66 
Building Fire-Mutual 
Aid 2 Perry Area EMS 2 
Gas Leak 3 Rush Twp.  8 
Smoke Investigation 5 Out of County 2 
Total 20 Total 265 
    

 

 
 
 



Monthly Responses by Zone Owosso Fire Dpt Aug 1, 2025 10:44:25 AM EMS

Filter statement

Filters

1/1

Days in Dispatched 7/1/25 to 7/31/25 Is Locked true Is Active true Scene Zone Exclude: N\A, Bennington Township

Responses by Scene Zone

Total Records

Responses by Zone

City of OvidCity of Ovid
33
City of Ovid
3

City of OwossoCity of Owosso
161161
City of Owosso
161

Fairfield TownshipFairfield Township
33
Fairfield Township
3

Middlebury TownshipMiddlebury Township
2121
Middlebury Township
21

Owosso TownshipOwosso Township
6666
Owosso Township
66

Rush TownshipRush Township
88
Rush Township
8

OthersOthers
33
Others
3

City of Ovid City of Owosso Fairfield Township Middlebury Township
Owosso Township Rush Township Others

61%
8%

25%



 

 

REGULAR MEETING MINUTES OF THE  
OWOSSO MAIN STREET & DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 

CITY OF OWOSSO 
  

August 6, 2025, AT 7:30 A.M. 
CALL TO ORDER:  The meeting was called to order by Chair Daylen Howard at 7:30 A.M. 

ROLL CALL:  Taken by Lizzie Fredrick 

PRESENT:  Chair Daylen Howard, Mayor Robert J. Teich, Jr. and Commissioners Jill Davis, Bill Gilbert, 
Karen Parzych, and Jon Moore. Vice-Chair Lance Omer arrived at 7:52 a.m. 

ABSENT:  Commissioner Josh Ardelean 

STAFF PRESENT:  Lizzie Fredrick, OMS & DDA Director 

AGENDA:  

MOVED BY MOORE SUPPORTED BY DAVIS TO APPROVE THE AUGUST 6, 2025, OWOSSO MAIN 
STREET AND DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY AGENDA AS PRESENTED. 
AYES:  ALL 
MOTION CARRIED 

MINUTES:   
 
MOVED BY TEICH, SUPPORTED BY DAVIS TO APPROVE THE JULY 9, 2025, OWOSSO MAIN 
STREET AND DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY ANNUAL MEETING MINUTES. 
AYE:  ALL 
MOTION CARRIED 

PUBLIC COMMENTS:  None 

REPORTS:  Fredrick reviewed the July Check Disbursement Report and Revenue & Expenditure Report. 
 
Fredrick presented July 2025 reports for Electric Vehicle Charging Station Revenue, Unique Drivers, and 
Session Quantity. 
 
Fredrick confirmed the warranty for the Electric Vehicle Charging Stations ends in October 2025 and that 
an upgrade is being considered for one of the charging adapters. 
 
ITEMS OF BUSINESS: 

 
1. Owosso Main Street Transformation Strategy: Fredrick reviewed the Transformation 

Strategy Development Plan, Measures of Success for the OMS 2025-2029 Strategic Plan, 
and the OMS Potential Programming Worksheet. 
 
MOVED BY PARZYCH, SUPPORTED BY HOWARD TO ADOPT DOWNTOWN 
RENAISSANCE AS THE OWOSSO MAIN STREET TRANSFORMATION STRATEGY AND 
ADOPT THE MEASURES OF SUCCESS FOR THE OWOSSO MAIN STREET 2025-2029 
STRATEGIC PLAN GOALS. 
AYE:  ALL 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
 



 

 

2. 2025 Owosso Main Street Self-Assessment:  Fredrick presented the Main Street Self-
Assessment Tool to be completed for the national accreditation process. 
 
Board provided their scores for each focus area of the Main Street Approach and discussed 
the OMS Program’s progress, successes, and areas of opportunity for improvement. 
 

COMMITTEE UPDATES: 
 

1. Organization:  Moore announced the fall volunteer recruitment event will be on September 6th 
from 9:00 a.m. to 12:00 p.m. at Foster Coffee Company. 
 
Moore noted that the Organization Committee has begun discussing plans for the 2025 Volunteer 
Appreciation Event. 
 

2. Promotion:  Davis shared that social media highlights have begun for the businesses that opted 
out of the Chocolate Walk reimbursement and reminded the Board that the Trick or Treat Main 
Street Meetup for downtown business owners takes place on August 7th. 
 
Davis and Teich provided a recap of National Night Out. 
 

3. Economic Vitality:  Fredrick shared that the Economic Vitality Committee will be discussing 
ways to increase engagement with Business of the Month nominees that have not received the 
award. 
 
Parzych noted that the Economic Vitality Committee is working with the Michigan Small Business 
Development Center on marketing for the Revolving Loan & Grant Program. 
 

4. Design:  Parzych said the July Design Committee meeting focused on plans for the seasonal 
transition from downtown’s flowers to fall decorations. 

 
DIRECTOR UPDATES:  Fredrick announced that Amy’s Place was selected as a Match on Main grant 
recipient by the Michigan Economic Development Corporation. 

Fredrick provided updates on the Main Street Plaza Masonry Repair 2.0, Main Street Plaza landscaping 
project, and the South Washington Street welcome sign repair and planter removal project. 

Fredrick reminded the Board of upcoming events including Owosso Vintage Motorcycle Days on August 
22nd and 23rd and the Downtown Fall Cleanup on October 3rd and 4th. 

BOARD COMMENTS:  None 

ADJOURNMENT: 

MOVED BY MOORE, SUPPORTED BY DAVIS TO ADJOURN AT 8:46 A.M. 
AYES:  ALL 
MOTION CARRIED 

NEXT MEETING SEPTEMBER 3, 2025. 


	AGENDA
	ZoomNotice-250818

	APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES
	250804CouncilMinutes

	PROCLAMATIONS / SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS
	PUBLIC HEARINGS
	CITIZEN COMMENTS
	COUNCIL COMMENTS
	CONSENT AGENDA
	1. SetPublicHearing-CDBGGrantAcceptance
	2. TrafficControlOrderRequest-AmericanLegionBikeNight_Redacted
	3. TrafficControlOrderRequest-ArtWalk_Redacted
	4. ContractAmendment-COSSAPGrantSubcontract
	5. BidRejection-WashingtonParkUtilityExtensionProject
	6. ChangeOrder-WWTPSecondaryClarifierProject
	7. EvergreenPORequest-AutomaticMeterReadingSystemMaintenance
	8. AnnualPORequest-Workers'CompensationInsurance
	9. SoleSourcePurchase-Havaflock560Polymer
	10. ContractAuthorization-2026SanitarySewerManholeLiningProject
	11. PurchaseAuthorization-MonitorDefibrillators
	12. BidAward-NoPreferenceTowingServices

	ITEMS OF BUSINESS
	1. ContractApprovals-LudingtonElectricInc
	2. UtilitiesEasements-WashingtonParkProject
	3. PumpStationNo5Agreement
	4. Closed Session

	CITIZEN COMMENTS
	COUNCIL COMMENTS
	CLOSED SESSION
	COMMUNICATIONS
	1. ConsumersEnergyDemandResponseProgram
	2. Transformation Strategy Development Plan 2025
	3. BuildingDepartmentReport-July2025
	4. CodeEnforcementReport-July2025
	5. InspectionsReport-July2025
	6. CertificatesIssuedReport-July2025
	7. PoliceReport-July2025
	8. FireDepartmentReport-July2025
	9. DDA-OMSMinutes-250806

	NEXT MEETING
	BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS OPENINGS
	ADJOURNMENT

	qVH53irB40cU_LDVqhcCKE2cW: July 31, 2025
	qVH53irB40cU: 


